
  
  
 

Shelton City Council 
Meeting Agenda 

January 19, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
Virtual Platform 

 

 
A.  Call to Order 

• Pledge of Allegiance 
• Roll Call 
• Late Changes to the Agenda 

 
B.  Council Reports 
 
C.  Consent Agenda (Action) 

1. Voucher numbered 103842 in the amount of $2,453.59  
2. Vouchers numbered 103843 through 103896 in the total amount of $171,953.39 
3. Vouchers numbered 103926 through 103934 in the total amount of $20,615.86 
4. Quarterly Report-Quixote Communities – Written by Executive Director Jaycie Osterberg  

 
D.  Presentations 
     1.  Swearing-in Video of Police Chief Beason 
     2.  Shoreline Master Program Update – Presented by Sr. Planner Jason Dose  
     3.  Street Standards – Presented by Public Works Director Jay Harris 
     4.  2019 Accountability & Financial Audit – Presented by Finance Manager Teri Schnitzer 
 
E.  General Public Comment (3-minute time limit) 
 
F.  Business Agenda (Study/No Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Workforce Housing Development Project – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten 
      2.  Public Hearing – Ordinance No. 1964-0121 2020 Supplemental Budget – Presented by Finance 
           Director Aaron BeMiller 
      3.  Resolution No. 1183-1120 On-Call Qualified Pool List Contracts – Presented by Public Works Director  
           Jay Harris 
 
G.  Action Agenda (Action/Public Comment Taken) 
      1.  Eagle Point Park Master Plan – Presented by Community Development Director Mark Ziegler 
      2.  Ordinance No. 1959-1120 Franchise Agreement - Mason County – Presented by Public Works 
           Director Jay Harris 
      3.  Ordinance No. 1960-1220 Amending Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 3.52 – Presented by Finance 
           Director Aaron BeMiller 
      4.  Resolution No. 1184-1120 Master Fee Schedule Update – Presented by Finance Director Aaron  
           BeMiller 
      5.  Contracts for Supplemental Building Code Services– Presented by Community Development Director  
           Mark Ziegler 
      6.  City Policy Update – Presented by City Manager Jeff Niten       
 
 



 
H.  Administration Reports 

• City Manager Report 
 
I.  New Items for Discussion 
 
J.  Announcement of Next Meeting – February 2, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
 
K.  Adjourn 

 

  

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Special Note for Public Participation 
 

The meeting can be viewed at: masonwebtv.com 
The public can provide comments by: 

Email:  jeff.niten@sheltonwa.gov 
Telephone:  (360) 432-5105 

Joining the Zoom meeting by clicking on the link posted on the City Council’s webpage 
 

Your comments will be relayed directly to the Council. 



 

Updated 01/11/2021 
 

 
2021 Looking Ahead 
    (Items and dates are subject to change) 

 
 

 
Tues. 2/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• Avram – Workforce Housing Project 
• FCS Group Stormwater Rate Presentation 

#1 
Business Agenda                                                              

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1961-1220  
Telephone B & O Tax 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1965-0121 
Dept. of Ecology 2018 Stormwater Manual 

• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1967-0121 
Consolidation of Utility Tax 

• Memorandum of Understanding Shelton 
Skate Park 

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1963-1220  Franchise 

Agreement – PUD #3 
• Ordinance No. 1964-0121 2020 

Supplemental 
• Resolution No. 1183-1120 On Call Qualified 

Pool List Contracts 
• City Policy Updates 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due: 
Fri. 1/22 – 5:00 p.m. 

Fri. 2/12  Notice to The Journal for Public Hearing on 3/2 to 
be published on 2/18 

N/A 

Tues. 2/16 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• FCS Group Stormwater Rate Presentation 

#2 
Business Agenda                                                              

•  
Action Agenda 

• Ordinance No. 1961-1220 Telephone B & O 
Tax 

• Ordinance No. 1965-0121 Dept. of Ecology 
2018 Stormwater Manual 

• Ordinance No. 1967-0121 Consolidation of 
Utility Tax 

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 2/5 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 01/11/2021 
 

Tues. 3/2 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
• FCS Group GFC Presentation 

Business Agenda 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1963-1220 

Franchise Agreement – PUD #3                                                              
• Resolution No. 1186-1220 Surplus 

Computer Equipment 
Action Agenda 

•  
Administration Report 

•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 2/19 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 3/16 
5:50 p.m. 

SMPD Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Meeting Minutes 

Business Agenda 
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due:      
Fri. 3/5 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 3/16 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. XXXX-XXXX 

Consideration of the Purchase & Sale   
• Public Hearing Ordinance No XXXX-XXXX 

Consideration of Surplus Property 
• Public Hearing Ordinance No. 1962-1220 

Consideration of Workforce Housing 
Development Agreement 

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. 1963-1220 Franchise 

Agreement – PUD #3 
• Resolution No. 1186-1220 Surplus 

Computer Equipment 
Administration Report 
 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 3/5 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 4/6 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
• Ordinance No. XXXX-XXXX Consideration 

of the Purchase & Sale   
• Ordinance No XXXX-XXXX Consideration of 

Surplus Property 

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 3/26 – 5:00 p.m. 



 

Updated 01/11/2021 
 

• Ordinance No. 1962-1220 Consideration of 
Workforce Housing Development Agreement 

Administration Report 
•  

Tues. 4/20 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 4/9 – 5:00 p.m. 

Tues. 5/4 
6:00 p.m. 

Regular Meeting Consent Agenda 
• Vouchers/Payroll Warrants/Meeting Minutes 

Presentations 
•  

Business Agenda                                                              
•  

Action Agenda 
•  

Administration Report 
•  

Packet Items Due:  
Fri. 4/23 – 5:00 p.m. 

Other – TBD 

• UGA/Annexation Policy (Water/Sewer Extensions) 
• Outside City Water/Sewer Extensions 
• More Standing Committees by the Council  
• June 1, 2021 – C Street Update 
• December 7, 2021 – C Street Update 









  
 

 

3350 Mottman Rd SW 

Olympia, Washington 98512 

O: (360) 338-0451 

info@quixotecommunities.org 

www.quixotecommunities.org 

 
 

Shelton Veterans Village Update 

 December 2020 

THE TEAM: 

• Architect – MSGS Architects (Garner Miller, lead. Also worked on Quixote Village and Orting 

Veterans Village 

• Developer – Community Frameworks (Stephen Taul, Paul Trautman, lead. CF also worked on 

Quixote Village and Orting Veterans Village) 

• Civil Engineer – Olympic Engineering (Chris Merritt, lead) 

• General Contractor – FORMA (Graydon Holden, lead. Graydon personally worked on Quixote 

Village) 

• Tiny Home Builders – Indie Dwell (Scott Beecham, lead) 

• Community Center Builder – Alpha Steel 

WHERE WE ARE AT: 

Fill material  

• Working with the city to map out a plan to remove the fill material on the site. 

• Confirmation letter sent to Jeff Niten and Ken Gill on 11/25/2020. 

Permits  

• Civil Design – waiting to get comments back from the city. 

• Indie Dwell will apply for one-year L&I permits by mid-January 2021 (for four-plex and duplex 

units) 

o Indie Dwell’s A&E team are currently working on the construction documentation, 

including structural framing and detailing and MEP coordination. 

o When the design development is complete, they will go through a detailed code review 

for the building, life safety, energy, and ADA compliance. Then will submit for review. 

• Forma will apply for 6-month city of Shelton permits by late-January 2021 (for community 

center) 

o  Forma is working with Alpha Steel on engineering before they submit permits  

• Community Frameworks continue working with Senior Planner Jason Dose on the NEPA 

environmental review. The completed review will expedite any commitment of federal project-

based rent assistance. 

Timelines 

• We were originally slated for construction with Indie Dwell for March. Unfortunately, we had to 

extend that out because we are continuing to look for operating funding for the project. 



  
 

 

3350 Mottman Rd SW 

Olympia, Washington 98512 

O: (360) 338-0451 

info@quixotecommunities.org 

www.quixotecommunities.org 

 
o Construction for IndieDwell is slated for July in their 

production schedule. All site work will need to be done beforehand so that the site is 

ready for the homes. 

o It will take Forma about 5 months from start of construction to being able to receive the 

tiny homes.  

Operating 

• We are currently looking for secured operating funding for the village. We thought we would be 

able to secure project-based vouchers to subsidize our resident’s low rent amounts (they pay 

30% of their income in rent, which may be 0 for some people) with the Bremerton Housing 

Authority but they have backed out of their commitment. 

• We have a lot of support for this project including Senator Sheldon, Senator Randall, 

Representative MacEwen, Representative Griffey, and the WDVA who are all trying to advocate 

for us to receive vouchers. Looking at options to utilize other county VASH vouchers that aren’t 

being utilized. 

• Looking at other options including the 811 PRA Vouchers for individuals with disabilities, looking 

at other counties that do not utilize all of their VASH Vouchers, state O&M, state Supportive 

Services grant, 2163 funds, Continuum of Care, and the Foundational Community Supports 

program through Amerigroup. 

• If we do not find secured funding for operating, we will have to pause the project until we find a 

secured amount we are comfortable moving forward with. 

 

Outreach 

• Free digital open house every 3rd Wednesday of the month from 5:30pm-6:30pm 

• New Shelton Veterans Village Facebook page. 

 



 

 

 

 

Chief Carole Beason Swearing In 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Incoming Shelton Police Chief Carole Beason was sworn into office on Monday, January 11 at 
2:00 p.m. at the Civic Center. Mayor Kevin Dorcy administered the oath of office. MasonWebTV 

livestreamed the event, which can be viewed at: https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ao9oj-
GIz4g 

 

https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ao9oj-GIz4g
https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=Ao9oj-GIz4g


Council Briefing Form   

 
 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item D2) 

Touch Date:  01/05/2021 
Brief Date:     01/19/2021 
Action Date:  N/A 

Department:  Community Development 
 
Presented By:  Jason Dose 

DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
In 1971, the Washington State Legislature enacted the Shoreline Management Act (SMA).  The Act recognized 
the value our State’s shorelines offer for the recreation, commercial, ecological, and residential needs of our 
residents and future generations.  To meet the requirements of the SMA, the City of Shelton adopted its first 
Shoreline Master Program (SMP) in 1975.  The City waited nearly 20 years to comprehensively update it in 
1995 with a substantial grant from the Department of Ecology.   
 
In 2003 The Washington State Legislature passed Substitute Senate Bill 6012 which required Cities and 
Counties to comprehensively update their SMP’s, a task which the City completed in May 2013, also with a 
substantial grant from the Department of Ecology.  SSB 6012 also stipulates that Cities and Counties regularly 
review and update their SMP’s, generally on 8 year intervals, to ensure they remain consistent with current 
State Law and, hopefully, negate the need for very belabored comprehensive updates such as the City undertook 
in 1995 and 2013.   
 
The City of Shelton is currently slated to have this most recent required update completed by July 2021 and 
anticipates that the update can be nearly entirely completed with existing staff, though some mapping may need 
to be updated and staff anticipates utilizing the City’s State contracted consortium for that purpose.  To aid in 
offsetting the cost of this mandated update, the Washington State Department of Ecology offered the City a 
$16,800, no match, grant to aid in offsetting staff time, consulting services, and materials required to update the 
SMP. 

 
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Shoreline Master Program Periodic 
Review Update. 

 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
Strikeout and Underline Documents 
illustrating proposed changes to 
remain in compliance with State 
Guidelines. 

1) Chapter 21.64 of the Shelton 
Municipal Code. 

2) Chapter 2 of the City of 
Shelton Shoreline Master 
Program (SMP) 

3) Chapter 5 of the City of 
Shelton SMP 

4) Chapter 6 of the City of 
Shelton SMP 

5) Chapter 7 of the City of 
Shelton SMP 

6) Chapter 8 of the City of 
Shelton SMP 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other/Update 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 

 
City Manager 

 
__________ 

     



Council Briefing Form   

 
The City of Shelton City Council authorized staff to accept the grant from the Washington State Department of 
Ecology on August 18, 2020.  The City has been working diligently with Department of Ecology Staff to update 
the existing City of Shelton Shoreline Master Program (SMP) to meet updated laws and requirements mandated 
by the Washington State Legislature.  Draft Copies of the following documents (in strikeout and underline) are 
attached for informational purposes (with a general summary of changes indicated): 
 

1) Chapter 21.64 of the City of Shelton Municipal Code (Critical Areas Protection).  The Department 
of Ecology updated its guidance relative to Wetland typing, review, and protection in 2014.  The 
changes noted in the chapter relate to the definition of “Wetland Delineation” to reflect DOE 
recommendations and a large amount of the “Wetlands” section of the code (21.64.100 through 
21.64.147) has been updated to reflect the new science and methodology for typing and protecting 
wetlands in Western Washington.  See Attachment 1. 

2) Chapter 2 of the City of Shelton Shoreline Master Program (SMP).    The Washington State 
Legislature updated a number of items relating to threshold costs for Substantial Development Permits 
and listed exemptions for various projects. See Attachment 2. 

3) Chapter 5 of the City of Shelton SMP.  The changes to Chapter 5 a limited to Section 5.5 (Critical 
Areas Protection) and simply remove citations to handling of wetlands in Shoreline Jurisdiction that are 
superseded by the changes to Chapter 21.64.  See Attachment 3. 

4) Chapter 6 of the City of Shelton SMP.  In 2014 the Washington State Legislature created a new 
definition and policy for legally established “Floating on-water residences” established before July 1, 
2014 (no new “Floating on-water residences” are allowed in Washington State).  Staff amended the use 
table contained in Chapter 6 to clarify that “Floating on-water residences” are not allowed. 

5) Chapter 7 of the City of Shelton SMP.  The Changes proposed in Chapter 7 simply update legal 
(WAC and RCW) citations, add updated requirements/allowances relating to State (WSDOT) projects 
passed by the State Legislature, and update Ecology’s procedure for review of City issued Shoreline 
Permits to reflect current practices. 

6) Chapter 8 of the City of Shelton SMP.  The only change proposed in Chapter 7 is to update the legal 
definition of “development” as it relates to shoreline projects to clarify that dismantling or removing 
structures (without associated development or redevelopment) is not considered development relative to 
shoreline jurisdiction. 

 
This update is provided as a general status/procedural update to the Council regarding this required periodic 
update to the City’s Shoreline Master Program.  In the coming months staff will be reaching out to the public 
and several shoreline stakeholders (including, but not limited to: The Shelton Marina/Yacht Club Operators, 
Manke Lumber, Sierra Pacific Industries, local tribes, local Salmon Enhancement Groups, the Master Builders 
Association) to discuss the proposed changes.  Staff also plans on working with the Department of Ecology staff 
to do a joint review/public hearing process (meaning, both the City and the State run our public hearing 
processes/review processes in tandem) prior to the formal adoption of any changes being requested of the 
Council.  This will likely take place, in earnest, in late March to April of this year. 
 

       ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
       Update to the City of Shelton Shoreline Master Program to reflect State Guidance/Requirements is mandatory for 

the City to remain in compliance. 
   

       BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
       The State of Washington Grant ($16,800) is offsetting staff time and materials required to perform the update. 
    
      PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

           Not applicable as no action is requested at this time. 
 

      STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
      This update briefing is provided as a status update only. No action is requested of the Council at this time. 
       

























































































































































































































































































































































































































STREET IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS
POLICY DISCUSSION 

City of Shelton Public Works Department 1

January 19, 2021

1917 Dirt Road 1926 First Roadway Paving Cota Street, 1940’s



Shelton Street Standards Reference Documents:

1. 2017 City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan, Section IV, 
Transportation Element.

2. Shelton Municipal Code, Title 12, Streets and Sidewalks.
3. 2018 International Fire Code (to Council in February 2021).
4. 2019 State Department of Ecology Storm Water 

Management Manual for Western Washington (to Council 
in February 2021).

5. 2019 Shelton Design and Construction Standards.

2



2017 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUNCTIONAL 
CLASSIFICATION MAP

3



Functional Classification Roadway Descriptions:

4

Freeway: Limited Access, High Average Daily Traffic (ADT)
E.g.: Highway 101

Principal Arterial: Limited Access, High ADT
E.g.: Highway 3, Railroad Ave, Olympic Highway North.

Minor Arterial: Limited Access, Moderate ADT
Eg: Brockdale Road, N. 13th St, E. Arcadia Ave, Johns Prairie Rd.

Minor Collector: Increased Access, Lower ADT
E.g.: S. 10th St, Wyandott Ave, Fairmont Ave, San Joaquin Ave.

Major Collector: Increased Access, Moderate ADT
Eg: Lake Blvd, Turner Ave, Northcliff Rd, Shelton Springs Rd.

Local Street: Full Access, Low ADT
Eg: Cota St, Bayview Ave, Washington St, Thyme St.



2017 Comprehensive Plan, Section IV, Transportation Element Criteria:
1. Page IV-3: Roadway Functional Classifications: Based on state law, cities and counties are required to adopt a street classification 

system that is consistent with State and Federal guidelines. Each local jurisdiction is responsible for defining its transportation 
system into the following functional classifications: Freeway, Principal Arterial, Minor Arterial, and Collector. All other roadways are 
Local Access streets. 

Comment: Chapter 2 of the 2019 City Engineering Design and Construction Manual contains street improvement standards for the 
various functional classes of roadways: arterial, collector, alley, and local roads identified in the 2017 Comprehensive Plan.

2. Page IV-10: Pedestrian and Bicycle Facilities

The City of Shelton Public Works Department is currently in the development stages of a sidewalk prioritization plan. The plan will lay 
the groundwork/methodology the Public Works Department will utilize to expand the City’s sidewalk system. The City’s development
standards require most new commercial development to install sidewalks in conjunction with the proposed development. Further, all 
new subdivisions are required to install comprehensive sidewalks in conjunction with new street installations. Further, the Department 
is also in the process of developing a Complete Streets policy that creates a vision for the community to provide for streets that 
accommodate all users including pedestrians, bicyclists, transit and transit passengers of all ages and abilities, as well as trucks, 
buses, and automobiles. The policy will be utilized by City staff when developing plans for new or retrofit streets

Comment: Critical pedestrian routes are shown on page 2-20a of the 2019 Design and Construction Standards Manual and are 
included on page 18 of this document.  The Complete Streets Policy is proposed to be completed in 2022. The updated street 
improvement standards will be part of the future Complete Streets Policy. 

3. Page IV-30: Transportation Demand Management Strategies:

Transportation Demand Management (TDM) addresses traffic congestion by focusing on reducing travel demand rather than adding 
more roads and facilities. TDM consists of strategies that seek to maximize the efficiency of the transportation system by reducing 
demand on the system. The results of successful TDM can include: 

• Travelers switch from single-occupancy-vehicle (SOV) to HOV modes such as transit, vanpools or carpools 
• Travelers switch from driving to non-motorized modes such as bicycling or walking 
• Travelers change the time they make trips from more congested to less congested times of day 
• Travelers eliminate trips altogether through such means as compressed workweeks, consolidation of errands, or use of 

telecommunications 
• Shared access in commercial districts

Comment: The goal of this Comprehensive Plan element is to designate street improvement standards that will include strategies for 
non-motorized modes of transportation, such as interconnected biking and walking elements. 

5



2017 Comprehensive Plan, Section IV, Transportation Element Criteria (continued):
4. Page IV-35 to 36: Transportation and Land Use:

T3. Encourage compatibility between transportation facilities and surrounding land uses.
T3a. The City’s transportation system shall be planned and designed to support growth and economic vitality in accordance with this 

Comprehensive Plan.
T3b. The City shall require new development and redevelopment to incorporate transit, pedestrian, and non-motorized transportation 

supportive measures proportionate to the scale of proposed development, during the development review process, including 
measures such as:

• Providing adequate sidewalks, pathways, and crosswalks that allow for access by all persons;
• Minimizing walking distances between buildings and streets, sidewalks, and transit stops;
• Clustering buildings;
• Preserving and extending the connectivity of the pedestrian, bicycle, and grid street system;
• Incorporating traffic calming measures in neighborhoods, as appropriate, to reduce speeds and crossing distances;
• Promote shared access; and
• Designing transit access into new developments, as appropriate, considering stops and shelters as part of the overall project, when 

recommended by the Mason County Transit Authority.
T3c. Public and private development projects shall be designed to be accessible to all citizens and by many different modes of travel.
T3d. The City should explore strategies to improve traffic flow on 1st Street including, but not limited to, establishing one-way couplets, 

utilizing roundabouts, etc.

Comment: The goal of this Comprehensive Plan element is to require that the proposed street improvement standards include design 
elements for preserving, expanding, and extending the connectivity of the pedestrian, bicycle, and grid street systems for many 
different modes of travel.  

T5. Minimize travel times for people and goods.

T5a. The City should seek to assure convenient access from arterials to residential neighborhoods, employment and retail centers, and 
major community and government facilities. Development approval should:

• Require that all improved property in the city be conveniently accessible from streets, walkways or trails;
• Maintain continuity of the street pattern by avoiding half streets and non- extendible dead-end streets without adequate turn-around 

room for emergency vehicles;
• Expand the city’s street grid system where feasible; and,
• Avoid the creation of excessively large blocks and long local streets through the development of maximum size guidelines for new 

City blocks.

Comment: The goal of this comprehensive plan element is to ensure that the proposed street improvement standards include the 
requirement that all improved property be accessible from streets, walkways, and trails, and to avoid streets unsuitable for emergency 
vehicles.  The International Fire Code includes minimum standards for street and fire turn around widths. 6



Shelton Municipal Code:
Title 12, Streets and Sidewalks

12.04.010, Sidewalk Specifications, Size and materials of sidewalks along paved streets.

On the following named streets in the city of Shelton no sidewalks or crossing shall be hereafter constructed or reconstructed except 
that the same shall be constructed of concrete at least five feet in width, and the outer edge of said sidewalks shall be at least six feet 
from the property line: Upon all streets that have been paved, are in the process of being paved, or that may hereafter be paved.

Comment: The goal of this municipal code provision is to set the minimum width of sidewalks in the City at five feet. Revised sidewalk 
standards locate sidewalks adjacent to the property line to allow for roadside planter strips with street trees. A 6-foot wide public utility 
easement is proposed adjacent to the property line to allow for overhead and underground utilities.

12.36, Frontage Improvement Charge.

12.36.010 Applicability.

Provisions of this chapter shall apply to new development and substantial remodel projects in the neighborhood residential (NR) zone. 
In accordance with the city’s public works design standards, applicable projects may pay the frontage improvement charge (FIC) in lieu 
of installing full frontage improvements. (Ord. 1870-0415 § 1 (part), 2015)

12.36.020 FIC—Base fee.

A.    A base fee of zero dollars per lineal foot of frontage is established for 2016, for the FIC.

B.    Effective January 1st of subsequent years, the FIC shall be adjusted based on the October to October change in the Construction 
Cost Index for the Seattle area as published by Engineering News-Record.

C.    The base fee will be applied to all eligible projects in conformance with Section 2.100 of the current “city of Shelton design and 
construction standards.” (Ord. 1884-2016 § 1, 2016: Ord. 1870-0415 § 1 (part), 2015)

Comment: The goal of this municipal code provision is to set a base frontage improvement fee that applicable projects in the 
Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district to pay in lieu of constructing street and sidewalk improvements for development in the 
Neighborhood Residential (NR) zoning district. The fee for the charge was set at zero and no funds were collected by the City. The 
frontage improvement fee is further discussed in the Engineering Design and Construction Standards section of this presentation.

7



Shelton Municipal Code (continued):
Title 12, Streets and Sidewalks

12.36.030 Use of FIC funds.

A.    FIC, once collected, shall be placed in an appropriate deposit account within the capital improvement fund.

B.    FIC revenues shall be held and disbursed as follows:

1.    FIC revenues shall be used for costs incurred on capital projects for the design or construction of pedestrian and non-motorized 
improvements, including capitalized repair and maintenance, when such improvements are part of a project identified in the annual six-
year transportation improvement program.

2.    Priority for funds shall be given to projects that improve conditions on “critical pedestrian routes” as shown on the current “critical 
pedestrian route” map included in the “city of Shelton design and construction standards.”

3.    Public works shall prepare an annual report to the council on the FIC showing all sources and amounts of revenue collected and 
projects for which funds were expended.

Comment: No FIC funds were collected as part of this program. 

8



2018 International Fire Code, Appendix D, Fire Apparatus Roads:
Section D101 General

D101.1 Scope

Fire apparatus access roads shall be in accordance with this appendix and all other applicable requirements of the International Fire 
Code.

Comment: The International Fire Code (IFC) is adopted by the City and used by the Building and Fire Departments for the minimum 
design standards. The goal is that the public street design standards are updated to meet or exceed the International Fire Code 
Standards.

Section D102 Required Access

D102.1 Access and Loading

Facilities, buildings or portions of buildings hereafter constructed shall be accessible to fire department apparatus by way of an 
approved fire apparatus access road with an asphalt, concrete or other approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed 
load of fire apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds (34 050 kg).

Comment: The current public street design standards do not meet this standard. Modifications will be needed to the Design and 
Construction Standards manual discussed later in this document so that all public roadways are constructed with an asphalt or 
concrete driveway surface with a structural section to support a 75,000-pound emergency vehicle. Note that the IFC street design 
standards applies to public streets development site interior streets, abutting streets, and offsite streets serving the project site to in any 
zoning district in the City or UGA.

Section D103 Minimum Specifications

D103.1 Access Road Width With a Hydrant

Where a fire hydrant is located on a fire apparatus access road, the minimum road width shall be 26 feet (7925 mm), exclusive of
shoulders (see Figure D103.1).

Comment: The majority of all public roadways include fire hydrants and need to be a minimum of 26 feet in width per this standard.

D103.2 Grade

Fire apparatus access roads shall not exceed 10 percent in grade.

Exception: Grades steeper than 10 percent as approved by the fire code official.

Comment: A maximum street gradient of 10 percent is the current standard in the City 2019 Design and Construction Manual.
9



2018 International Fire Code, Appendix D, Fire Apparatus Roads (continued):
D103.3 Turning Radius

The minimum turning radius shall be determined by the fire code official.

Comment: Section 2.010 of the Design and Construction Standards Manual references the State of Washington Roadway Design 
Manual that meets or exceeds minimum turning radius requirements for emergency vehicles.

D103.4 Dead Ends

Dead-end fire apparatus access roads in excess of 150 feet (45 720 mm) shall be provided with width and turnaround provisions in
accordance with Table D103.4.

Comment: The 2019 City Design and Construction Standards Manual currently has a 110-foot cul-de-sac diameter. The new standard 
will reduce the diameter to 96 feet, per table D103.4 of the IFC.  The current City standard does not allow public dead-end streets to 
terminate in hammerhead turn-arounds due to parking enforcement issues. Temporary hammer-head turnarounds meeting IFC  
constructed in expanded public rights-of-way may permitted on streets that will be extended with future development.

10

TABLE D103.4 
REQUIREMENTS FOR DEAD-END FIRE APPARATUS ACCESS ROADS 
 

LENGTH 
(feet) 

WIDTH 
(feet) TURNAROUNDS REQUIRED 

0—150 20 None required 

151—500 20 

120-foot Hammerhead, 60-foot "Y" or 
96-foot diameter cul-de-sac in 
accordance 
with Figure D103.1 

501—750 26 

120-foot Hammerhead, 60-foot "Y" or 
96-foot diameter cul-de-sac in 
accordance 
with Figure D103.1 

Over 750 Special approval required 
 

Cul-de-sac Design



2018 International Fire Code, Appendix D, Fire Apparatus Roads (continued):
D103.6 Signs

D103.6.1 Roads 20 to 26 Feet in Width

Fire lane signs as specified in Section D103.6 shall be posted on both sides of fire apparatus access roads that are 20 to 26 feet wide 
(6096 to 7925 mm).

D103.6.2 Roads More Than 26 Feet in Width

Fire lane signs as specified in Section D103.6 shall be posted on one side of fire apparatus access roads more than 26 feet wide (7925 
mm) and less than 32 feet wide (9754 mm).

Comment: The International Fire Code allows on street parking on one side for 26-foot-wide streets and parking on both sides for 
streets 32 feet in width. The 2019 Design and Construction Standards currently does not properly denote the required street widths that 
allow for on street parking for various development scenarios. 

Section D104 Commercial and Industrial Developments

D104.1 Buildings Exceeding Three Stories or 30 Feet in Height

Buildings or facilities exceeding 30 feet (9144 mm) or three stories in height shall have not fewer than two means of fire apparatus 
access for each structure.

D104.2 Buildings Exceeding 62,000 Square Feet in Area

Buildings or facilities having a gross building area of more than 62,000 square feet (5760 m2) shall be provided with two separate and 
approved fire apparatus access roads.

Exception: Projects having a gross building area of up to 124,000 square feet (11 520 m2) that have a single approved fire apparatus 
access road where all buildings are equipped throughout with approved automatic sprinkler systems.

D104.3 Remoteness

Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to not less than one half of the length 
of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the lot or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Comment: The Fire Marshall will determine the secondary access road requirements during their review of site plans during the 
development review phase of the project.

11



2018 International Fire Code, Appendix D, Fire Apparatus Roads (continued):
Section D105 Aerial Fire Apparatus Access Roads

D105.1 Where Required

Where the vertical distance between the grade plane and the highest roof surface exceeds 30 feet (9144 mm), approved aerial fire
apparatus access roads shall be provided. For purposes of this section, the highest roof surface shall be determined by measurement 
to the eave of a pitched roof, the intersection of the roof to the exterior wall, or the top of parapet walls, whichever is greater.

D105.2 Width

Aerial fire apparatus access roads shall have a minimum unobstructed width of 26 feet (7925 mm), exclusive of shoulders, in the 
immediate vicinity of the building or portion thereof.

D105.3 Proximity to Building

One or more of the required access routes meeting this condition shall be located not less than 15 feet (4572 mm) and not greater than 
30 feet (9144 mm) from the building, and shall be positioned parallel to one entire side of the building. The side of the building on which 
the aerial fire apparatus access road is positioned shall be approved by the fire code official.

Comment: Most two story homes are greater than 30 feet in height. The public roadway width improvement standards will be modified 
to meet this minimum requirement. The Fire Marshall reviews site building permit applications for building setback distances.

D105.4 Obstructions

Overhead utility and power lines shall not be located over the aerial fire apparatus access road or between the aerial fire apparatus 
road and the building. Other obstructions shall be permitted to be placed with the approval of the fire code official.

Comment: Utility lines are required to be placed underground from existing poles to new buildings. Undergrounding of existing utility 
main lines is not required by the City. Newly created streets (such as in a subdivision) are required to place all utilities underground. 
Building addition, change of use, or building remodeling projects may be required to place the existing utility lines underground, as 
determined by the Fire Marshal during the building permit review process.

Section D106 Multiple-Family Residential Developments

D106.1 Projects Having More Than 100 Dwelling Units

Multiple-family residential projects having more than 100 dwelling units shall be equipped throughout with two separate and approved 
fire apparatus access roads.

Exception: Projects having up to 200 dwelling units shall have not fewer than one approved fire apparatus access road where all 
buildings, including nonresidential occupancies, are equipped throughout with approved automatic sprinkler systems installed in 
accordance with Section 903.3.1.1 or 903.3.1.2. 12



2018 International Fire Code, Appendix D, Fire Apparatus Roads (continued):
D106.2 Projects Having More Than 200 Dwelling Units

Multiple-family residential projects having more than 200 dwelling units shall be provided with two separate and approved fire apparatus 
access roads regardless of whether they are equipped with an approved automatic sprinkler system.

D106.3 Remoteness

Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to not less than one-half of the length 
of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the property or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Comment: The Fire Marshall will determine the secondary access road requirements during their review of site plans during the 
development review phase of the project.

Section D107 One- or Two-Family Residential Developments

D107.1 One- or Two-Family Dwelling Residential Developments

Developments of one- or two-family dwellings where the number of dwelling units exceeds 30 shall be provided with two separate and 
approved fire apparatus access roads.

Exceptions:

1. Where there are more than 30 dwelling units on a single public or private fire apparatus access road and all dwelling units are 
equipped throughout with an approved automatic sprinkler system in accordance with Section 903.3.1.1, 903.3.1.2 or 903.3.1.3, access 
from two directions shall not be required.

2. The number of dwelling units on a single fire apparatus access road shall not be increased unless fire apparatus access roads will 
connect with future development, as determined by the fire code official.

D107.2 Remoteness

Where two fire apparatus access roads are required, they shall be placed a distance apart equal to not less than one-half of the length 
of the maximum overall diagonal dimension of the property or area to be served, measured in a straight line between accesses.

Comment: The Fire Marshall will determine the secondary access road requirements during their review of site plans during the 
development review phase of the project.

13



2019 State Department of Ecology Storm Water Management Manual:
The City of Shelton Storm Water Phase 2 Permit with the State Department of Ecology requires that storm runoff from newly created 
impervious surfaces does not exceed pre-development runoff rates, and that storm runoff from roadway surfaces is treated provided 
prior to entering a conveyance system, such as piping, ditch, streams, or infiltration facilities. The State Department of Ecology Manual 
includes engineering design criteria and standards to meet specified water quantity and quality control standards.

Runoff from public street impervious surfaces includes provisions  for water quantity and quality controls. The street standards revisons
include provisions for a vegetated planter strip between the curb and sidewalk to allow for storm water infiltration, detention, and 
treatment. The roadside planter strip includes various types of vegetation and deciduous street tree plantings to allow for summertime 
shading of the roadway improvements to lower the water runoff temperature. Street tree leaves capture/evaporate rain and tree roots 
uptake water and transpiration occurs from the tree surfaces. Mature street trees remove carbon dioxide from the atmosphere and 
improve the “streetscape”, adding value to nearby properties and to the overall community.

The following street design and construction standard revisions includes provisions for street trees and roadside water quality and 
quantity facilities. 

14



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards:
Chapter 2: Transportation

2.020 Functional Classification: City streets are divided into principal arterials, minor arterials, major collectors, minor collectors, and 
local access streets in response to regional transportation needs and the functional use each serves. See the Comprehensive Plan
Transportation Element for a listing of arterials. Function is the controlling element for classification and shall govern right-of-way, road 
width, and road geometrics. Streets will be classified or reclassified by the City as deemed necessary. See Table 2.050 Minimum Design 
Standards (below).

15



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards (continued):
2.050 Minimum Street Design Standards, Table 2.050 (continued)

16

(1) Additional right of way may be required to accommodate street tree corridor and bus turnout.
(2) An exception to these standards for in-fill development within the Neighborhood Residential (NR) Zoning District provided in
2.100.A.

Comment: Modifications to Table 2.050 to meet the Comprehensive Plan, Development Code, International Fire Code, and State 
Storm Water Manual standards are shown on page 23.



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards (continued):
2.100 Street and Alley Frontage Improvements:

A. All new construction projects, substantial remodels on existing lots, and all short platting of land within Neighborhood Residential 
(NR) Zoning District shall complete improvements (as shown in drawing (T-27) or pay a Frontage Improvement Charge (FIC) in 
conformance with these standards and SMC 12.36 in lieu of the more formal improvements identified in Table 2.050. All projects on the 
critical pedestrian route (see page 2-20a) shall pay the Frontage Improvement Charge (FIC).

Comment: The frontage improvement charge identified in 12.36.020 of the Municipal Code is currently not assessed (the fee is set at 
zero) and street improvements are not being completed. Detail T-27 in the design and construction standards manual requires the 
addition of a nonstructural 12-foot-wide 2-inch thick gravel shoulder in the Neighborhood Residential (NR) zone in lieu paying the FIC. 
The gravel shoulder does not meet the International Fire Code road standards. The critical pedestrian route map is shown on page 18.

B. When constructing right-of-way improvement not associated with new development projects, such as the construction of improved 
driving surfaces, new or upgraded sidewalks/paths, or the installation of new storm water system improvements, it is not necessary that 
the road system be improved to include all elements that constitute full frontage improvements as required by these Standards. In this 
instance, constructed improvements shall meet the minimum standard for the element being constructed and ADA standards for 
accessibility.

Comment: This design standard waives the requirement to construct full street improvements when constructing utility or roadway 
maintenance improvement projects.

C. Unless payment of a FIC is an option, street frontage improvements, in conformance with these standards, will be required along all 
street frontages adjacent to a development. Corner lots are also responsible for improving adjacent street intersections.

Comment: The Frontage Improvement Charge (FIC) methodology does not work as the fee is currently set at zero. Frontage 
improvements should be required in all zoning districts to meet the Comprehensive Plan, Development Code, and International Fire 
Code provisions previously discussed.

D. Minimum improvements, of any development, will require the developer to clear and grade 15’ of right-of-way measured from the
centerline of the right-of-way irrespective of the location of the existing traveled way.

Comment: This standard does not meet the Comprehensive Plan or the International Fire Code standards and would not be applicable 
if street and sidewalk improvements are completed adjacent to all proposed developments.

E. Alley frontage improvements will be required along all adjacent development and shall meet the following requirements:

1. Alleys within the residential zones of the city shall be constructed of compacted crushed aggregate for the full width of the alleys.

Comment: The International Fire Code requires that all roadways are paved with asphalt or concrete to support a 75,000-pound 
vehicle. A revised public alley detail meeting the standards is included as standard detail T-27. 17



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards (continued):

18

2019 Design and Construction 
Standards Manual

Critical Pedestrian Route Map



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards (continued):
2.100 Street and Alley Frontage Improvements (continued):

2. Alleys within the Mixed-Use and Non-Residential zones of the city shall be constructed per section 2.180 of these Standards for the 
full width of the alleyway.

Comment: Section 2.180 requires a 4 inches of asphalt concrete pavement on an aggregate base rock section. A public alley detail 
meeting the standards is included as standard detail T-27.

All plats and re-plats shall install all street and alley frontage improvements at the time designated in the municipal code. Such 
improvements shall include: curb and gutter; sidewalk; storm drainage; street lighting system; traffic signal modification, relocation, or 
installation; utility relocation; landscaping and irrigation; and street improvements per Table 2.050; and any other applicable sections of 
these Standards. Plans shall be prepared and signed by a licensed civil engineer register in the State of Washington.

Comment: There is no reference located to the “time designated in the Municipal Code” for street and alley improvements. The timing 
for the installation of the improvements is identified in SEPA land use approval, or a part of the right-of-way permit issued by the 
Engineering Division. 

2.110 Cul-de-sac

In general, the City discourages the use of cul-de-sacs per Section 2.040 of these Standards. Streets designed to have one end 
permanently closed shall be no longer than 400-feet. At the closed end, there shall be a widened "bulb" having a minimum paved 
traveled radius as shown in the Minimum Street Design Table.

Comment: The Comprehensive Plan design standards requires extension of streets thru development sites to increase neighbor 
circulation and reduce trip lengths. The cul-de-sac bulb radius is modified (reduced) in the revised street standards to meet the current 
International Fire Code standards.

2.120 Temporary Dead Ends

Where a street is temporarily dead ended, turn-around provisions must be provided where the road extends more than 150 feet. The 
turnaround may be a hammerhead with a minimum distance on both sides at the centerline intersection of 60 feet to facilitate emergency 
vehicle turn-around.

Comment: If approved by the City and Fire Marshall, a temporary fire access road turn-around will conform to the dimensions shown in 
Table D-103.4 of the International Fire Code. The turn-around will be constructed in expanded public right-of-way (not in an easement), 
and no parking signs installed around the perimeter of the turn around. 

19



2019 Engineering Design and Construction Standards (continued):
2.130 Half Street

A half street is an otherwise acceptable arterial roadway section modified to conform to limited right-of-way on the boundary of the 
property subject to development, or when constructing a portion of the road section when less capacity is necessary for adequate levels 
of service. A half street may be permitted by the Public Works Director when:

A. Design of a full street, including phasing of construction, is prepared by a licensed professional civil engineer and submitted for 
review and approval by the City; and,

B. A traffic impact analysis is prepared by a licensed professional traffic engineer and submitted for review and approval by the City that 
fulfills City guidelines for a traffic impact analysis and which demonstrates that the half street will be safe and of adequate capacity for 
the use being proposed; and,

C. When required, there is written assurance of obtaining the prescribed additional right-of-way from the adjoining property suitable for 
completion of a full-section roadway; and,

D. Such alignment is consistent with or will establish a circulation pattern.

Comment: Half street frontage improvements occur when properties develop adjacent to existing local, collector, or arterial roadway.  
The development is responsible for the half street improvements per Table 2.050 and right-of-way dedication adjacent to the project site 
as measured from the centerline of the right-of-way. Additional pavement width may be needed on the non-development side of the 
street centerline for the roadway to meet the minimum street width standards with parking on the development side per the International 
Fire Code, and for center turn lane requirements on an arterial road, as discussed further in the next section of this document.

20



Recommended Street Design and Construction Standard Revisions:
The 2019 City of Shelton Engineering Design and Construction Standards currently do not meet the standards outlined in the 2017 City of 
Shelton Comprehensive Plan, the 2018 International Fire Code, the low impact development requirements of the City Phase II NPDES 
Permit (fully implemented standards by March 2024), and the 2019 Storm water Management Manual for Western Washington. The 
standard revisions apply for all new development, infill, or redevelopment of any property within the City limits and/or the Urban Growth 
Area (with approval from the County Commission).

Proposed  modifications to Table 2.050, Minimum Street Design Standards, of the 2019 Design and Construction Standards are shown on 
page 23. Notes at the bottom of the table identify the major revisions that were made to the 2019 street standards. 

The attached standard detail T-22 denotes the proposed pavement sections and access spacing requirements for the various roadway 
classifications to support fire apparatus vehicle loads.

The attached standard details T-23A, T-23B, T-24, T-25, T-26, and T-27 denote the street standards for Primary Arterial, Secondary 
Arterial, Major Collector, Minor Collector, Local Residential, Local Industrial/Commercial, and Alley Roadways.

Minimum Offsite Interim Roadway Improvement Standards:

Per the International Fire Code Section, D102.1 Access and Loading: “Facilities, buildings or portions of buildings hereafter constructed 
shall be accessible to fire department apparatus by way of an approved fire apparatus access road with an asphalt, concrete or other 
approved driving surface capable of supporting the imposed load of fire apparatus weighing up to 75,000 pounds.” 
Substandard roads in the City and/or UGA (such as gravel roads) that are the primary access to a development, redevelopment, or infill 
project site, are required to construct offsite street improvements to meet the International Fire Code requirements. The minimum offsite 
interim roadway improvements consist of 18 feet of asphalt paving, 1-foot-wide gravel shoulders, raising of existing structures, and 
applicable storm drainage improvements. The roadway structural section is to be constructed per standard detail T-22. Offsite 
improvements are to be constructed on the centerline of the right-of-way and extend from the development site along the primary access 
route to the nearest adequately paved roadway, as determined by the City Engineer. Development sites may be required to construct 
additional offsite roadway improvements as outlined in section 2.060, Traffic Impact Analysis of the Engineering Design and Construction 
Standards Manual. Paved secondary access roads to development sites may be required by the Fire Marshall, per the International Fire 
Code requirements.

Half Street Improvement Standards:

Half street roadway improvements and right-of-way dedication adjacent to development site boundaries shall be constructed per the 
applicable standard street details T-22 through T-27. Additional improvements outside of the half street improvements may be required per 
the traffic impact analysis, as outlined in section 2.060, of the Design and Construction Standards Manual. 

21



Recommended Design and Construction Standard Revisions (continued):
Half Street Improvement Standards (continued):

On-street parking is required on both sides of all local streets and minor collectors adjacent to all development sites. Half street 
improvements shall include parking on one side of the street and have a minimum width of 26 feet, per the Uniform Fire Code 
requirements.

Redevelopment of all sites in the City adjacent to existing public right-of-way(s) shall dedicate the applicable right-of-way and construct 
new and/or reconstruct existing improvements to conform to adopted design and construction standards applicable to the roadway 
classification. Existing improvements shall be installed, reconstructed, and/or repaired to meet current standards, including curbs, 
sidewalks, driveways, street trees, planters, drainage improvements, and the roadway wearing surface and structural section from the 
right-of-way centerline, as determined and approved by the City Engineer. Site redevelopment is defined as projects where the proposed 
onsite improvements exceed fifty percent of the existing pre-development accessed value of the property and improvements, and the 
increase in weekly daily trip generation exceeds 8.0 trips/day per the latest version of the Institute of Traffic Engineers (ITE) Trip 
Generation Manual. 

Frontage Improvement Charge:

References to the frontage improvement charge are removed from the Municipal Code and Engineering Design and Construction 
Standards Manual.

Street Trees:

Street trees (1-1/2” minimum caliper) are to be installed at an average spacing of 30 feet on-center with a root barrier to reduce the risk of 
sidewalk heaving along all existing and proposed right-of-way frontage(s). The “as planted” spacing of the trees will vary site by site and is 
dependent on the variety of the tree and field modifications to the tree spacing due to street lights, water meters, fire-hydrants, driveway 
approaches, ADA ramps, etc. 

Sidewalk, Planter Strip, and Street Tree Maintenance:

The maintenance of right-of-way street trees, sidewalks, and roadway planter strips and/or storm water bio-swales, are the responsibility of 
the adjacent property owner, including parcels that have multiple right-of-way frontages.

22



Recommended Design and Construction Standard Revisions (continued):
Downtown District Street, Sidewalk, and Street Tree Standard Modifications:

The City of Shelton Downtown District boundary is described below, which includes all internal streets and abutting properties:

The properties west of Front Street, south of Cedar Street, east of 7th Street, with the southern limit extending to include properties 
with frontage on Cota Street between 7th and Front Street.

A. Downtown District local streets designated in the latest City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan shall be constructed to the local 
commercial street standards with on street parking both sides.  All existing local streets improved with portland cement concrete 
paving for over 50 percent of the block length shall be reconstructed and/or repaired with portland cement concrete pavement. 

B. Downtown District collector and arterial streets designated in the latest City of Shelton Comprehensive Plan shall be constructed to 
the applicable collector or arterial street standards with on street parking both sides.

C. Downtown District sidewalks shall be a minimum of 10 feet in width as measured from the curb line. The sidewalk shall extend from 
the curb line to the right-of-way for all zero lot line constructed buildings.

D. Downtown District street trees (1-1/2” minimum caliper) are to be installed at an average spacing of 30 feet on-center with root barrier 
to reduce the risk of sidewalk heaving along all existing and proposed right-of-way frontage(s). The “as planted” spacing of the trees 
will vary site by site and is dependent on the variety of the tree and field modifications to the tree spacing due to street lights, water 
meters, fire-hydrants, door entrances, awnings, ADA ramps, etc. All downtown street trees shall be installed with a metal grate and 
frame per the current city standard drawing.

E. The maintenance Downtown District right-of-way street trees, and sidewalks, are the responsibility of the City of Shelton.

23



Recommended Design and Construction Standard Revisions (continued):

24



Questions?

Next Steps:

1. Is Council interested in continuing the discussion to update the street 
improvement standards?

2. If so, are all of the proposed changes acceptable, do some standards 
need clarification, or is additional information needed? 

Please feel free to call or email me with any additional questions.

Thank You.

Jay Harris
City of Shelton
Public Works Director
360-432-5125
jay.harris@sheltonwa.gov

25



     
 

 



     
 

 



     
 

 



     
 

 



     
 

 



     
 

 



     
 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F2) 

Touch Date:  01/05/2021              
Brief Date:     01/19/2021 
Action Date:  020/2/2021 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By: Aaron BeMiller 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
 2020 Supplemental Budget 2 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Ordinance No. 1964-0121 

 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
1/7/2021 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
1/7/2021 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
1/7/2021 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
1/7/2021      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The City Council passed Ordinance No. 1941-1019, adopting the City’s 2020 Budget on December 3rd, 
2019 and subsequently passed supplemental budget Ordinance 1950-0320, adjusting the adopted budget 
on December 15, 2020.  This supplemental Ordinance will increase the expenditure authority of two funds 
(Bond and Sewer) as necessary to record the paying off of old debt from the October 2020 refunding.   

   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move that we forward this Ordinance to the February 2nd City Council meeting and place it on the Action 
Agenda for further consideration.” 

 



  

 
ORDINANCE NO. 1964-0121 

 
AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AMENDING THE ANNUAL 

BUDGET FOR THE YEAR ENDING DECEMBER 31, 2020 
 
 
 WHEREAS, the Shelton City Council adopted the 2020 budget pursuant to Ordinance No. 1941-
1019; and 
 

WHEREAS, the City is prohibited from over expending its appropriated budget as set forth in 
Ordinance No. 1941-1019; and 

 
WHEREAS, certain revisions to the 2020 budget are now necessary and the City Council finds 

that the proposed adjustments to the 2020 Adopted Budget are justified; 
 

NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington: 
 

 Section 1.  
 
The adjustments as provided in this Ordinance to amend the 2020 Annual Budget of the City of Shelton, 
Washington, are hereby adopted. In summary form, the appropriation adjustments for each separate fund 
and the aggregate totals for all such funds combined is presented in the table below.  Exhibit A, attached 
to this Ordinance, provides additional information on the adjustments. 
 

       

Fund

2020
Adopted 
Budget

2020
Adjustment

2020
Revised
Budget

General Fund 12,290,690$        -$                      12,290,690$        
Street Fund 2,280,650            -                        2,280,650            
Capital Resources Fund -                        -                        -                        
Tourism Fund 81,180                  -                        81,180                  
Bond Fund 184,490                3,539,360            3,723,850            
Capital Improvement Fund 2,138,630            -                        2,138,630            
Water Fund 3,720,740            -                        3,720,740            
Sewer Fund 6,017,330            -                        6,017,330            
Solid Waste Fund 1,459,020            -                        1,459,020            
Storm Drainage Fund 1,275,710            6,410,800            7,686,510            
Payroll Benefits Fund 219,200                -                        219,200                
Equipment Maint & Rental Fund 863,720                -                        863,720                
Firefighters Pension Fund 98,570                  -                        98,570                  
Library Endowment Fund -                        -                        -                        
Total Expenditure Budget 30,629,930$       9,950,160$         40,580,090$        

 
Section 2. 

 
This shall take effect five days after its approval and publication as required by law. 
 
INTRODUCED the 19th day of January 2021. 
 



  

ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular open 
public meeting held the 2nd day of February 2021. 
 
 
       
Passed this ______ day of _________________ 2021. 
 
 
 
  _____________________ 
  Kevin Dorcy, Mayor 
  
  AUTHENTICATED:  
 
  _____________________ 

Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



  

Exhibit A 
City of Shelton 

Ordinance No. 1964-0121 
 
 
In October the City refunded seven separate debt instruments into a single General Obligation bond.  The 
refunding generated a savings to the City of over $3 million and shortened the final maturity date of the 
debt from 2052 to 2047.  Accounting rules provide that the City run the payoff amounts, principal and 
interest, of the refunded debt through our books.  The amounts below provide the necessary budget 
authority for the debt payoff.  The resource for paying off the refunded debt is bond proceeds. 
 
Bond Fund                              $3,539,360 
Increases budget authority for the payoff of the 2011 Series A & B Fire Station GO bonds. 
 
Sewer Fund                        $6,410,800 
Increases budget authority to pay off four loans from the State Department of Ecology (2008 WWTP 
Improvements A, 2010 Goldsborough Creek Sewer Improvements B, 2011 Basin 5 Sewer Rehab Design, 
and 2012 Basin 3 Sewer Rehab Design) and the 2012 A WWTP Revenue and Refunding Bond.    
 
 
 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item F3) 

Touch Date: 11/02/2020 
Brief Date:       01/19/2021 
Action Date:  02/02/2021 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Res. No. 1183-1120 On-Call Qualified 
Pool List Contracts 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Res. No 1183-1120 
- Request for Qualifications (RFQ) 
- Statement of Criteria Applied for     

Scoring 
- List of Pools and Selected Firms 
- Example Contract   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

Due to limited staff, occasionally throughout the year there is a need to supplement City staff in order to 
complete designs, feasibility studies, traffic studies, and other engineering and specialized services. The 
uniform requirements of RCW 39.80 need to be followed when procuring professional architecture and 
engineering (A&E) contracts, regardless of the anticipated contract dollar amount. Unlike other types of 
contracts which are awarded to the lowest responsible bidder, A&E contracts are awarded primarily based on 
qualifications, known as qualification-based selection (QBS). Due to the lengthy, time consuming process to 
acquire A&E services, City staff has chosen to develop a qualified pool of consultants for twelve different 
categories of work. Once the category pools are established, work can be assigned to a consultant via task 
order, rather than completing the full A&E process for each time a need arises. During October and November, 
staff solicited proposals from consulting firms interested in providing on-call services to the City. Eighteen firms 
submitted proposals in response to the RFQ (Request for Qualifications), many of them submitting for multiple 
categories of work. Using the Statement of Applied Criteria, staff evaluated 56 separate proposals overall. After 
the evaluations were complete, the scores were tallied and averaged for each submittal and only the top three 
(or four, in cases where there was a tie) firms per category of work, which achieved an average score of 85 or 
higher, will be offered to enter into contract negotiations with the City. 

Once a firm is under contract, work will be assigned by Task Orders, prepared and issued for each distinct 
project. Task Orders will only be assigned as budget allows, and will be fully executed by the appropriate City 
signing authority.  

  
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  

The Council has the option to reject the contracts and rely on staff, or when needed, have staff follow the 
formal RFQ process for any A&E professional services that may be needed. This option is not recommended 
as the current staff level and workload has the potential to create a situation where staff may not be able to 
respond in as timely a manner as desired to multiple smaller projects. This would be further complicated by not 
having an on-call contract in place, as the process to prepare, advertise, review, and then award a contract can 
take several weeks to months. With this on-call contract pool in place, staff can quickly secure A&E services 
assistance within as little as 48 hours to one week, to support the City’s needs. 
   



Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
There is no immediate impact to the budget as the contracts are structured to not guarantee a minimum level 

of work or compensation. With this provision, only A&E services anticipated in the current budget, or those 
approved through modification of the budget, would be supported by these contracts. Task Orders issued for 
assignments that exceed the City Manager’s signing authority of $30,000 will be brought to Council for 
consideration.   
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information for this can be obtained through the Public Works Department.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

Staff recommends the following motion: “I move to forward Resolution Number 1183-1120 to the Action 
Agenda for the February 2nd Council meeting”.   



RESOLUTION NO. 1183-1120 

 

A RESOLUTION OF THE COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, AUTHORIZING THE 
CITY MANAGER TO ENTER INTO ARCHITECUTRE AND ENGINEERING SERVICES AGREEMENTS 

WITH MULTIPLE CONSULTANTS FOR THE ON-CALL QUALIFIED POOL LIST 

 

WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have several category pools of architecture and 
engineering services consultants available on an on-call, as needed basis; and 

WHEREAS, the City solicited proposals from consulting firms interested in providing on-call 
services to the City; and 

WHEREAS, eighteen firms submitted 56 proposals in response to the solicitation, many of the 
firms proposing for multiple categories of work; and 

WHEREAS, a panel of staff evaluated and scored all 56 proposals; and 

WHEREAS, staff determined the firms that scored an average of 85 or above were the most 
qualified; and 

WHEREAS, staff further narrowed each category pool by accepting the top three or four scoring 
firms; and 

WHEREAS, thirteen firms will be offered a Contract to perform services in eleven different 
categories of work; and  

WHEREAS, the Contracts do not guarantee a minimum level of work or compensation; and 

WHEREAS, Task Order assignments will only be issued for services that are anticipated in the 
current budget, or those approved through modification of the budget. 

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Shelton that the City Manager is 
authorized to sign Contracts for architecture and engineering services with the consultant firms on 
the On-Call Qualified Pool list, attached as Exhibit A to this Resolution. 

Passed by the City Council at its regular meeting held on the 2nd day of February, 2021. 

 

                                                               ___________________________________ 
 Mayor Dorcy 
ATTEST:  
  
____________________________ 
City Clerk Nault  



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 1 of 13 
 

CITY OF SHELTON—PUBLIC WORKS 
INVITATIONS TO SUBMIT STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 

ON-CALL QUALIFIED POOL LIST 
 
The City of Shelton, Washington is accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from qualified 
engineering consulting firms to provide a variety of municipal services, via the On-Call Qualified Pool 
List.  These services are intended to complement and augment capabilities that are otherwise 
unavailable to the City. 

 
The following content is provided in this Request for Qualifications (RFQ) to assist statement 
preparation. 
 
SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION 

1.01 Request and Proposal 
1.02 Schedule 
1.03 Inquiries 
1.04 Submitting Proposals 
1.05 Proposal Withdrawal 
1.06 Rejection or Acceptance of Proposals 
1.07 Proposing for Multiple Categories of Work 
1.08 Multiple Awards, Contract Term, and Re-Qualification 
1.09 Public Records 
1.10 Recycled Products Statement 
1.11 Confirmation of Business Organization 
1.12 Federal, state, and Local Requirements 
 

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF WORK 
2.01 General 
2.02 Category Specific Scopes of Work 
2.03 Assignments of Work 
 

SECTION 3. PROPOSAL REQUIREMENTS AND EVALUATION 
3.01 Proposal Submittal 
3.02 Incurred Costs 
3.03 Content of Proposals and Evaluation Criteria 
 

APPENDIX A CONFIRMATION OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION FORM 
 
APPENDIX B PROPOSED PROJECTS FOR NEXT FIVE YEARS 

 
 
 
 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 2 of 13 
 

SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION: 
 
1.01 Request and Proposal 

Three unbound hard copies and one digital copy of the written materials in response to this 
Request for Qualifications (RFQ) must be submitted no later than the due date of 2:00 p.m. local 
time on Tuesday, November 17, 2020, to Brooke Kilts, Public Works Administrative Manager. 
 
Proposers responding to this qualifications request must follow the directions stated within this 
RFQ. Adherence to these rules will ensure a fair and objective analysis of the qualifications. 
Proposals should be prepared simply and economically. Special bindings, colored displays, 
promotional materials, etc., are not necessary. Emphasis should be on completeness, brevity, 
and clarity of the content. 
 
Provide a clear and concise description of your firm’s capabilities to meet the RFQ requirements. 
Proposers must demonstrate prior experience in this type of work within the last five (5) years. 
All responses must be made in the format outlined in Section 3. Failure to comply with or 
complete any part of this request may result in the rejection of your proposal. 
 
The City will select consultants through a Qualifications Based Selection (“QBS”) procedure in 
accordance with RCW 39.80. 
 

1.02 Schedule 
Advertisement      October 22, 2020 
Proposal Due      November 17, 2020, 2:00 pm 
Council Approval of On-Call Pool List   *January 5, 2021 
  *These dates are approximate and subject to change 

 
1.03 Inquires 

Inquiries regarding this RFQ can be directed to the Public Works Administrative Manager, 
Brooke Kilts, via email to brooke.kilts@sheltonwa.gov. In your email subject line, reference ‘On-
Call Qualified Pool List’. Response to inquiries cannot be guaranteed unless received by email 
prior to 2:00 p.m., Monday, November 9, 2020. No oral responses to questions by City 
personnel about the RFQ will be binding on the City. All written answers to questions received 
prior to the deadline will be posted by end of business day on November 10, 2020 to the City of 
Shelton website located at: 
https://www.sheltonwa.gov/business_development/rfp_and_bid_opportunities.php 
The City reserves the discretion to group similar questions to provide a single answer or not to 
respond when the requested information is confidential. 
 

1.04 Submitting Proposals 
Three (3) hard copy unbound proposals and one (1) digital copy of the complete Statement of 
Qualifications are due to the City of Shelton, Washington, Department of Public Works Office 
prior to the date and time stated in the Schedule. Submittals that are late, incomplete, or 

mailto:brooke.kilts@sheltonwa.gov
https://www.sheltonwa.gov/business_development/rfp_and_bid_opportunities.php


 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 3 of 13 
 

misdirected will be considered non-responsive, with no exceptions. The City of Shelton relies on 
the City’s own computer system clock to determine the correct time and is not responsible for 
any delays or difficulties experienced in the submittal of a Proposal. Proposals may be hand-
delivered or mailed.  Fax and email submissions WILL NOT be accepted and will be considered 
non-responsive to this RFQ.   
 
Three (3) hard copies and one (1) digital copy of the proposal must be submitted in a sealed 
envelope, clearly marked as follows: 
    
    City of Shelton 
    Attention: Brooke Kilts, Public Works Administrative Manager 
    Subject: On-Call Qualified Pool List 
    525 West Cota Street 
    Shelton, WA  98584 
 
Failure to clearly identify the Proposal may cause misrouting of the Proposal and late delivery, 
resulting in disqualification. 
 

1.05 Proposal Withdrawal 
Any proposal may be withdrawn at any time before the “Proposal Due” date and time specified 
in Section 1.02 Schedule, by providing a written request for the withdrawal of the proposal to 
the City. A duly authorized representative of the firm shall execute the request. Withdrawal of a 
proposal will not prejudice the right of the proposer to file a new proposal on this or future 
projects. 
 

1.06 Rejection or Acceptance of Proposals 
The City expressly reserves the following rights to: 

a. Disregard any or all irregularities in the proposals. 
b. Reject any or all of the proposals or portions thereof. 
c. Base award with due regard to quality and timeliness of services, experience, compliance 

with the RFQ, and other factors as may be necessary under such circumstances. 
d. Reject all proposals and re-advertise at the City’s sole discretion. 

 
1.07 Proposing for Multiple Categories of work 

The City seeks prime consultants for each Category. The City is not seeking comprehensive 
teams or prime/sub combinations. Proposers may respond to one or more Categories. If 
responding to multiple Categories: 

• A single proposal may be provided 
• The total number of pages for the proposal should not exceed five (5) pages. An 

additional page can be added for each additional category proposed on. 
• Complete your proposal as specified in Section 3. 

 
 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 4 of 13 
 

1.08 Multiple Awards, Contract Term, and Re-Qualification 
The City intends to award multiple contracts as a result of this RFQ. We aim to develop a 
qualified pool of consultants for each category of work; awarding no more than five (5) contracts 
for each category. 
 
An initial Contract Term of two (2) years will be offered, with two optional one-year extensions 
upon written agreement. 
 
In December of each contract year, firms currently on the qualified pool list will be asked to re-
qualify by submitting new qualifications under this RFQ. The City can choose to terminate 
qualified pool(s) at any time. The City makes no guarantee as to the size or frequency of task 
orders assigned under awarded contracts. 
 
The City reserves the right to terminate the contract and/or remove any Consultant not meeting 
the specifications of the RFQ from the qualified pool. 
 

1.09 Public Records 
Any material submitted by the proposer shall become the property of the City unless otherwise 
specified. During the evaluation of proposals and the selection of the Consultant, the proposals 
shall be confidential. After the selection process has been completed, the proposals shall be 
open to public inspection. Proposals should not contain any information that the proposers do 
not wish to become public. If it is necessary to submit confidential information in order to 
comply with the terms and conditions of this RFQ, each page containing confidential information 
should be clearly marked, “NOT FOR PUBLIC DISCLOSURE CONFIDENTIAL TRADE SECRETS”. The 
City accepts no liability for the inadvertent or unavoidable release of any confidential 
information submitted, and claims arising out of any public record request for such information 
shall be at the proposer’s expense. 
 

1.10 Recycled Products Statement 
Proposers shall use recyclable products to the maximum extent economically feasible in the 
preparation of the proposals, and the selected proposer shall continue the same practice in the 
performance of the contract work. 
 

1.11 Confirmation of Business Organization 
The proposer shall identify the business organization under which it operates (form provided in 
RFQ as Appendix A).  Partnerships and joint ventures will list each member’s name, address, 
business license, tax ID, telephone and fax numbers on a separate sheet of paper attached to 
the proposal. This page will not be included in your total page count. Failure to complete and 
include this form in your submittal may be considered non-responsive. 
 
 
 
 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 5 of 13 
 

1.12 Federal, State, and Local Requirements 
The selected proposer shall comply with all Federal, State, and local laws, regulations, executive 
orders, and ordinances applicable to the work under this contract. In addition, the proposer 
agrees to comply with: 
 

a. Title VI of the Civil Rights Act of 1964; 
b. Section V of the Rehabilitation Act of 1973; 
c. The American with Disabilities Act of 1990 
d. All regulations and administrative rules established pursuant to the foregoing laws; and 
e. All other applicable requirements of Federal and State civil rights and rehabilitation 

statures, rules, and regulations. 
 
The City of Shelton hereby notifies that it will affirmatively ensure that in any agreement 
entered into pursuant to this invitation, minority business enterprises will be afforded full 
opportunity to submit a statement of qualifications in response to this invitation and will not be 
discriminated against on the grounds of race, color, sex, religion, or national origin in 
consideration for an award. 

 
The City of Shelton is an Equal Opportunity Employer and does not discriminate against any 
person, firm partnership, or organization as it pertains to race, color, religion, sex, age, national 
origin, marital status, sexual orientation, medical condition, physical handicap or disability.  Any 
person, firm, partnership, or organization contracting with or doing business with the City shall 
be in conformity with the City’s policy on non-discrimination. 
 

SECTION 2. SCOPE OF WORK: 
 

The City has ongoing needs for professional services. These needs include emergencies, 
development projects, repairs, renovations, new construction projects, and supplemental 
internal staffing. The City aims to establish a pool of on-call consultants from which to draw as 
these needs arise. 
 
Consultant shall provide engineering and/or architectural services to the City of Shelton on an 
on-call basis.  The general scope of services needed by the City of Shelton typically fall into the 
following categories: 
• Water and Wastewater Treatment 
• Stormwater and Wastewater Systems and Conveyance 
• Water System Conveyance, Pumping, and Storage 
• Geotechnical and Geological 
• Environmental Studies and Design 
• Materials Testing 
• Landscape Architecture 
• Survey and Mapping 
• Street and Roadway Engineering 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 6 of 13 
 

• Traffic Engineering 
• Architectural Engineering and Design 
• System Master Planning 
 
While we expect to utilize the pool for many of our engineering, architectural, and planning 
needs, the City reserves the right to select consultants outside of the pool via MRSC Small 
Works/Consultant Roster, formal RFQ, current Contracted Consultants, and/or perform work 
with City staff, as determined by and in the best interest of the City. 
 

2.01 General 
The Consultant will provide one or more of the Category of services shown in 2.02 below. The 
City seeks prime consultants for each Category. The City is not seeking comprehensive teams or 
prime/sub combinations. The work may include provision of preliminary engineering, final 
design, budgeting, construction estimating, creating schedules, public involvement planning and 
facilitation, land use planning, construction engineering, construction inspection, contract bid 
documents, survey, testing, or any combination of these services. 
 
Some tasks will require licensed professionals, such as Professional Engineer or Registered 
Architect. When required by the City, the selected Consultant shall provide proof of such license 
or registration to practice in the State of Washington. 
 

2.02 Category Specific Scopes of Work 
 

5.02.1 Water and Wastewater Treatment 
May include: review, analysis, feasibility, and/or design of existing or new City water and 
wastewater treatment, as well as water reclamation processes and facilities. 
 
5.02.2 Stormwater and Wastewater Systems & Conveyance 
May include: review, analysis, Inflow & Infiltration Study, feasibility, planning, and/or design of 
existing or new City collection and conveyance systems. 
 
5.02.3 Water System Conveyance, Pumping, and Storage 
May include: review, analysis, feasibility, planning, and/or design of existing or new City 
infrastructure and systems. 
 
5.02.4 Geotechnical and Geological Engineering 
May include: investigation of subsurface conditions and materials, monitoring of site conditions, 
earthwork, and foundation construction, evaluation and assessment of site conditions, and/or 
prediction, prevention, and mitigation of potential damage caused by natural hazards. 
 
5.02.5 Environmental Studies and Design 
May include: modeling, lab and field studies in order to design, plan, and implement measures 
to prevent, control, or remediate environmental hazards within the City. 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 7 of 13 
 

 
5.02.6 Materials Testing 
Materials testing services on Public Works Projects may include, but not limited to: Field Density 
testing, HMA compaction, HMA compliance testing, concrete compliance testing, concrete 
strength testing, and acceptance sampling. 
 
5.02.7 Landscape Architecture 
May include: consultation and/or design of landscape plans, plant selection type, and irrigation 
design for City projects or within the City Right of Way.  
 
5.02.8 Survey and Mapping 
May include: review, analysis, and/or creating legal descriptions, easements, topographic and 
ALTA surveys, filing records of survey, lot line adjustment surveys, and construction staking. 
 
5.02.9 Transportation Engineering 
May include engineering and design services related to or for the construction of: roadways, 
pedestrian and bikeway facilities, drainage, water, and sewer facilities, traffic signals, 
landscaping and irrigation systems, intelligent transportation systems, street lighting, and other 
related facilities within the road rights-of-way or easements.  
 
5.02.10 Traffic Engineering 
May include engineering and design services related to or for the construction of: pedestrian 
and bikeway facilities, traffic signals, intelligent transportation systems, street lighting, signing 
and pavement marking and other related facilities within the road Right of Way or easements. 
May include traffic analysis evaluations. 
 
5.02.11 Architectural Engineering and Design 
May include: review, analysis, and/or design of existing or proposed City facilities such as 
buildings, parking lots, sewer lift stations, park structures, etc. 
 
5.02.12 System Master Planning 
May include: modeling, data collection, planning, analysis, and cost estimating of existing or 
proposed City transportation, water, sanitary sewer, or storm drainage systems. The City is in 
the process of completing updates to the Water Comprehensive Plan and the Wastewater 
Comprehensive Plan. The City has interest in developing future ADA/Pedestrian/Bike 
Improvement Plan and a Stormwater Comprehensive Plan, as determined in future budget 
cycles. 

 
2.03 Assignment of Work 

Pricing information will not be considered when evaluating consultants for contracts through 
this initial RFQ process. Once the Qualified Pool List is established and Contracts are executed 
with the selected consultants, Task Orders may be assigned. 
 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 8 of 13 
 

When determining which Consultant from a Category Pool will be assigned a Task Order, the 
following criteria will be considered: 

• Experience and qualifications for the work; 
• Responsiveness, availability, and capacity; 
• Ability to meet schedule; 
• Staff experience, unique knowledge, specialized expertise, and qualifications; 
• Customer Service; 
• Quality of work; 
• Approach to the work. 

 
The City may select Consultants for an assignment through a competitive process, such as a 
Request for Proposals from one, several, or all Consultants on the Category Pool. 
 
Some tasks will require negotiation between the City and Consultant. City reserves the right to 
cease negotiations and begin negotiations with another qualified Consultant, in the event 
negotiations are not successful. 
 

Section 3. Proposal Requirements and Evaluation: 
 

3.01 Proposal Submittal 
To receive consideration, submit proposals in accordance with the following instructions: 
 
Proposals should be prepared simply and economically, providing a straightforward, concise 
description of proposer’s capabilities to satisfy the requirements of the RFQ. Emphasis should 
be on completeness and clarity of the content. 

 
The City, at its sole discretion, has the right to negotiate with any or all proposers regarding their 
proposals. Additionally, the City may reject or accept any or all proposals or parts thereof, 
submitted in response to this RFQ. 
 
The City recognizes that in the submittal of proposals, certain information is proprietary to the 
proposer and that the safeguarding of this information is necessary. Accordingly, the City will 
make every effort to prevent any disclosure of data supplied by any proposer where the 
proposer identifies those portion of its proposal that are proprietary. See Section 1.09, Public 
Records. 
 
The proposal is due by the date and time indicated in Section 1.01. Proposals submitted after 
this time will not be accepted. See Section 1.04 for more information on the proposal 
submission. 
 

3.02 Incurred Costs 
The City is not liable for any costs incurred by proposers in the preparation and/or presentation 
of their proposals. 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 9 of 13 
 

 
3.03 Content of Proposals and Evaluation Criteria 

All proposals shall include the information identified in the following. The evaluation criteria and 
maximum possible points are noted for each item of information. An explanation of each item 
appears immediately in the following sub-sections. 
 

CONTENT AND EVALUATION CRITERIA MAXIMUM SCORE 
1.          Introductory Letter 10 
2.          Key personnel qualifications 30 
3.          Approach to Project Development and Project Management 30 
4.          Organizational Structure and Experience 30 

                                                                                                               TOTAL = 100 
 
All supplemental information shall be presented in a separate section at the end of the proposal.  
The total number of pages for the proposal should not exceed five (5) pages. An additional page 
can be added for each additional category proposed on. Front and back covers, and the 
Confirmation of Business Organization page (Appendix A), are not counted in the page limit 
requirements. One-Page resumes for key personnel, maximum of three pages, can also be 
included and will not be considered in the total page count limit. Each page shall be 8½“ x 11”, 
unless otherwise noted. When using double-sided printing, each side of the page is counted as 
one page.  
 
3.03.1 Introductory Letter 
The introductory letter shall include, but need not be limited to, the following information: 

• An introduction to the Firm and a brief background of the Firm’s capabilities and 
experiences 

• The name of the firm, as well as, the signature, printed name and title, telephone 
number and email address of the officer authorized to represent the Consultant in any 
correspondence, negotiations, and sign any contracts that may result. 

• A clear list of the categories for which proposals are being submitted. 
 

The proposer may use this section to introduce the proposal or to summarize the key provisions 
of the proposal. 
 
3.03.2 Key Personnel Qualifications 
Provide a statement that portrays how the qualifications and experience of the Consultant’s key 
personnel relate to the described work, and successful projects/familiarity with the City of 
Shelton. 
 
Scoring will be based on relevance of the experience, qualifications, and technical competence 
of Project Manager and key staff. 
 
 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 10 of 13 
 

3.03.3 Approach to Project Development and Project Management 
Provide a description of your firm’s approach to developing and managing City projects and 
working with a City assigned project manager. How does your firm address critical project 
milestones, and adjust schedules and resources to meet changing conditions that are often 
encountered throughout a project? Demonstrate your firm’s ability to complete projects on time 
and within budget. 
 
3.03.04 Organizational Structure and Experience 
Briefly describe your organization and its history. You may provide an organization chart (not 
included in page count) if you wish. 
 
List three projects or contracts in which you provided services similar or equal to the service 
Category you are proposing/responding to. State some of the key challenges for each project 
and how each was resolved. Include whether the project was completed on-time and within 
budget, explaining why budget and/or scheduling issues occurred. Provide a reference for each 
project including name, phone number, and email address. If proposing for more than one 
Category, provide a response for each Category proposed. 

 
 
  



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 11 of 13 
 

APPENDIX A 
CONFIRMATION OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION FORM 

 
CITY OF SHELTON 

INVITATIONS TO SUBMIT STATEMENT OF QUALIFICATIONS 
ON-CALL QUALIFIED POOL LIST 
 

 
  

 
Identification of Business Organization: 
 
The proposer, by checking the applicable box, represents that it operates as: 
 
[   ]  a corporation incorporated under the laws of the State of Washington 
 
[    ] an individual doing business as _________________________________ 
 
[    ]   a partnership (identify all partners on a separate page, attached) 
 
[    ] a joint venture (identify all joint ventures on a separate page, attached) 
 
[    ] other (please specify)       
 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Proposer or Company Name    Washington UBI # 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Address of Proposer     Federal Tax ID # 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Telephone Number     Signature 
 
_________________________   _________________________ 
Email       Signature Name and Title (print) 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
  



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 12 of 13 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

This Page Intentionally Left Blank 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 



 
City of Shelton 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ   Page 13 of 13 
 

APPENDIX B 
PROPOSED PROJECTS NEXT FIVE YEARS 

 
Below is a partial list of proposed projects. More information on the proposed 2021 projects can be found on 
the City of Shelton Website under Public Works, Engineering and Capital Projects. 
 

• Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant Expansion 
• Satellite Wastewater Treatment Plant Reclaimed Tank 
• Front Street Pipe Removal 
• Forcemain Inspection & Repair 
• Main Wastewater Treatment Plan Slack Tide Tank 
• Inflow & Infiltration Studies 
• Sewer Basin 4 I&I Reduction 
• 2nd & Birch House Removal & Creek Restoration 
• Stormwater Master Plan 
• High School Tank Recoating 
• Water Meter AMI Upgrade 
• System Repair & Replacement 
• Hydrant Improvements 
• Well 1 to High School Tank Pipe Pressurization 
• Water AWIA Risk and Resiliency Assessment 
• Well Rehabilitation and Pump Projects 
• Civic Center Parking Lot 
• Western Gateway 
• Wallace Kneeland Roundabouts – A & B 
• Olympic Highway North – C to K & K to Wallace Kneeland 
• Annual Residential Paving & Chip Seal 
• Maintenance Division Laydown Yard 
• C Street Landfill Remediation & Cleanup 



Page 1 of 2 
 

Statement of Criteria Applied 
On-Call Qualified Pool List RFQ 
By: Brooke Kilts, Public Works Administrative Manager 
 
Submissions were considered responsive based on:  

• Received prior to deadline (section 1.04) 
• Three hardcopies and one digital copy of submittal in sealed envelope with correct identification (section 

1.04) 
• Completed Confirmation of Business Organization page, Appendix A (Section 1.11) 
• No more than 5 pages, not counting front and back covers, Org. Chart, or Appendix A.  

Additional pages for each additional category proposed on and up to three resume pages per category are 
allowed. (When pages are double-sided, each side is counted as one page) (Section 3.03) 
 

Following my review of the 18 proposals received, it is my opinion 17 submissions are responsive: Consultant Fehr 
& Peers did not include Appendix A, Confirmation of Business Organization in their submission. I have provided 
scoring sheets for their proposal and 1 point shall be deducted from their overall score, as noted below. 
 

On-Call Qualified Pool List Content and Evaluation Criteria 
 

Item 1: Introductory Letter – RFQ Section 3.03.1 - Max 10 pts – shall include but not be limited to:  an 
introduction to the Firm and a brief background of the Firm’s capabilities and experiences,  the 
name of the firm and the name, signature, title, telephone number, and email address of the 
officer authorized to sign contracts and  a clear list of categories for which proposals are being 
submitted.  
 
10 pts Included all requirements listed above 
8 pts Missing one item of information listed in  and/or  
6 pts Missing two items of information listed in  and/or  
4 pts Missing three items of information listed in and/or  
2 pt Missing four items of information listed in  and/or  
0 pts Missing more than four items of information listed in  and/or  OR failed to include  
 

Item 2: Key Personnel Qualifications – RFQ Section 3.03.2 – Max 30 pts – Based on relevance of the 
experience, qualifications, and technical competence of Project Manager and key staff. 
 
21-30 pts 10+ years of relevant experience AND demonstrates qualifications and technical 

competence of PM/key staff 
11-20 pts  <9 years of relevant experience AND demonstrates qualifications and technical 

competence of PM/key staff 
0-10 pts Any number of years experience but unable to demonstrate qualifications and 

technical competence of PM/key staff 
 

Item 3: Approach to Project Development and Project Management – RFQ Section 3.03.3 – Max 30 pts 
– Based on: the firm’s approach to developing and managing City projects and working with 
a City assigned project manager. Firm is to describe how they will address critical project 
milestones, and adjust schedules and resources to meet changing conditions that are often 
met throughout a project, as well as demonstrate the firm’s ability to complete projects on 
time and within budget. 

 
21-30 pts Clearly defines/describes all 5 aspects noted above  
11-20 pts Clearly defines/describes only 4 aspects noted above  



Page 2 of 2 
 

  0-10 pts Clearly defines/describes only 3 or fewer aspects noted above OR provides more 
than three but done very poorly 

 
Item 4: Organizational Structure and Experience – RFQ Section 3.03.04 – Max 30 pts – Firm is to list 

three projects or contracts in which they provided similar or equal services to the service 
Category they are proposing on. For each project listed, they are to state some of the key 
challenges and how each was resolved, state whether the project was completed on-time and 
within budget, and why budget and/or scheduling issues occurred, if any, and provide a 
reference including name, phone number, and email address.  
*If proposing for more than one Category, a response for each Category proposed is required. 

 
21-30 pts All three projects/contracts are similar or equal to the proposed Category and each 

include all three key items noted above 
11-20 pts Only two of the project/contracts are similar or equal to the proposed Category OR 

one of the project/contracts is missing one of the three key items noted above 
0-10 pts Only one of the projects/contracts is similar or equal to the proposed Category OR 

two or more of the projects/contracts is missing one or more of the key items noted 
above 

 
 
*If technically non-responsive, deductions to the final score will be applied by subtracting one 
point for each item noted as ‘non-responsive’.  



 2021-2023 On-Call Engineering Pool

Firm W
a
te

r 
&

 W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r 
T

re
a
tm

e
n

t

S
to

rm
w

a
te

r 
&

 W
a
s
te

w
a
te

r 

S
y
s
te

m
s
 a

n
d

 C
o

n
v
e
y
a
n

c
e

W
a
te

r 
S

y
s
te

m
 C

o
n

v
e
y
a
n

c
e
, 

P
u

m
p

in
g

, 
&

 S
to

ra
g

e

G
e
o

te
c
h

n
ic

a
l 

&
 G

e
o

lo
g

ic
a
l 

E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

E
n

v
ir

o
n

m
e
n

ta
l 

S
tu

d
ie

s
 &

 D
e
s
ig

n

M
a
te

ri
a
ls

 T
e
s
ti

n
g

L
a
n

d
s
c
a
p

e
 A

rc
h

it
e
c
tu

re

S
u

rv
e
y
 &

 m
a
p

p
in

g

T
ra

n
s
p

o
rt

a
ti

o
n

 E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

T
ra

ff
ic

 E
n

g
in

e
e
ri

n
g

A
rc

h
it

e
c
tu

ra
l 

E
n

g
in

e
e
r 

&
 D

e
s
ig

n

S
y
s
te

m
 M

a
s
te

r 
P

la
n

n
in

g

Architects Rasmussen Triebelhorn 

Aspect Consulting  

BHC Consultants, LLC  

Carollo Engineers, Inc. 

Century West Engineering    

Intertek PSI  

Jones & Jones 

Materials Testing & Consulting 

Parametrix    

RH2      

SCJ Alliance   

Transpo Group  

Williams Architecture 



Page 1 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

 
CONTRACT FOR ON-CALL QUALIFIED POOL LIST 

City of Shelton and Consultant 
 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Shelton, Washington, (“the City”) and 
Consultant Name, (“the Consultant”), whose principal office is located at Street Address, City, 
State Zip Code. 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have pools of professional services available on 
an on-call, as needed basis; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City has selected the Consultant to be in the _______ pool and perform such 
services through a formal Qualification Based Selection procedure; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to certain 
terms and conditions; NOW, THEREFORE, 
 
IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions set forth below and in the Invitation 
to Submit Statement of Qualifications, which is incorporated by reference, the parties hereto 
agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant.  The Consultant shall provide 

_______________ services on an on-call, as needed basis. Consultant services shall be 
performed as directed by the City.  Authorization shall be through the approval of 
individual scope and budgets, via Task Order, prepared for each distinct project.  
Authorization to proceed on a task will be granted with the return of an approved 
document. 

 
2. Compliance with All Applicable Laws and Requirements. In performing such services, the 

Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state, and local laws applicable to the 
performance of such services and the handling of any funds used in connection therewith; 
this includes applicable prevailing wage requirements. It is the Consultant’s responsibility 
to identify and comply with such laws, including but not limited to Washington’s laws 
against discrimination; Washington’s Industrial Safety and Health Act and associated 
regulations; Washington’s Unemployment Compensation provisions, and any other 
applicable laws, statutes, regulations or requirements otherwise applicable to the 
services provided under this Agreement. 
 
 

4. Registration, Licensing, Bonding. Consultant shall at all times maintain appropriate 
registration, licensing and bonding applicable to professional services to be performed 
pursuant to this agreement, and has provided or will provide written evidence of the 



Page 2 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

same to the City upon execution of this Agreement, and shall require and produce the 
same with respect to any subcontractors/assignees (if the same are authorized by the City 
to perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement). 

 
 
5. Compensation and Method of Payment.  This Agreement does not guarantee any 

amount of work for the Consultant, therefore, no minimum level of compensation will be 
guaranteed.  Task Orders will be developed as determined by the City and as provided for 
in this Agreement. Compensation will be based on the Consultant’s Fee Schedule, shown 
in Exhibit A attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference, and completed 
services rendered under each approved individual Task Order. 
 
Within five (5) working days of a request, or such other timeframe mutually agreed 
between the Parties, Consultant will provide the City with a detailed scope and budget to 
complete the then needed services, which will be included in the Task Order assigned. 
Upon approval by the City contract administrator, following appropriate City policy, the 
executed Task Order will become part of this contract as if set forth with the initial 
execution of this contract.   
 
Consultant will then be authorized to proceed with the approved scope and authorized 
to bill for services under that scope not more frequently than once per month until the 
approved scope is complete or canceled.   
 
The City shall pay the Consultant for services rendered within thirty (30) days of receipt 
of an approvable invoice as well as the form set forth in Exhibit B, Billing Voucher, 
attached hereto and incorporated herein by this reference. 
 
The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit C, Tax Identification Number, to the City 
prior to or along with the first billing voucher submittal.  In accordance with the Shelton 
Municipal Code, the Consultant is subject to licensing requirements and business and 
occupation tax levied under the Shelton Municipal Code. A City of Shelton Business 
License is required irrespective of whether goods or services are delivered inside or 
outside of the City limits, and irrespective of whether the Consultant’s office is within the 
City limits, and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 

 
6. Provisions for Changes in Scope of Consultant Services.  The Consultant agrees to 

perform those services based on approved Task Orders.  Unless modified in writing and 
agreed to by both parties, the duties of the Consultant shall not be construed to exceed 
those services.  The City and the Consultant agree that if additional duties are to be 
performed by the Consultant in the prosecution of this work, the Consultant shall submit 
an additional or supplemental scope of work and upon the City’s approval, shall be 
compensated based on that approved additional or supplemental scope of work. 



Page 3 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

 
7. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 

commencing on the date of the last signature affixed hereto and will be in effect for two 
years with two optional one year extensions upon written agreement of the Consultant 
and City contract administrator, unless sooner terminated under the provisions 
hereinafter specified. 

 
8. Ownership and Use of Documents.  All documents, drawings, specifications, and other 

materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services rendered under this 
Agreement shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they are made 
is executed or not.  The City shall hold the Consultant harmless for the City’s use of the 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other materials outside of the project intended. 

 
9. Independent Consultant.  The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant is an 

Independent Contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this 
Agreement.  Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of 
employer and employee between the parties.  Neither the Consultant nor any employee 
of the Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of 
the services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be responsible for paying, 
withholding, or otherwise deducting any customary state or federal payroll deductions, 
including but not limited to FICA, FUTA, state industrial insurance, state workers 
compensation, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the 
Consultant or any employee of the Consultant. 

 
 

10. Indemnification / Hold Harmless. Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the City, 
its officers, officials, employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, 
injuries, damages, losses or suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from 
the acts, errors or omissions of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except 
for injuries and damages caused by the sole negligence of the City. 

 
However, should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is 
subject to RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily 
injury to persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent 
negligence of the Consultant and the City, its officers, officials, employees, and 
volunteers, the Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder 
shall be only to the extent of the Consultant’s negligence.  It is further specifically and 
expressly understood that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the 
Consultant’s waiver of immunity under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the 
purposes of this indemnification.  This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the 
parties.  The provisions of this section shall survive the expiration or termination of this 
Agreement. 



Page 4 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

 
A. Insurance Term 
The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, or employees. 

 
B. No Limitation 
The Consultant’s maintenance of insurance as required by the Agreement shall not be 
construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the City’s recourse to any remedy available at law or in 
equity. 

 
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 
The Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types and coverage described below: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 

vehicles.  Coverage shall be at least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form 
CA 00 01. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO occurrence 

form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, stop-gap 
independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.  The City shall be 
named as an additional insured under the Consultant’s Commercial General Liability 
insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the City using an additional 
insured endorsement at least as broad as ISO endorsement form CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers’ Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of the 

State of Washington. 
 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant’s profession. 
 
D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 
The Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 

injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 
 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 

$2,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 
 



Page 5 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than $2,000,000 
per claim and $2,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
E. Other Insurance Provision 
The Consultant’s Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as 
respect the City.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage 
maintained by the City shall be excess of the Consultant’s insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

 
F. Acceptability of Insurers 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. 

 
G. Verification of Coverage 
The Consultant shall furnish the City with original certificates and a copy of the 
amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional 
insured endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Agreement before 
commencement of the work. 

 
H. Notice of Cancellation 
The Consultant shall provide the City with written notice of any policy cancellation 
within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

 
I. Failure to Maintain Insurance 
Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shall 
constitute a material breach of contract, upon which the City may, after giving five 
business days notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately terminate the 
Agreement or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all 
premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the City 
on demand, or at the sole discretion of the City, offset against funds due the Consultant 
from the City. 

 
J. City Full Availability of Consultant Limits 
If the Consultant maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, 
the City shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and Excess or 
Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such limits 
maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this Agreement or 
whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the City evidences limits of liability 
lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
11. Record Keeping and Reporting. 



Page 6 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, property, 
financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly reflect all direct 
and indirect costs of any nature expended and services performed pursuant to this 
Agreement.  The Consultant shall also maintain such other records as may be deemed 
necessary by the City to ensure proper accounting of all funds contributed by the City 
to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination 

hereof unless permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the Archivist in 
accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 and by the City. 

 
C. Consultant acknowledges that the City is a public entity subject to Washington State 

laws regarding Public Records and Open Public Meetings. For purposes of the 
foregoing statutes, Consultant is an independent entity and not a functional 
equivalent of a public agency. Consultant agrees that unless otherwise explicitly 
provided herein, the City is authorized to produce all records related to this 
Agreement in response to public records requests received. The Consultant agrees to 
maintain, preserve and make available upon City request, in a format requested by 
the City, all records related to this Agreement for a period of no less than seven (7) 
years from the date of Agreement termination, or longer period as required to comply 
with Washington State Records Retention standards. The Consultant agrees to ensure 
that this records requirement is satisfied by any subcontractors, with this requirement 
to be explicitly set forth in a written agreement between the Consultant and 
subcontractor. 

 
D. Upon expiration, cancellation or termination of this Agreement for any reason, the 

City is entitled to receive, upon City request, all plans, specifications, reports and other 
materials related to this Agreement and within the Consultant’s possession or control, 
in electronic format or hard copies, as specified by the City, all of which shall be the 
property of the City to use at its discretion. 

 
E. The Consultant agrees to maintain current as-built documentation and provide the 

same to the City throughout the course of any project, and agrees that the City has 
the ability to withhold any payments due under this Agreement in the event the 
Consultant fails to keep as-built documentation current and copied to the City. 

 
12. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered 

by this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit as allowed 
by law during the performance of this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to conduct 
an audit of the Consultant's financial statement and condition and to a copy of the results 
of any such audit or other examination performed by or on behalf of the Consultant. 

 



Page 7 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

13. Termination.  This Agreement may at any time be terminated for any reason, with or 
without cause, by the City upon giving to the Consultant thirty (30) days’ written notice 
of the City’s intention to terminate the same. Individual approved scopes of work may be 
cancelled by 24 hours’ notice to the Consultant.  If the Consultant’s insurance coverage is 
canceled for any reason, the City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement 
immediately.  Consultant will be paid for satisfactory work performed through the date 
of termination. 

 
 Notice of termination or cancellation shall be provided in the manner specified under the 

“Notice” section of this agreement. 
 
14. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any employee, 

applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant under 
this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, marital 
status, or presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, or any other protected 
class. 

 
15. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any portion 

of the services contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent of the 
City contract administrator. 

 
16. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and Exhibits A, B, and C contain the entire agreement 

between the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, regarding the 
subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either party.  Either 
party may request changes to the Agreement.  Proposed changes, which are mutually 
agreed upon and signed by each parties authorized signatory, shall be incorporated by 
written amendments to this Agreement. 

 
17. Notices. Notice regarding this Contract shall be by first class regular mail or by e-mail to 

the contacts specified below. Additional or separate contact information, specific to 
individual assignments or work, will be provided in issued Task Orders. Notice shall be 
deemed received either on the third business day following regular first class mailing (not 
including date of mailing in calculation), or on the day and time of e-mail transmittal.  

 
The designated representative for the City of Shelton is:  

 
   Brooke Kilts, Public Works Administrative Manager 
   City of Shelton  
   525 West Cota Street 
   Shelton, Washington 98584 
   Phone number: (360) 545-2317 
   Email:  brooke.kilts@sheltonwa.gov 



Page 8 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

 
Notices to the City shall be sent to the address noted above.  
 
Notices to the Consultant shall be sent to the designated representative at the following 
address: 

 
   Consultant Name 
   Company Name 
   Address 
   City, WA Zip Code 
   Phone number:  
   Email:  
 
 
18. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorneys’ Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 

construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, 
arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the 
parties specifically understand and agree that venue shall be exclusively in Mason County, 
Washington.  The parties shall bear their own attorneys’ fees and costs of suit. 

 
19. Representation of Consultant.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no 

conflict of interest in performing any of the services anticipated by this contract.  In the 
event that the Consultant is asked to perform services for a project with which it may 
have a conflict, it will disclose such conflict to the City.  At the discretion of the City, the 
City may direct the Consultant to refrain from entering into a contract with 
representatives of the conflicting project or bar the Consultant from conflicting work 
under this contract. 

 

20. Invoice and Activity Report.  The Consultant shall provide an activity report with each 
invoice highlighting Task Order number(s) associated with services provided during the 
billing period, upcoming activities, and emerging management issues. 

 

21. No Third Party Beneficiary. This Agreement benefits only the Parties to the Agreement, 
and nothing in this Agreement, express or implied, confers on any third party any legal or 
equitable right, benefit, or remedy of any nature. 

 

22. Severability. Should any term, provision, condition or other portion of this Agreement or 
its application be held to be inoperative, invalid or unenforceable, and the remainder of 



Page 9 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

this Agreement still fulfill its purposes, the balance of this Agreement or its application 
shall not be affected thereby, and shall continue in full force and effect. 

 
 
 

CONTRACT SIGNATURES 
 
DATED this      day of     , 2021. 
 
 
CONSULTANT FIRM NAME          CITY OF SHELTON  
 
 
 
By:_________________________________  By: _______________________________ 
      Consultant Name, Title Jeff Niten, City Manager 



Page 10 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Consultant Fee Schedule  



Page 11 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

City of Shelton 
Billing Voucher 

 
To: City of Shelton     Submittal No.:__________ 
 525 West Cota 
 Shelton, Washington 98584 
 Phone: (360) 426-9731 
 FAX: (360) 426-7746 
 
Consultant: _______________________________________ Telephone: (     ) ______________ 
Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
Project Title: __________________________________________________________________ 
Contract Period: ______________________ Reporting Period: __________________________ 
Amount requested this invoice: $________________ 
 
Invoice Number: ________________ Date of Invoice: ______________ (Attach Invoice) 
 
________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
Total contract amount $____________________ 
Previous payments  $____________________ 
Current request  $____________________ 
Total requested this 
   contract to date  $____________________ 
Balance remaining  $____________________ 
 
Note:  If applicable, submit a separate voucher for each project, which is funded by your City of 
Shelton contract. 
--------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

For Department Use Only 
 

____________________________   Date:        
Public Works Director 
 
  



Page 12 of 12 
On Call Qualified Pool List Contract 
Pool Category 
Consultant Name  Form Approved 01/2021 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
525 West Cota Street 
Shelton, WA  98584 

Phone: (360) 426-9731 
FAX: (360) 426-7746 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
In order for you to receive reimbursement from the City of Shelton, we must have either a Tax Identification 
Number or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Code requires a Form 1099 for payments to every 
person or organization other than a corporation for services performed in the course of trade or business.   
 
Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of Shelton before or along the 
submittal of the first billing voucher. 
 

 
 

Please check the appropriate category: 
 
 ___Corporation  ___Partnership  ___Government Agency 
 ___Individual/Proprietor ___Other (please explain) 
 
 
Tax Identification #: ______________________ 
 
 
Print Name:_______________________________________________________ 
 
Print Title:________________________________________________________ 
 
Business Name:____________________________________________________ 
 
Business Address: __________________________________________________ 
 
Business Phone:____________________________________ 
 
Business e-mail: ___________________________________________________ 
 
_____________________________  ______________________ 
Authorized Signature (required)   Date 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G1) 

Touch Date:  12/15/2020            
Brief Date:     01/05/2021 
Action Date:   01/19/2021 

Department: Community Development 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler, Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Eagle Point Park Master Plan 

   
ATTACHMENTS:  

  Consultant Contract 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The Eagle Point Park property was acquired by the City in 2016.  As a portion of the greater 
Oakland Bay restoration project, the South Puget Sound Salmon Enhancement Group obtained 
the 14 acres (comprised of 8 acres of upland, 4 aces of tidelands, and 2 acres of riparian) and 
deeded to the City for long-term management. The deed is restricted by the grant funding utilized 
for acquisition to habitat preservation and public access for passive recreation.  As the only City 
owned park property on Oakland Bay, the effort to develop nature trails, provide water access, 
and maintain open space meet top priorities of the Parks, Recreation, Open Space and Trails 
Plan. The first step is developing a master plan of the site to further vet uses and gather 
community input.      
A request for qualifications was published on September 16, 2020.  Ten firms responded with 
statements of qualifications for Staff and the Parks and Recreation Advisory Committee to review. 
 Robert W. Droll was the highest scoring consultant.  The enclosed professional services contract 
outlines the tasks associated with the master plan process. 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
None 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
Funding of $150,000 for this project is derived from the SMPD and was budgeted in 2020 ($30,000) & 
2021 ($120,000). 

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move to approve the contract with Robert W. Droll for master plan design of Eagle Point Park and 
authorize the Mayor to sign on behalf of the City”. 



































Council Briefing Form  Revised 07/01/2020 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G2) 

Touch Date:  
Brief Date:       01/05/2021 
Action Date:  01/19/2021 

Department: Public Works 
   
Presented By: Jay Harris 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Ordinance No. 1959-1120 Mason 
County Franchise Agreement 
 
  ATTACHMENTS:  
- Ordinance No. 1959-1120 
- Attachment A to Ordinance     
  (Franchise Agreement) 
- Public Notice   

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  JOH 

 
 

 
Finance Director   

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk  

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
City and County staff have been working towards a new Franchise Agreement to benefit the citizens of Mason 
County, protect the City’s interests, as well as protect and preserve the utilities and infrastructure that serve our 
citizens. 
 
The previous Franchise Agreement with the County was executed in 2007 and expired in 2017. This new 
Agreement will provide an initial ten (10) year term and will automatically renew for periods of five (5) years 
unless cancelled by either party. 
 
The attached Franchise Agreement has been reviewed and approved by the City Attorney. 
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
The Council has the option to adopt the proposed Franchise Agreement as presented, request staff re-enter 
negotiations over modifications to terms, or take no action at this time. 
   
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
There are no budget impacts other than those associated with specific projects that may occur in the future. 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Public Notice was provided to the newspaper of record in the interest of transparency. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
Staff recommends a reading of Ordinance No. 1959-1120 and: “I move to adopt Ordinance No. 1959-1120, an 

Ordinance accepting a non-exclusive Franchise Agreement between Mason County and the City of 
Shelton for the operations and maintenance of water, sewer, reclaimed water, and stormwater utilities”.   



 

ORDINANCE NO. 
1959-1120 

 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 
ACCEPTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN 

MASON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SHELTON FOR THE 
OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF WATER, SEWER, RECLAIMED 

WATER, AND STORMWATER UTILITIES 
 
 WHEREAS, the City of Shelton operates water, sewer, reclaimed water, and 
stormwater utilities, and has infrastructure related to these utilities outside city limits and 
within Mason County rights-of-way; and 
 
 WHEREAS, the City finds that it is in the public interest to have the ability to 
operate and maintain its utility infrastructures within the County; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the previous franchise agreement with Mason County, accepted by the 
City on April 2, 2007, expired in 2017; and  

 
 WHEREAS, the Parties have come to terms on a new Franchise Agreement. 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, ordains 

as follows:   
 

 Section 1. Acceptance of Franchise Agreement. A nonexclusive franchise for operations 
and maintenance of city utilities within Mason County rights-of-way is hereby accepted under 
the terms and conditions set forth substantially in the form of Exhibit A attached hereto and 
incorporated herein by reference. The City Manager is authorized to sign the final Agreement. 
 
 Section 2. This Ordinance shall take effect and be in force five days after passage 
and publication as required by law. 

 
 

 Passed by Shelton City Council this 19th of January 2021. 
 

 
            ________________ 

Mayor Kevin Dorcy 
 

AUTHENTICATED: 
 
 
___________________ 
Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 
 
 



 
 1 

FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR  
WATER, SEWER, RECLAIMED WATER, AND STORMWATER UTILITIES 

BETWEEN MASON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SHELTON 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton operates a water, sewer, reclaimed water and stormwater 
utilities, and has infrastructure related to these utilities outside city limits underneath Mason 
County rights-of-way; and  

 
WHEREAS, the County finds that it is in the public interest to grant the City a franchise 

to continue operating and maintaining its utility infrastructure within the County.   
 

NOW THEREFORE, the Parties agree to the following terms of a water, sewer, 
reclaimed, and stormwater system franchise agreement:   
 

I. DEFINITIONS 
 

For the purposes of this franchise, terms, phrases, words, and their derivations not defined 
herein that are defined in Title 12 of the Mason County Code or the Manual on Accommodating 
Utilities in the Mason County Right-of-Way published by the County Engineer (the “Manual”), 
shall have the same meaning or be interpreted as provided in Title 12 of the Mason County Code 
or the Manual.  Words not defined here, in Title 12 of the Mason County Code or the Manual shall 
have their ordinary meaning.  A reference to Title 12 of the Mason County Code or the Manual 
refers to the same as may be amended, revised, updated, re-enacted or re-codified from time to 
time.  
 

II.  GRANT OF FRANCHISE 
 

The County hereby grants to the City a non-exclusive franchise to construct, operate and 
maintain water, sewer, reclaimed water, and stormwater system utility facilities in, over, along and 
under county rights-of-way in Mason County, Washington, as set forth in attached Exhibit “B” 
(Franchise Area). 
 

The County’s grant of Franchise shall authorize the City to enter upon the rights-of-way 
located within the Franchise Area for the purpose of installing, constructing, maintaining, 
repairing, replacing, adjusting, relocating and operating the water system utility facilities. 
 
 Such grant is subject to and must be exercised in strict accordance with and subject to this 
franchise, Title 12 of the Mason County Code, the Manual and all applicable laws, rules, 
regulations and ordinances.  The City’s exercise of any rights granted pursuant to the franchise is 
subject to the exercise of the County’s police powers, and other regulatory powers as it may have 
or obtain in the future.  No rights shall pass to the City by implication.  This franchise does not 
include permission to disturb or perform construction in the road rights-of-way for any purposes 
others than the purposes expressly described herein. The City shall notify the County of any change 
in use or condition of the utility facilities that may affect the status of the utility facilities or the 
impact of the utility facilities upon the road rights-of-way. 



 
 2 

 
III.  UTILITY PERMIT REQUIRED 

 
 The City shall not commence or perform work (hereafter “Work”) to install, construct, 
maintain, repair, replace, adjust, connect, disconnect, rebuild, or relocate its utility facilities within 
the rights-of-way, without first applying for, paying all associated fees, and obtaining a utility 
permit as required pursuant to Title 12 of the Mason County Code.  In any utility permit so issued, 
the County may impose, as a condition of the granting the utility permit, such conditions and 
regulations as may be necessary for the protection, preservation and management of the 
rights-of-way, including, by way of example and not limitation, for the purpose of protecting any 
structures in the rights-of-way, maintaining proper distance from other utilities, ensuring the 
proper restoration of such rights-of-way and structures, and for the protection of the County and 
the public and the continuity of pedestrian and vehicular traffic. 
 

The City shall first file with the County Engineer or designee its application for a utility 
permit to do such Work together with plans and specifications in triplicate showing at a minimum: 
 

A. The position, depth and location of all such utility facilities sought to be constructed, 
laid, installed or erected at that time, showing their relative position to existing county roads, rights-
of-way or other county property upon plans drawn to scale, hereinafter collectively referred to as 
the “map of definite location; 

 
B.  The class and type of material and equipment to be used, manner of excavation, 

construction, installation, backfill, erection of temporary structures, erection of permanent 
structures, traffic control, traffic turnouts and road obstructions; 

 
C.  The manner in which the utility facility is installed; 
 
D.  Measures taken to preserve safe and free flow of traffic; 
 
E.  Structural integrity of the roadway, bridge, or other structure; 
 
F.  Specifications for the restoration of the county road, right-of-way or other county 

property in the event that the road right of way will be disturbed by the Work; and 
 
G.  Provision for ease of future road maintenance and appearance of the roadway. 

 
Provision shall be made for known or planned expansion of the utility facilities, particularly those 
located underground or attached to bridges or other structures within the road right-of-way. 
 

The location, alignment and depth of the utility facilities shall conform with said map of 
definite location, except in instances in which deviation may be allowed thereafter in writing by 
the County Engineer pursuant to application by City.   
 

All such Work shall be subject to the approval of and shall pass the inspection of the County 



 
 3 

Engineer or designee. The City shall pay all costs of and expenses incurred in the examination, 
inspection and approval of such work on account of granting the said utility permits. 

 
IV.  RESTORATION OF RIGHT OF WAY 

 
In any Work which disturbs or causes damage to the rights-of-way subject to this franchise, 

public or private property, the City shall at its own expense and with all convenient speed, complete 
the work to repair and restore the right-of-way, or the public or private property so disturbed or 
damaged, and leave the same in as good or better condition as before the Work was commenced, 
to the reasonable satisfaction of the County Engineer.  The City shall pay all costs of and expenses 
incurred in the examination, inspection and approval of such restoration or repair. 
 

The County Commissioners and/or County Engineer may at any time do, order or have 
done any and all work that they consider necessary to restore to a safe condition such County road 
right-of-way or other County property left by the City or its agents in a condition dangerous to life 
or property, and the City, upon demand, shall pay to the County all costs of such work. 

 
V.  CITY WORK IN RIGHT OF WAY 

 
City expressly agrees and understands that, with regard to Work within the rights-of-way: 
 

A.  All of City’s utility facilities and Work within the road rights-of-way or other County 
property shall be in compliance with the provisions of Title 12 MCC, the Manual, the 
administrative regulations adopted by the County Engineer, other County established requirements 
for placement of utility facilities in road rights-of-way, including the specific location of utility 
facilities in the road rights-of-way, and all applicable laws, rules, regulations and ordinances;  

 
B.  In preparing plans and specifications for Work of utility facilities in the rights-of-way 

the City shall use the Manual.  Prior to commencement of work in the rights-of-way, City shall 
submit such plans and specifications to the Mason County Engineer for review and approval 
together with adequate exhibits depicting existing or proposed location of the utility facility in 
relation to the road, including right-of-way or easement lines; relationship to currently planned 
road revisions, if applicable; and all locations and situations for which deviations in depth of cover 
(including the proposed method of protection) or other locational standards that are anticipated; 

 
C.  All Work to utility facilities located within the road rights-of-way or other county 

property subject to this franchise shall be done in such a manner as not to interfere, other than in 
ways approved by the County, with the construction, operation and maintenance of other utilities, 
public or private, drains, drainage ditches and structures, irrigation ditches and structures, located 
therein, nor with the grading or improvements of such County roads, rights-of-way or other County 
property;   
 

D.  The owners and operators of all utility facilities (public or private) installed in the 
Franchise Area or other county property prior in time to the utility facilities of the City, shall have 
preference as to the alignment and location of such utilities so installed with respect to the City.  



 
 4 

Such preference shall continue in the event of the necessity of relocating or changing the grade of 
any such county road or right-of-way; 
 

E.  The City shall perform the Work and operate its utility facilities in a manner that 
minimizes interference with the use of the rights-of-way by others, including others that may be 
installing utility facilities; and  
 

F.  The County may require that City’s utility facilities be installed at a particular time, at 
a specific place, or in a particular manner as a condition of access to a particular right-of-way; may 
deny access if a City is not willing to comply with the County's requirements; and may remove, or 
require removal of, any utility facility that is not installed in compliance with the requirements 
established by the County, or which is installed without prior County approval of the time, place, 
or manner of installation and charge the City for all the costs associated with removal; and may 
require City to cooperate with others to minimize adverse impacts on the rights-of-way through 
joint trenching and other arrangements.  

 
G.  The County may inspect the utility facilities at any time reasonable under the 

circumstances to ensure compliance with this franchise and applicable law, including to ensure 
that the utility facilities are constructed and maintained in a safe condition. If an unsafe condition 
is found to exist, the County, in addition to taking any other action permitted under applicable law, 
may order the City, in writing, to make the necessary repairs and alterations specified therein 
forthwith to correct the unsafe condition on a time-table established by the County which is 
reasonable in light of the unsafe condition.  The County has the right to correct, inspect, administer, 
and repair the unsafe condition if the City fails to do so, and to charge the City therefore.  The right 
of the County to conduct such inspections and order or make repairs shall not be construed to 
create an obligation therefore, and such obligation to construct and maintain its utility facilities in 
a safe condition shall at all times remain the sole obligation of the City. 

 
H.  When required by the County, the City shall make information available to the public 

regarding any work involving the ongoing installation, construction, adjustment, relocation, repair 
or maintenance of its utility facilities sufficient to show (1) the nature of the work being performed; 
(2) where it is being performed; (3) its estimated completion date; and (4) progress to completion. 

 
 I.  The City is placed on notice that fiber optic, communications, power, control systems, 
other types of cables, and pipelines may be buried on the right of way.  Before beginning any 
underground work, the City will contact the appropriate personnel to have such facilities located 
and make arrangements as to protective measures that must be adhered to prior to the 
commencement of any work within the rights-of-way.  In addition to the liability terms elsewhere 
in this Agreement, the City shall indemnify and hold the County and its elected and appointed 
officers, employees and agents harmless against and from all cost, liability, and expense 
whatsoever (including, without limitation, attorney’s fees and court costs and expenses) arising 
out of or in any way contributed to by any act or omission of the City, its contractor, agents and/or 
employees, that cause or in any way or degree contribute to (1) any damage to or destruction of 
any such facilities by the City, and/or its contractor, agents and/or employees, on the County’s 
property, (2) any injury to or death of any person employed by or on behalf of any entity, and/or 



 
 5 

its contractor, agents and/or employees, on the rights-of-way, and/or (3) any claim or cause of 
action for alleged loss of profits or revenue, or loss of service, by a customer or user of services or 
products of such company(ies) (collectively “Liabilities” for purposes of this Section V.I).  The 
only Liabilities with respect to which the City’s obligation to indemnify the County and its elected 
and appointed officers, employees and agents does not apply are Liabilities to the extent arising 
out of, caused by or resulting from the negligence of the County, and its elected and appointed 
officers, employees and agents and Liabilities that by law the County and its elected and appointed 
officers, employees and agents for which the County cannot be indemnified. 
 

J.  The City shall continuously be a member of the State of Washington one number locator 
service under RCW 19.122, or an approved equivalent, and shall comply with all such applicable 
rules and regulations.   
  
 K.  Except in the event of emergency as described below, the City and its Agents may not 
enter upon the Franchise Area to perform work for which a utility permit is not required, unless 
and except upon two-business days notice to the County Engineer.   
 
 L.  In the event of an emergency involving the threat of imminent harm to persons or 
property, and for purposes of taking immediate corrective action, the City and its agents may 
disturb or perform and maintenance activities in the Franchise Area without advance notice to the 
County as long as such entry is for the sole purpose of addressing the emergency; provided 
however, that if any entry for such purposes would require issuance of a utility permit, the City 
shall give the County verbal or telephonic notice of the places where and the manner in which 
entry is required prior to such entry, promptly followed by written notice.  In all cases, notice to 
the County shall be given as far in advance as practical prior to disturbing the right-of-way or as 
soon as practicable after entry upon the right-of-Way. 
 
 M.  The City shall promptly reimburse the County for its reasonable and direct costs 
incurred in responding to an emergency that is caused, created by or attributable to the presence, 
construction, maintenance, repair, or operation of the City’s utility facilities in the rights-of-way.  
 
 N.  If, during installation, construction, relocation, realignment, adjustment, maintenance, 
or repair of the City’s utility facilities in the rights-of-way, the City or its agents discover cultural 
or historic artifacts, the City shall immediately notify the County of said discovery and shall protect 
such artifacts in a manner as specified by the County.   

 
VI.  PROTECTION OF PUBLIC 

 
All work done under this franchise shall be done in a thorough and workman-like manner.  

In the performance of Work within or near the rights-of-way, including without limitation, the 
opening of trenches and the tunneling under county roads, rights-of way or other county property, 
the City shall leave such trenches, ditches and tunnels in such a way as to interfere as little as 
possible with public travel and shall take all due and necessary precautions to guard the same, so 
that damage or injury shall not occur or arise by reason of such Work; and where any of such 



 
 6 

trenches, ditches and tunnels are left open at night, the City shall place warning lights, barricades 
and other appropriate protective devices at such a position as to give adequate warning of such 
Work.  The City shall be defend, indemnify, and hold the County harmless against any claim for 
injury to person or persons or damage to property sustained arising out of its carelessness or 
neglect, or through any failure or neglect to properly guard or give warning of any trenches, ditches 
or tunnels dug or maintained by the City. 
 

VII.  POLICE POWERS 
 

The County, in granting this franchise, does not waive any rights which it now has or may 
hereafter acquire with respect to county roads, rights-of-way or other county property and this 
franchise shall not be construed to deprive the county of any powers, rights or privileges which it 
now has or may hereafter acquire to regulate the use of and to control the county roads, rights-of-
way and other county property covered by this franchise.  The County retains the right to 
administer and regulate activities of the City up to the fullest extent of the law.  The failure to 
reserve a particular right to regulate, or reference a particular regulation, shall not be interpreted 
by negative implication or otherwise to prevent the application of a regulation to the City. 
 

VIII.  RELOCATION 
 

City shall, in the course of any Work, comply with the following requirements: 
 
 A.  The City shall, by a time specified by the County, protect, support, temporarily 
disconnect, relocate, or remove any of its utility facilities when required by the County by reason 
of traffic conditions; public safety; road right-of-way construction by the County; road 
right-of-way repair (including resurfacing or widening); change of right-of-way grade by the 
County; the County’s construction, installation, or repair of County-owned sewers, drains, water 
pipes, power lines, signal lines, tracks, communications system, other public work, public facility, 
or improvement of any government-owned utility; or for any other purpose where the County work 
involved would be aided by the removal or relocation of the utility facilities.  Collectively, such 
matters are referred to below as the "Public Work."   
 

The City acknowledges and understands that any delay by the City in performing the herein 
described work may delay, hinder, or interfere with the work performed by the County and its 
contractors and subcontractors done in furtherance of such Public Work and result in damage to 
the County, including but not limited to delay claims.   The City shall cooperate with the County 
and its contractors and subcontractors to coordinate such City work to accommodate the Public 
Work project schedules to avoid delay, hindrance of, or interference with the Public Work.   The 
County shall make available to the City a copy of the Six Year Transportation Program and the 
County’s annual construction program after adoption each year.  It is anticipated these programs 
will aid the City in planning construction programs. 
 
 B.  The City has a duty to protect its utility facilities from work performed by the County 
within the road rights-of-way.  The rights granted to the City herein do not preclude the County, 
its employees, contractors, subcontractors, and agents from blasting, grading, excavating, or doing 



 
 7 

other necessary road work contiguous to the City’s utility facilities; providing that, the City shall 
be given a minimum of forty-eight (48) hours notice of said blasting or other work in order that 
the City may protect its utility facilities. 
 

C.  In the event of an emergency, or where the utility facility creates or is contributing to 
an imminent danger to health, safety, or property, the County may protect, support, temporarily 
disconnect, remove, or relocate any or all parts of the utility facility without prior notice, and 
charge the City for costs incurred. 

 
 D.  If any Person or entity that is authorized to place facilities in the road right of way 
requests the City to protect, support, temporarily disconnect, remove, or relocate the City’s utility 
facilities to accommodate the construction, operation, or repair of the facilities of such other 
person, the City shall, after 30 days' advance written notice, or within such other length of time as 
is desired and reasonable under the circumstances, take action to effect the necessary changes 
requested; provided that, if such project is related to or competes with City’s service, or if the 
effect of such changes would be to permanently deprive City of the beneficial enjoyment of this 
franchise for its intended purposes through interference with the operation of City’s utility facilities 
or otherwise, City shall not be required to relocate its utility facilities.  Unless the matter is 
governed by a valid contract or a state or federal law or regulation, or unless the City’s utility 
facilities were not properly installed, the reasonable cost of the same shall be borne by the Person 
requesting the protection, support, temporary disconnection, removal, or relocation at no charge 
to the City or County, even if the County makes the request for such action. 
 The County will accept liability for direct and actual damages to the City that are the result of the 
negligence of Mason County, its trustees, officers, employees, contractors, subcontractors or 
agents while performing County improvement or Public Works projects enumerated in this 
franchise agreement under Section VIII.   Direct and actual damages are specifically limited to 
physical damage to properly installed and located infrastructure of the City and the cost to repair 
such physical damage.  The County retains the right to assert all applicable defenses in the event 
of a dispute including contributory negligence on the part of the City.  The County shall in no way 
be liable for incidental damages claimed to arise from such actions.  

 
All Work to be performed by the City under this section shall pass the inspection of the 

County Engineer.  The City shall pay all costs of and expenses incurred in the examination, 
inspection and approval of such work. 
 

IX.  PRESERVATION OF MONUMENTS/MARKERS 
 

Before any work is performed under this franchise which may affect any existing 
monuments or markers of any nature relating to subdivisions, plats, roads and all other surveys, 
the City shall reference all such monuments and markers.  The reference points shall be so located 
that they will not be disturbed during the City’s operations under this franchise.  The method of 
referencing these monuments or other points to be referenced shall be approved by the County 
Engineer.  The replacement of all such monuments or markers disturbed during construction shall 
be made as expeditiously as conditions permit, and as directed by the County Engineer.  The cost 
of monuments or other markers lost, destroyed, or disturbed, and the expense of replacement by 



 
 8 

approved monuments shall be borne by the City. 
 

A complete set of reference notes for monument and other ties shall be filed with the office 
of the Mason County Engineer. 
 

X.  VACATION OF ROAD RIGHT-OF-WAY 
 

If at any time the County shall vacate any County road, right-of-way or other County 
property which is subject to rights granted by this franchise and said vacation shall be for the 
purpose of acquiring the fee or other property interest in said road, right-of-way or other county 
property for the use of Mason County, in either its proprietary or governmental capacity, then the 
Board of Mason County Commissioners may, at its option, and by giving thirty (30) days written 
notice to the City, terminate this franchise with reference to such county road, right-of-way or 
other county property so vacated, and the County of Mason shall not be liable for any damages or 
loss to the City by reason of such termination.  Provided, however, that the County shall reserve 
an easement for the City facility in the property being vacated, which easement shall preserve the 
City’s ability to maintain, construct, and replace its facilities as needed.  If City facilities must be 
disconnected, relocated, or removed due to the vacation of a County right-of-way for the benefit 
of a private property owner, the County shall ensure that any benefitted private property owners 
pay the full cost of relocating the facilities and furnish sufficient easements to accommodate the 
relocated utilities. 
 

XI. FINANCIAL SECURITY 
 

A.  Insurance   Except as otherwise provided herein, the City shall maintain for itself 
throughout the entire period any part of the City’s utility facilities are located in the Franchise 
Area, adequate insurance to protect the Parties and their elected and appointed officers, agents, 
employees against all liability arising out of City’s use and occupancy of the Franchise Area or 
any part thereof.  This obligation shall require the City to maintain insurance at least in the 
following amounts: 

 
   1. COMMERCIAL GENERAL LIABILITY insurance to cover liability, bodily 
injury, and property damage.  The Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written on an 
occurrence basis, with an aggregate limit location endorsement for the Franchise Area, and shall 
provide coverage for any and all costs, including defense costs, and losses and damages resulting 
from personal injury, bodily injury and death, property damage, products liability and completed 
operations.  Such insurance shall include blanket contractual coverage, including coverage for the 
Franchise as now or hereafter amended and specific coverage for the indemnity provisions set forth 
herein.  Coverage must be written with the following limits of liability: 
 
  Bodily and Personal Injury & Property Damage 
    $ 1,000,000 per Occurrence 
    $ 2,000,000 aggregate 
     
  2. WORKERS' COMPENSATION insurance shall be maintained to comply with 



 
 9 

statutory limits for all employees, and in the case any work is sublet, the City shall require its 
contractors and subcontractors similarly to provide workers' compensation insurance for all the 
employees.  The City shall also maintain, during the life of this policy, employer’s liability 
insurance; provided that this obligation shall not apply to any time period during which City has 
no employees.  The following minimum limits must be maintained: 
 
   Workers' Compensation     Statutory 
   Employer's Liability  $ 1,000,000 each occurrence  
 
 3. COMPREHENSIVE AUTO LIABILITY insurance shall include owned, hired, 
and non-owned vehicles operated by City employees on an occurrence basis with coverage of at 
least $2,000,000 per occurrence. 
 
If the City, its contractors, or subcontractors do not have the required insurance, the County may 
require such entities to stop operations until the insurance is obtained and approved.  
 
Certificates of Insurance reflecting evidence of the required insurance and approved by the 
County’s Risk Manager for the GENERAL LIABILITY policies described above, shall be sent to 
the County’s risk manager.  The certificate shall be filed with the acceptance of the franchise, and 
annually thereafter, and as provided below.  All coverage shall be listed all on one certificate with 
the same expiration dates. 
 
The certificates shall contain a provision that coverages afforded under these policies will not be 
canceled until at least 30 days' prior written notice has been given to the County.     
 
In the event that the insurance certificate provided indicates that the insurance shall terminate or 
lapse during the period of the franchise, then, in that event, the City shall furnish, at least 30 days 
prior to the expiration of the date of such insurance, a renewed certificate of insurance as proof 
that equal and like coverage has been or will be obtained prior to any such lapse or termination 
during the balance of the period of the franchise. 
 
The County reserves the right, during the term of the franchise, to require any other insurance 
coverage or adjust the policy limits as it deems reasonably necessary utilizing sound risk 
management practices and principals based upon the loss exposures.   
 
Each insurance policy required pursuant to this franchise shall be primary and non-contributing as 
respects any coverage maintained by the County and shall include an endorsement reflecting the 
same.  Any other coverage maintained by County shall be excess of this coverage herein defined 
as primary and shall not contribute with it.  The certificate of insurance must reflect that the above 
wording is included in all such policies.   
 
Each insurance policy obtained pursuant to this franchise shall be issued by financially sound 
insurers who may lawfully do business in the State of Washington with a financial rating at all 
times during coverage of no less than rating of “A” and a class of “X” or better in the latest edition 
of “Best’s Key Rating Guide” published by A.M. Best Company, or such other financial rating or 



 
 10 

rating guide approved in writing by the County’s risk manager.  In the event that at any time during 
coverage, the insurer does not meet the foregoing standards, City shall give prompt notice to the 
County and shall seek coverage from an insurer that meets the foregoing standards.  The County 
reserves the right to change the rating or the rating guide depending upon the changed risks or 
availability of other suitable and reliable rating guides. 
 
Comprehensive general liability insurance policies and coverage obtained pursuant to this 
franchise shall include an endorsement (standard ISO form CG 24-17) deleting all exclusions 
for work or incidents occurring within any distance from a railroad track or railroad property, or 
on, over, or under a railroad track.    
 
Insurance policies required pursuant to this franchise shall have no non-standard exclusions unless 
approved of by the County Risk Manager or designee.   
  
 
City and City’s Contractors’ insurers, through policy endorsement, shall waive their rights of 
subrogation against the County for all claims and suits.  The certificate of insurance must reflect 
this waiver of subrogation rights endorsement.  
 
Commercial General Liability Insurance policies and coverage required herein of public utility 
operators may include a reasonable deductible or self-insured retention; provided, however, that 
as to any Loss or Damage covered as provided herein, if City elects to include any deductible or 
self-insured retention, City shall itself directly cover, in lieu of insurance, any and all County 
liabilities that would otherwise in accordance with the provisions of this Franchise be covered by 
City’s insurance if City elected not to include a deductible or self-insured retention.  Such direct 
coverage by City shall be in an amount equal to the amount of City’s actual deductible or 
self-insured retention.  City shall be required to provide a certification of self-insurance retention 
to the county in a form and content acceptable to the County engineer.   

 
 B.  Performance/Payment Bond.   
 
For any construction or maintenance work that is let by contract, the City may satisfy the 
performance bond requirement of this Section by demonstrating that the project is appropriately 
bonded in accordance with State law prior to work commencing 
 
 C.  Limitation of Liability.   
 
To the fullest extent permitted by law, the City shall, and shall cause its contractor(s) to release, 
indemnify, defend and hold harmless the county and the county’s legal representatives, officer 
(elected or ), appointed) employees and agents (collectively, “indemnitees”) for, from and against 
any and all claims, liabilities, fines, penalties, cost, damages, losses, liens, causes of action, suits, 
demands, judgments and expenses (including, without limitations, court costs, attorneys’ fees and 
costs of investigation, removal and remediation and governmental oversight costs), environmental 
or otherwise (collectively “liabilities”) of any nature, kind, or description, of any person or entity, 
directly or indirectly, arising out of, resulting from the City’s performance of its rights and duties 



 
 11 

under this franchise, or from the presence of the City’s utilities in the right-of-way.  
 
 
Upon written notice from the county, City agrees to assume the defense of any lawsuit or other 
proceeding brought against any indemnitee by any entity, relating to any matter covered by this 
franchise for which City has an obligation to assume liability for and/or save and hold harmless 
any indemnitee. City shall pay all cost incident to such defense, including, but not limited to, 
attorneys’ fees, investigators’ fees, litigation and appeal expenses, settlement payments and 
amounts paid in satisfaction of judgments.  City will fully satisfy said judgment within ninety (90) 
days after said suit or action shall have finally been determined if determined adversely to Mason 
County.  Upon the City’s failure to satisfy said judgment within the ninety (90) day period, this 
franchise shall at once cease and terminate. 
 
Acceptance by the County of any Work performed by the City at the time of completion shall not 
be grounds for avoidance of this covenant. 
 

XII.  FRANCHISE NONEXCLUSIVE 
 

This franchise shall not be deemed to be an exclusive franchise.  It shall in no manner 
prohibit the County from granting other utilities under, along, across, over and upon any of the 
County roads, rights-of-way or other County property subject to this franchise and shall in no way 
prevent or prohibit the County from constructing, altering, maintaining or using any of said roads, 
rights-of-way, drainage structures or facilities, irrigation structures or facilities, or any other county 
property or affect its jurisdiction over them or any part of them with full power to make all 
necessary changes, relocations, repairs, maintenance, etc., the same as the county may deem fit. 

 
XIII.  ANNEXATION 

 
Whenever any of the County roads, rights-of-way or other county property as designated 

in this franchise, by reason of the subsequent incorporation of any city, or extension of the limits 
of any city, shall fall within the city limits and shall by operation of law or otherwise terminate in 
respect to the said roads, rights-of-way or other county property so included with city or town 
limits; this franchise shall continue in force and effect to all county roads, rights-of-way or other 
county property not so included in city or town limits. 
 

XIV.  REMEDIES FOR DEFAULT 
 
 A.  Remedies.  The County has the right to exercise any and all of the following remedies, 
singly or in combination, in the event of Default.  “Default” shall mean any failure of City or its 
agents to keep, observe, or perform any of City’s or its agent’s duties or obligations under this 
franchise and continue in this failure after receiving notice of default from the County and a 
reasonable time to cure the default: 

 
 1.  Damages.  City shall be liable for any and all damages incurred by County as a 

result of the City’s Default. 



 
 12 

 
 2.  Specific Performance.  County shall be entitled to specific performance of each 

and every obligation of City under this franchise without any requirement to prove or establish 
that County does not have an adequate remedy at law.  The City hereby waives the requirement of 
any such proof and acknowledges that County would not have an adequate remedy at law for City’s 
commission of an Event of Default hereunder.   

 
 3.  Injunction.  County shall be entitled to restrain, by injunction, the actual or 

threatened commission or attempt of an Event of Default and to obtain a judgment or order 
specifically prohibiting a violation or breach of this Agreement without, in either case, being 
required to prove or establish that County does not have an adequate remedy at law.  The City 
hereby waives the requirement of any such proof and acknowledges that County would not have 
an adequate remedy at law for the City’s commission of an Event of Default hereunder. 

   
 4.  Alternative Remedies.  Neither the existence of other remedies identified in this 

franchise nor the exercise thereof shall be deemed to bar or otherwise limit the right of the County 
to commence an action for equitable or other relief, and/or proceed against the City and any 
guarantor for all direct monetary damages, costs and expenses arising from the Default and to 
recover all such damages, costs and expenses, including reasonable attorneys’ fees. Remedies are 
cumulative; the exercise of one shall not foreclose the exercise of others. 

 
XV.  SUBSEQUENT ACTION 

 
 In the event that after this franchise becomes effective, (a)  there is a change in the law 
which broadens the authority of the County or the City with respect to any act permitted or 
authorized under this franchise; or (b) the County or the City believe that amendments to this 
franchise are necessary or appropriate, then the County of Mason and the City agree to enter into 
good faith negotiations to amend this franchise so as to enable the Parties to address, in a manner 
reasonably acceptable to all Parties, such change or other development which formed the basis for 
the negotiations.  The Parties recognize that the purpose of the negotiations would be to preserve, 
to the maximum extent consistent with law, the scope and purpose of this franchise. 
 

Mason County reserves for itself the right at any time upon ninety (90) days written notice 
to the City, to so change, amend, modify or amplify any of the provisions or conditions herein 
enumerated to conform to any state statute or county regulation, relating to the public welfare, 
health, safety or highway regulation, as may hereafter be enacted, adopted or promulgated. This 
franchise may be terminated at such time a public hearing is held by the Board of County 
Commissioners, and the City’s utility facilities are found not to be operated or maintained in 
accordance with such statute or regulation, after providing the City a reasonable amount of time, 
which may exceed 90 days depending on the circumstances, to conform its facilities to the statute 
or regulation. 

 
XVI.  ACCEPTANCE 

 
The City shall execute and return to the County a signed acceptance of the franchise granted 



 
 13 

hereunder.  The acceptance shall be in the form of the acceptance attached hereto as Exhibit “A”, 
and in accepting the franchise, the City warrants that it has carefully read the terms and conditions 
of this franchise and accepts all of the terms and conditions of this franchise and agrees to abide 
by the same and acknowledges that it has relied upon its own investigation of all relevant facts, 
that it has had the assistance of counsel, that it was not induced to accept a franchise, that this 
franchise represents the entire agreement between the City and the County. In the event the City 
fails to submit the countersigned ordinance and acceptance as provided for herein within the time 
limits set forth in this section, the grant herein is and shall become null and void. 
 

XVII.  MISCELLANEOUS PROVISIONS 
  
 A. Controlling Law/Venue.  Any disputes concerning the application or interpretation of 
any of the provisions of this franchise shall be governed by the laws of the State of Washington.   
Venue of any action or arbitration brought under this franchise shall be consistent with RCW 
36.01.050. 
 
 B.  Liens.  City shall promptly pay and discharge any and all liens arising out of any Work 
done, suffered or permitted to be done by City on any Franchise Area.   
 
          C. Waiver.  No waiver by either party of any provision of this franchise shall in any way 
impair the right of such party to enforce that provision for any subsequent breach, or County’s 
right to enforce all other provisions of this franchise. 
 

D. Attorney's Fees.  If any action at law or in equity is necessary to enforce or interpret the 
terms of this franchise, the Parties shall bear their own costs, including attorney fees. 

 
 E.  Amendment.  This franchise may be amended only by a written contract signed by 
authorized representatives of City and County. 
 
          F.  Severability.  If any provision of this franchise is held to be illegal, invalid or 
unenforceable under present or future laws, such provision will be fully severable and this 
franchise will be construed and enforced as if such illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision is 
not a part hereof, and the remaining provisions hereof will remain in full force and effect.  In lieu 
of any illegal, invalid or unenforceable provision herein, there will be added automatically as a 
part of this franchise; a provision as similar in its terms to such illegal, invalid or unenforceable 
provision as may be possible and be legal, valid and enforceable. 
 
        H.   Notices.  Any notice contemplated, required, or permitted to be given under this 
franchise shall be sufficient if it is in writing and is sent either by:  (a) registered or certified mail, 
return receipt requested; or (b) a nationally recognized overnight mail delivery service, to the Party 
and at the address specified below, except as such Party and address may be changed by providing 
notice to the other Party no less than thirty (30) days' advance written notice of such change in 
address. 
              
 



 
 14 

 
                           City:  City of Shelton 
     525 West Cota Street 
     Shelton WA 98584-5034 
     Attn: City Manager and Public Works Director 
    
                            
                           Grantor: County of Mason Public Works 
                             100 Public Works Drive                           
     Shelton, WA 98584 
                            
 I.   Approvals.  Nothing in this franchise shall be deemed to impose any duty or obligation 
upon the County to determine the adequacy or sufficiency of the City's plans and specifications or 
to ascertain whether the City's proposed or actual construction, testing, maintenance, repairs, 
replacement, relocation, adjustment or removal is adequate or sufficient or in conformance with 
the plans and specifications reviewed by the County.  No approval given, inspection made, review 
or supervision performed by the County pursuant to this franchise shall constitute or be construed 
as a representation or warranty express or implied by the County that such item approved, 
inspected, or supervised, complies with laws, rules regulations or ordinances or this franchise or 
meets any particular standard, code or requirement, or is in conformance with the plans and 
specifications, and no liability shall attach with respect thereto. County and inspections as provided 
herein, are for the sole purpose of protecting the County’s rights as the owner or manager of the 
road rights-of-way and shall not constitute any representation or warranty, express or implied, as 
to the adequacy of the design, construction, repair, or maintenance of the utility facilities, 
suitability of the Franchise Area for construction, maintenance, or repair of the utility facilities, or 
any obligation on the part of the County to insure that work or materials are in compliance with 
any requirements imposed by a governmental entity.  The County is under no obligation or duty 
to supervise the design, construction, installation, relocation, adjustment, realignment, 
maintenance, repair, or operation of the utility facilities.      
     

J.   Force Majeure.  Neither Party hereto shall be liable to the other Party for any failure to 
perform an obligation set forth herein to the extent such failure is caused by war, act of terrorism 
or an act of God, provided that such Party has made and is making all reasonable efforts to perform 
such obligation and minimize any and all resulting loss or damage.   

 
 K.  Construction.  All pronouns and any variations thereof shall be deemed to refer to the 
masculine, feminine or neuter, singular or plural, as the identity of the Party or Parties may require.  
The provisions of this franchise shall be construed as a whole according to their common meaning, 
except where specifically defined herein, not strictly for or against any party and consistent with 
the provisions contained herein in order to achieve the objectives and purposes of this franchise.   

 
L.  Incorporation by Reference.  All exhibits annexed hereto at the time of execution of 

this franchise or in the future as contemplated herein, are hereby incorporated by reference as 
though fully set forth herein. 

 



 
 15 

M.  Calculation of Time.  All periods of time referred to herein shall include Saturdays, 
Sundays, and legal holidays in the State of Washington, except that if the last day of any period 
falls on any Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the State of Washington, the period shall be 
extended to include the next day which is not a Saturday, Sunday, or legal holiday in the State of 
Washington. 

 
 N.  Entire Agreement.  This franchise is the full and complete agreement of County and 
City with respect to all matters covered herein and all matters related to the use of the Franchise 
Area by the City and the City’s Contractors, and this franchise supersedes any and all other 
agreements of the Parties hereto with respect to all such matters, including, without limitation, all 
agreements evidencing the franchise. 
 
 O.  No Recourse.  Without limiting such immunities as the County or other persons may 
have under applicable law, the City shall have no monetary recourse whatsoever against the 
County or its officials, boards, commissions, agents, or employees for any loss or damage arising 
out of the County’s exercising its authority pursuant to this Franchise or other applicable law. 

 
P.   Responsibility for Costs.  Except as expressly provided otherwise, any act that the City 

is required to perform under this franchise shall be performed at its cost.  If the City fails to perform 
work that it is required to perform within the time provided for performance, the County may 
perform the work and bill the City.  The City shall pay the amounts billed within 30 days.   

 
 Q.  Work of Contractors and Subcontractors.  Work by contractors and subcontractors is 
subject to the same restrictions, limitations, and conditions as if the work was performed by the 
City.  The City shall be responsible for all work performed by its contractors and subcontractors, 
and others performing work on its behalf, under its control, or under authority of its utility permit, 
as if the work were performed by it and shall ensure that all such work is performed in compliance 
with this franchise, Title 12 MCC, the Manual and other applicable law, and shall be jointly and 
severally liable for all damages and correcting all damage caused by them.  It is the City’s 
responsibility to ensure that contractors, subcontractors, or other Persons performing work on the 
City’s behalf are familiar with the requirements of the franchise, Title 12 MCC, the Manual, and 
other applicable laws governing the work performed by them. 
 
 R.  Term of Franchise and Survival of Terms.  The term of this Franchise shall be for a 
period of 10 years with automatic renewal at the end of the 10-year term unless either party gives 
the other written notice of termination at least 30 days prior to the end of the relevant term from 
and after the date of the entry of this order for the purposes, at the location(s), and upon the 
express terms and conditions as described herein. 
 
 Upon the expiration, termination, revocation or forfeiture of the franchise, the City shall no longer 
have the right to occupy the franchise area for the purpose of providing services authorized herein.  
However, the City’s obligations under this franchise to the County shall survive the expiration, 
termination, revocation or forfeiture of these rights according to its terms for so long as the City’s 
utility facilities shall remain in whole or in part in the road rights of way.  By way of illustration 
and not limitation, City’s obligations to indemnify, defend and hold harmless the County, provide 



 
 16 

insurance and a performance/payment bond pursuant to Section XI and City’s obligation to 
relocate its utility facilities pursuant to Section VIII, shall continue in effect as to the City, 
notwithstanding any expiration, termination, revocation or forfeiture of the franchise, except to the 
extent that a County-approved transfer, sale, or assignment of the utility system is completed, and 
another entity has assumed full and complete responsibility for the utility system or for the relevant 
acts or omissions. 

 
S. Warranties.  By acceptance of this franchise, City warrants: 

 
1. That City has full right and authority to enter into and perform this Franchise 

in accordance with the terms hereof, and by entering into or performing this Franchise, City is not 
in violation of its charter or by-laws, or any law, regulation, or agreement by which it is bound or 
to which it is subject; and 

 
2. That the execution, delivery, and performance of this Franchise by City has been duly 
authorized by all requisite City Council action, that the signatories for City of the acceptance hereof 
are authorized to sign this Franchise. 
 
A hearing before the County Commissioners of Mason County, Washington was held, on the                   
day of                                                      , 20       , at the hour of  9:15am, under the provisions of 
RCW 36.55, RCW 80.32.010 and RCW 80.36.040, and it appearing to the Board that notice of 
said hearing has been duly given as required by law 
DATED at Shelton, Washington this          day of                                     20    . 
 
 
      BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS 
APPROVED:     MASON COUNTY, WASHINGTON 
 
 
___________________________  __________________________________ 
County Engineer    Chair 
         
 
Approve as to form:    ___________________________________ 

Vice Chair 
 
                                                             
Chief D.P.A.                                                                         
      Commissioner 



 
 A 

Exhibit A 
ACCEPTANCE OF FRANCHISE 

 
County Ordinance No. 115-06, effective November 14, 2006. 
 
I, ____________________________, am the ____________ of ___________________               

and am the authorized representative to accept the above-referenced franchise on behalf of 

________________________. 

 I certify that this franchise and all terms and conditions thereof are accepted by 

__________________________, without qualification or reservation. 

 DATED this ____ day of ________________, 20___. 
 
     CITY 
 
 
     By:         
     Its:         
     Tax Id. No.       
 
STATE OF __________________ ) 
 ) ss. 
COUNTY OF _______________ ) 
 
 I certify that I know or have satisfactory evidence that       is the 
person who appeared before me, and said person acknowledged that he/she signed this instrument, on oath stated 
that he/she was authorized to execute the instrument and acknowledged it as the ________________________ 
of the ____________________________________ to be the free and voluntary act of such party for the uses 
and purposes mentioned in the instrument. 
 
 Dated:  ________________________ 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

     
Notary Public 
Print Name     
My commission expires     
 
 
 



 
 B 

 EXHIBIT B 
 

Description of Franchise Area 
 
 
 
All Mason County maintained roads and right-of-way within City of Shelton city limits and 
within the City Urban Growth Area.



 
 

RECORDED AT THE REQUEST OF 
AND AFTER RECORDING RETURN TO: 
 
County of Mason 
100 West Public Works Drive 
Shelton WA 98584 
Attn:  County Engineer 
 
 

 
 

 
Grantor:            COUNTY OF MASON, a legal subdivision of the state of Washington  
 
Grantee:            City of Shelton   

 
Legal Description of Benefited Property 

 
Legal Description: All Mason County maintained roads and rights-of-way within the City of  

Shelton city limits and the City Urban Growth Area  
 
                                

 
 
 
 
 



CITY OF SHELTON 
525 W. COTA STREET 

SHELTON, WASHINGTON 
(360) 432-5103 

 
 

TO: Shelton-Mason County Journal 
 

DATE:      December 21, 2020 
 

Please publish the following notice on December 24, 2020 
 

 
 

NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING 
for the 

CITY OF SHELTON 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1959-1120 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, 
ACCEPTING A NON-EXCLUSIVE FRANCHISE AGREEMENT 
BETWEEN MASON COUNTY AND THE CITY OF SHELTON 
FOR THE OPERATIONS AND MAINTENANCE OF WATER, 

SEWER, RECLAIMED WATER, AND STORMWATER 
UTILITIES 

 
The City Council will conduct a public hearing on January 5, 2021 at 6:00 p.m. 
to consider adoption of a Franchise Agreement with Mason County.  The public 
is invited to comment on the above referenced matters, or provide written 
testimony to the City Clerk. 
 
 
Donna Nault 
City Clerk 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G3) 

Touch Date:   12/18/2020            
Brief Date:      01/05/2021 
Action Date:   01/19/2021 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By: Aaron BeMiller 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
  Amending Shelton Municipal  
  Code Chapter 3.52  
     
  ATTACHMENTS:  
  Ordinance No. 1960-1220 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
This Ordinance will update City of Shelton Code Chapter 3.52.090 by providing an exemption to B&O tax for 
particular non-profit organizations.   
 
Currently, the City provides a B&O tax exemption non-profit organizations exempt from federal income tax 
under Section 501(c)3.  This legislation would change this exemption to all organizations exempt under Section 
501(c) of the Internal Revenue Code.  This change would be made retroactive to January 1, 2020. 
 
The City follows the B&O Tax Model Ordinance, however, the Model Ordinance allows cities to deviate from the 
non-mandatory provisions of the Ordinance.  As such, the City maintains compliance with the Model Ordinance 
with this change. 
 
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES: 
N/A  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
N/A  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
“I move that we approve this Ordinance as presented updating Shelton Municipal Code Chapter 3.52.090 to 
provide an exemption to B&O Tax for qualifying 501 (c) organizations”. 
 



  

ORDINANCE NO. 1960-1220 
 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON, RELATING TO 
EXEMPTIONS FROM BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX; AMENDING SHELTON 

MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 3.52 ENTITLED “BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION TAX”. 
 

WHEREAS, the City of Shelton WA, adopted the Model Ordinance for future assessment and 
collection of business and occupation taxes as required by all municipal governments assessing 
business and occupation tax; and 
 
WHEREAS, the intent of the Model Ordinance is to provide uniformity between cities for 
business and occupation tax rules; and  
 
WHEREAS, cities may pass legislation which deviates from non-mandatory provisions of the 
Model Ordinance; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to expand its exemption for 501(c)(3) tax-exempt nonprofit 
organizations to apply to all 501(c) tax-exempt nonprofit organizations, retroactive to January 1, 
2020; and 
 
NOW, THEREFORE, be it ordained by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 

 
Section 1. 

 

Chapter 3.52.090 A. of the Shelton Municipal Code for Business and Occupation Tax is amended as 
follows: 

A.    Nonprofit Corporations or Nonprofit Organizations. This chapter shall not apply to 
nonprofit organizations exempt from federal income tax under Section 501(c) of the Internal 
Revenue Code, as hereafter amended, except with respect to retail sales of such organizations. 

Section 2. 
 

All other sections and language of Chapter 3.52, Business and Occupation Tax remain in full 
force and effect. 
 

Section 3 
 
Severability. If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this ordinance is 
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such invalidity shall not affect the validity or 
effectiveness of the remaining portions of this ordinance.  
 

Section 4. 
 
Savings Clause. Chapter 3.52 of the Shelton Municipal Code shall remain in effect until such 
date as this ordinance becomes effective. 
 

 
 



  

Section 5. 
 
Effective Date. This ordinance shall take effect five days after passage and publication as 
required by law. It shall be retroactive to January 1, 2020. 
 
INTRODUCED this 5th day of January 2021. 
 
ADOPTED by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Mason County, Washington at a regular open 
public meeting held the 19th day of January 2021. 
 
       
 
 
 
  _____________________ 
  Kevin Dorcy, Mayor 
  
   

AUTHENTICATED:  
 
 
  _____________________ 

Donna Nault, City Clerk 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G4) 

Touch Date:  12/15/2020          
Brief Date:     01/05/2021 
Action Date:   01/19/2021 

 

Department: Finance 
   
Presented By: Aaron BeMiller 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
2021 Master Fee Schedule 
Update 

  ATTACHMENTS:  
        - Resolution No. 1184-1120 
        - Exhibit A 
 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
12/24/2020 

 
 

 
Attorney  

 
 

 
City Clerk 12/28/2020 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
12/28/2020      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

This Resolution updates the City’s Master Fee Schedule for 2021.  The City annually updates fees to 
incorporate changes in the cost to provide certain City services, update services provided for a fee/charge, 
and eliminate fees for services that are no longer relevant. 
 
Fees and Charges for services, excluding utility services, may be set at a level that recovers all the direct 
and indirect costs associated with the activity, including administrative overhead.   
 
Utility rates, Utility system charges, and Utility service fees should be set to recover the cost of operating 
the utility systems, in addition to charging for replacing equipment and adding or expanding facilities to 
meet regulations, future service demands, and setting aside for unforeseen events such as natural 
disasters.  Revenues for fees and charges must meet the expenses of the system, in addition to setting 
aside reserves, to keep the utility operating in a fiscally responsible manner.  Utility rates should also 
incorporate the utility’s portion of indirect costs. 
 
There has been a change to Exhibit A since Council heard this Resolution on 1/5/21.  At the 1/5/21 
meeting the City’s Master Fee Schedule included CMFE fees.  Per the new inter-local agreement, the City 
will collect the payment for all CMFE fees.  However, after continued internal conversations those fees 
were removed from the City’s Master Fee Schedule as those are CMFE fees, not City fees, regardless of 
which entity collects them.  No other changes have been made to the fee schedule from the 1/5/21 
meeting. 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
 
BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

Information can be obtained from the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move that we adopt Resolution No. 1184-1120 setting the City’s Master Fee Schedule for 2021”. 



RESOLUTION NO.  1184-1120 
 

A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF SHELTON, WASHINGTON  
UPDATING AND ESTABLISHING THE CITY’S MASTER FEE SCHEDULE FOR FISCAL 

YEAR 2021 
 

 
WHEREAS, it is the general policy of the city to establish fees that are reflective of the cost of services 
provided by the city; and 
 
WHEREAS, it is best practice for the City’s Master Fee Schedule be updated annually to reflect changes 
in the cost for certain City services. 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED, by the City Council of the City of Shelton, Washington, as 
follows: 
 
Section 1.  Public Interest.  The City Council for the City of Shelton, Washington finds that it is in the 
public interest to amend and supersede the previously adopted Master Fee Schedule to address costs 
associated with providing services. 
 
Section 2.  Supersede previous Resolutions.  This resolution inclusive of Exhibit “A” attached hereto shall 
supersede in its entirety Resolution 1155-0120 approved by the Shelton City Council and set the City’s 
2021 Master Fee Schedule. 
 
Section 3.  Adjustments.  The Shelton City Council amends the Master Fee Schedule to include Exhibit 
“A”. 
 
Section 4.  Effective date.  This resolution shall be in full force and effect on February 1, 2021. 
 
INTRODUCED AND PASSED by the City Council of the City of Shelton on this 19th day of January 
2021. 
 
 
 
 
 __________________________________ 
ATTEST:                                                                Mayor Dorcy 
 
   
___________________________  
City Clerk Nault    
     



 
 

1 
 

 
 
 

 

City of Shelton  

525 Cota Street 

Shelton, Washington 98584 

Master Fee Schedule 

RESOLUTION 1184-1120 

Exhibit “A” 

 

 

General Government………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 2 

Animal Shelter……………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 3 

Civic Center………………………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 3 

Code Enforcement……………………………………………………………………………………….. pg. 4 

Parks and Recreation…………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 4 

Police Department…………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 4 

Community Development…………………………………………………………………………………………....... pg. 5 

Planning………………………………………………………………………………………………………. pg. 5 

Building……………………………………………………………………..………………………………… pg. 6 

Public Works………………………………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 14 

Sanitary Sewer…………………………………………………………………………………………… pg. 15 

Reclaimed Water……………………………………………………………………………….………. pg. 16 

Water……………………………………………………………………………………………….……….. pg. 17 

Misc. and Grade and Fill…………………………………………………………………..………… pg. 18 

 

 

 

 



 
 

2 
 

 

Type of Permit        Fee 

General Government           

Annual Report $10.00 

Documents provided at Public Hearings 
Audio Reproduction (when requested within 
one year of hearing).  *Other than Police 

$0.00 (within one year) 
$10.00 (requested after one year of hearing 

date) 
Video Reproduction * Other than Police $10.00 
Copies  $0.15 per page 

Scanned copies to electronic format $0.10 per page 

Files or attachments for electronic delivery $0.05 per four (4) attachments 

Gigabyte of electronic records for 
transmission 

$0.10 per gigabyte 

Storage media, container, envelope, postage 
and delivery charge 

Actual Cost 

R.C.W. 42.56.120 (2) (b) (c) and (e)  

New and renewal of Business License $50.00 

Sexually Oriented Business License $100.00 

Sexually Oriented Manager or Entertainer $50.00 

Taxi Operator License (per operator) $40.00 

Taxi Vehicle License (per vehicle) $40.00 

Returned Check charge $40.00 

VISA/MC chargeback $35.00 

Special Event Permit $35.00 (An additional $25.00 is due for 
applications received 25 business days or less 

prior to the event).  
City Special Event services (barricades, 
garbage, etc.) 

$25.00 (per event, per service) 

Displays on City message boards $30.00 

 

Map Reproduction Color 36 x 48 $18.00 



 
 

3 
 

Color 24 x 36 $12.00 
Special Order 36 x 48 $30.00 
Special Order 24 x 36 $20.00 

Black Line $1.00 (Per square foot) 
 

Animal Shelter 

Adoption Fee $80.00 ($100.00) 

Adoption Fee with Rabies Vaccine $112.50 

Animal License ($5.00 discount for 

spayed/neutered dogs) No fee for service 

dogs. Senior citizen 65 yrs. and older 50% off 

licensing.  

$15.00($30.00) 

Rabies Vaccination $32.50 

Surrender of Dog (City residents only) $25.00($40.00) 

Animal Impound (City residents) First impoundment $30.00($50.00) 
Second impoundment $50.00($75.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment 
$100.00($150.00) 

All impound fees shall also be charged unpaid 
animal license fees.  

Boarding fee (over 48 hours) $15.00 per day($30.00) 

Lost license or transfer of license $5.00($10.00) 

Non-resident animal impound fee First impoundment $80.00($150.00) 
Second impoundment $130.00($200.00) 

Third and subsequent impoundment 
$180.00($250.00) 

 

Civic Center Rental  

Damage Deposit $300.00 

Kitchen $50.00 

Black drapery $2.00 (per 10 foot section) 



 
 

4 
 

Staging $10.00 (use of 1 – 4 sections) 

Equipment Rental TV Monitor $10.00 
Multimedia Projector $20.00 

Coffee Service $25.00 (per gallon) 

Meeting rooms $22.00 per hour for each 600 sq. ft. 

Main meeting room $75.00 per hour 

 

Code Enforcement 

Infraction Issued 
Fees including site visit(s), photos, file 
creation, documentation, etc.  Plus itemized 
fees to include attorney costs, additional 
tracked staff time and costs, title searches, 
service, court filing fees, which may be 
included in the city request for abatement 
cost reimbursement per R.C.W. 35.21.955 

$68.00 minimum 

 

Parks and Recreation 

Parks Master Plan $20.00 

Ballfields and Playfields (Callahan Park/Loop 
Field. 

Field Rental $12.00 per hour 
Softball Field preparation $20.00 each field 

City recreation programs Actual cost of program 

Refunds Before first class: %100 
Before second class: %80 

Before third class: %50 
After third class: No refunds 

Picnic Shelters $12.50 per hour.  Two hour minimum, plus 
applicable fees for garbage, labor, misc. 

Commercial Park (Use by individual, 
company, corporation, business or similar for 
the purposes of selling, distributing, or 
promotion.  

$25.00 

 

Police Department  



 
 

5 
 

Fingerprints $60.00 

Video Reproduction Time and material 

Audio Reproduction Time and material 

Weapons Permit  $49.25 

Weapons Permit renewal  $32.00 

Weapons Permit renewal – late application $42.00 

Weapons Permit – replacement $10.00 

Weapons Dealer Permit $125.00 

Excess Alarm fee $25.00 after three (3) false alarms 

 

Community Development – Planning 

Address Assignment $100.00 

Annexation  $1,200.00 plus $40.00 per acre or fraction 
thereof.   

Appeal to the Hearing Examiner Individual - $1,000.00 
H.O.A. - $500.00 

Boundary Line Adjustment $315.00 

Comprehensive Plan Amendment $2,600.00 

Comprehensive Plan document $35.00 

Conditional Use Permit $2,700.00 

SEPA $300.00 

EIS $1,400.00 plus consultant costs 

Fence $75.00 residential 
$180.00 commercial 

Forest Practices Application $350.00 

Plat/Binding Site Plan Preliminary:  $3,300.00 plus $40.00 per lot 
Extension: $200.00 

Final:  $500.00  
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00  



 
 

6 
 

Planned Unit Development Preliminary:  $3,000.00 plus $25.00 per lot 
Extension:  $200.00 

Final:  $500.00 plus $30.00 per lot 
Administrative Amendments:  $200.00 

Public Hearing Amendments:  $1,500.00   
Parcel combination $320.00  

Pre-submittal conference $150.00 

RV/Tent Occupancy Application $45.00 

Short Plat $920.00 

Site Plan Review $1,200.00 

Site Plan amendment $110.00 

Variance Permit $2,700.00 

Zone Change  $2,400.00 

Zoning Letter $45.00 

Zoning Ordinance Text Amendment $435.00 

Signs $50.00 when no building permit required 
$55.00 per square foot valuation with 

building permit 
 

Shoreline Specific applications  

Shoreline Management Program document $35.00 

Shoreline Statement of Exemption $170.00 
Substantial Development Permit $560.00 

Public Hearing Required: $2,300.00 
Shoreline Conditional Use Permit $2,300.00 

Shoreline Variance $2,300.00 

 

Community Development – Building 

After Hours Inspections (Regular business 
hours 8am to 5pm Monday through Friday). 

$70.00 per hour (two hour minimum) 

Re-inspection fee $70.00 per hour (one hour minimum) 



 
 

7 
 

Inspections for which no fee is specifically 
indicated. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Additional plan review required for plan 
changes. 

$70.00 per hour (one half hour minimum) 

Note:  For the building fees above, or the 
total; hourly cost to the jurisdiction, 
whichever is the greatest. This cost shall 
include supervision, overhead, equipment, 
hourly wages and fringe benefits of the 
employees involved. 
Actual costs include administrative and 
overhead costs. 

 

Building Valuation 

*NOTE: all footnotes of Building Valuation 
Data as published by ICC shall apply 

1) New construction, and remodels greater 
than 50%: of "R" occupancies   The City of 
Shelton will utilize the International Code 
Council’s “Building Valuation Data Table” on 
a two year lag as published in the August 
edition of the Building Safety Journal.  The 
square footage valuations from this table will 
be implemented on the first day of 
September following publication and remain 
in force through August of the following year. 
2) Private garages, storage buildings, green 
houses and similar structures shall be valued 
as Utility, Miscellaneous  
3) Remodels less than 50% shall be valued at 
50% of the table value from the ICC Building 
Valuation Data for occupancy specified. 

Bulkheads $20.00 per cubic foot 

Building Permit 

NOTE:  Washington State surcharge applies:  

$25.00 Commercial, $6.50 Residential. 

 

Valuation: 
$1.00 to $500.00: $25.00 

$501.00 to $2,000.00:  $25.00 and $3.00 per 
each additional $100 or fraction thereof and 

including $2,000 
$2,001.00 to $25,000.00:  $70.00 and $14.00 

for each additional $1,000 or fraction 
thereof to and including $25,000 

$25,000.00 to $50,000.00:  $390.00 and 
$10.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $50,000 



 
 

8 
 

$50,001.00 to $100,000.00:  $640.00 and 
$7.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $100,000 
$100,001.00 to $500,000.00:  $1,000.00 and 
$6.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $500,000 
500,001.00 to $1,000,000.00:  $3,400.00 and 
$5.00 for each additional $1,000 or fraction 

thereof to and including $1,000,000 
$1,000,000 and up: $5,700 and $7.00 for 

each additional $1,000 or fraction thereof to 
and including $1,000,000  

 
       

Maximum Building Permit fee $50,000.00 

Early Foundation Permit/Early start 
agreement (Early foundation permit for 
commercial/industrial building will be 
deducted from permit fee upon full 
submittal. 

25% of building permit fee 

Demolition permit $120.00 plus State surcharge 

Reroof – residential only     $115.00 

Reroof –commercial 

 per square valuation is used to determine 

valuation 

$275.00 per square   - 

Class A&B (hotmop/torchdown) 

$250.00 per square  - 

Composition( roll/3 tab) 

$325.00 per square  - 

Composition with plywood replacement 

$300.00 per square  -  Metal 

$275.00 per square  -  Shake 

$300.00 per square    -   Shingle 

Windows $25.00 first window, $7.00 for each 

additional window 



 
 

9 
 

Reissuance of lost permit card $30.00 

Reissuance of plan package $140.00 

Stock Plans 50% of the ICC fee 

Solid Fuel/Gas insert $140.00 

Hearing Examiner appeal $2,400.00 

Request for Reconsideration $500.00 

Investigation fee $70.00 per hour 

Mechanical Permit Each mechanical permit:  $25.00 
 
FURNACE: 
For issuing each supplemental permit for 
which the original permit for the original 
permit has not expired, been canceled, or 
final:  $8.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3kW):  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
forced-air or gravity-type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such 
appliance, over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW):  
$20.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each floor 
furnace, including vent:  $16.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
suspended heater, recessed wall heater on 
floor-mounted unit heater:  $16.00 
 
Appliance Vents: 
For the installation, relocation or 
replacement of each appliance vent and not 



 
 

10 
 

included in an appliance permit:  $8.00 
 
Repairs or Additions: 
For the repair of, or addition to each heating 
appliance, refrigeration unit, cooling unit, 
absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, 
absorption or evaporative cooling system, 
including installation of controls regulated by 
the Mechanical Code:  $15.00 
 
 
Boilers, Compressors, and Absorption 
Systems: 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption 
system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW):  $15.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over three horsepower 
(10.6 kW) to and including 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 
100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW):  $30.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower 
(52.7 kW) to and including 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW):  $40.00 
 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $60.00 



 
 

11 
 

 
For the installation or relocation of each 
boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower 
(176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW):  $100.00 
 
Air Handlers: 
For each air-handling unit to and including 
10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 
L/s), including ducts attached thereto:  
$12.00 
 
Note: This fee does not apply to an air-
handling unit, which is a portion of a factory- 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, 
evaporative cooler or absorption unit for 
which a permit is required elsewhere in the 
Mechanical Code for each air-handling unit 
over 10,000 cfm (4719 L/s):  $20.00 
 
Evaporative Coolers: 
For each evaporative cooler other than 
portable type:  $12.00 
 
Ventilation and Exhaust: 
For each ventilation fan connected to a single 
duct:  $8.00 
 
For each ventilation system which is not 
portion of any heating or air-conditioning 
system authorized by a permit:  $12.00 
 
For the installation of each hood which is 
served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood:  $12.00 
 
Incinerators:   
For the installation or relocation of each 
domestic-type incinerator:  $20.00 
 



 
 

12 
 

For the installation or relocation of each 
commercial or industrial-type incinerator:  
$16.00 
 
Miscellaneous: 
For each appliance or piece of equipment 
regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for 
which no other fee is listed in the table:  
$12.00 

Mobile/Manufactured Home set-up Individual Lot:  $472.00 
Park Set:  $165.00 

NOTE:  Includes 4x4 landing 
Mobile Home Title Eliminations $30.00 

Plan Review (All types other than 
Mechanical) 
*NOTE: Commercial kitchen based on project 
valuation of engineer's written estimate. 

65% of Permit fee 
Mechanical only:  25% of Permit fee 

Plumbing Permit Each permit:  $25.00 
 
NOTE: Unit Fee Schedule in addition to above 

 
For each plumbing fixture on one trap or a 
set of fixtures on one trap (including water, 
drainage piping, and backflow protection 
therefore):  $8.00 
 
For each building sewer and each trailer park 
sewer:  $16.00 
 
Rainwater systems per drain (inside building):  
$8.00 
 
For each cesspool where permitted:  $27.00 
 
For each private sewage disposal system:  
$45.00 
 
For each water heater and/or vent:  $8.00 
 



 
 

13 
 

For each industrial waste pretreatment 
interceptor including its trap and vent, except 
kitchen-type grease interceptors functioning 
as fixture traps:  $8.00 
 
For each installation, alteration or repair of 
water piping and/or water treating 
equipment, each:  $8.00 
 
For each repair or alteration of drainage or 
vent piping, each fixture:  $8.00 
 
For each lawn sprinkler system on any one 
meter including backflow protection devices 
therefore:  $8.00 
 
For each backflow protective device other 
than atmospheric type vacuum breakers: 

• 2 inch (51 mm) diameter and smaller:  
$8.00 

• over 2 inch (51 mm) diameter:  
$16.00 

Atmospheric-type vacuum breakers: 
• 1 to 5:  $5.00 
• over 5, each:  $2.00 

Propane Tanks and Piping (above and below 
ground) 

$12.00 per tank 

Refund: 
2015-IBC Section 109.6 / 2015-IRC Section 
R108.5 

The building official may authorize refunding 
on not more than fifty percent (50%) of the 
permit fee paid when no work has been done 
under a permit issued in accordance with this 
code.  The building official may authorize   
refunding of not more than seventy-five 
percent (75%) of the plan review fee paid 
when an applicant for a permit for which a 
plan review fee has not been paid is 
withdrawn or canceled before any plan 
reviewing is done. The building official shall 
not authorize refunding of any fee paid 
except on written application filed by the 



 
 

14 
 

original permittee no later than 180 days 
after the date of fee paid. 

 

 

Public Works 

Right-of-Way and Obstruction Permits 
(SMC Chapter 12.20) 

Class 1: Short term maintenance permit:  $45.00 
Class 2: Temporary Construction of permit:  $65.00, 
              plus inspection fees 
Class 3: Fixture and Encroachment Permit:  $65.00, 
               Sidewalk café, add $280.00/hr review fee. 
               Class 3 Permit $15.00 annual renewal fee 
Class 4: Heavy Right-of-Way Use Permits: Fee 
               calculated per SMC Sections 12.20.030.4 & 
               12.20.040.D 

Fine for Work in Right of Way without 
Permits 

$250.00 plus standard permit fee 

Special Development Studies:  Traffic Impact 
Reports, Hydrology studies, and similar. 

Contract Consultant fees 

Traffic Impact Fee $3,735.71 for SFR/varies based on use.  ORD. 1907-
1017 Exhibit B 

  
  
Public Improvement Plan Review Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements 
Public Improvement Inspection Fee 3% of Estimated Cost of Public Improvements 
Latecomer Agreement  $280.00 
Right-of-Way vacation $500.00 
Utility Connection Application Permit Fee 

a. Water & Reclaimed Water Connections 
b. Sewer & Storm Drainage Connections 

 
$170.00 plus applicable GFC 

$65.00 plus applicable GFC 
  
Class A Bio-Solids Fertilizer fee $20.00 per 1.66 cy bag 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

15 
 

Sewer GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4" 1.00 $3,258.00 

1” 2.50 $8,145.00 

1.5” 5.00 $16,290.00 

2” 8.00 $26,064.00 

3” 16.00 $48,870.00 

4” 25.00 $81,495.00 

6” 50.00 $162,900.00 

8” 80.00 $260,640.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 

the equivalent charge above. 

Sewer GFC (Grandview Heights only) 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4“ 1.00 $1,629.00 

1“ 2.50 $4,072.00 

1.5” 5.00 $8,145.00 

2” 8.00 $13,032.00 

3” 16.00 $24,435.00 

4” 25.00 $40,725.00 

6” 50.00 $81,495.00 

8” 80.00 $130,320.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

16 
 

 

Reclaimed Water 

Water Meter Charge         Fee 

3/4" Meter $238.16 

1” $354.91 

1.5” $760.43 

2” $1,029.38 

3” $2,018.65 

4” $3,170.16 

6” $4,298.21 

Above 6” $6,095.57 

 

Reclaimed Water GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4”  1.00 $326.00 

1” 2.50 $815.00 

1.5” 5.00 $1,629.00 

2” 8.00 $2,606.00 

3” 16.00 $4,887.00 

4” 25.00 $8,150.00 

6” 50.00 $16,290.00 

8” 80.00 $26,064.00 

 

 

 

 

 



 
 

17 
 

Water Fees 

Water Turn off for other than non-payment 
(regular business hours) 

$0.00 

Water Turn off for non-payment $100.00 

Water Turn off (after business hours) $100.00 

Water Turn on (regular business hours) $0.00 

Water Turn on (after business hours) $100.00 

Annual Hydrant Water Use Permit 
Application Fee (from issuance date) 

$70.00 

Hydrant Meter, Gate Valve, and Wrench 
Deposit and Rental Fee 

$750.00 refundable deposit 
$75 per month rental fee 

Hydrant Water  Billing and Water Use Charge 

and PWM Hydrant Load/Use Charge 

$45.00 quarterly billing charge, plus 
commercial water consumption charge per 

SMC 15.28.050 
  

  

Fine for connection to hydrant without 
permit 

$1,000.00 

Fine for connection to hydrant without meter $500.00 

Fine for unauthorized 
connection/disconnection of water service 

$500.00 

  

 

Water Meter Charge 

3/4" meter $238.16 

1” meter $354.91 

1.5” meter $760.43 

2” meter $1,029.38 

3” meter $2,018.65 

4” meter $3,170.16 



 
 

18 
 

6” meter $4,298.21 

Above 6” meter $6,095.57 

 

Water Meter GFC 

Water Meter Size   Weighting Factor    Fee 

3/4” 1.00 $1,260.00 

1” 2.50 $3,150.00 

1.5” 5.00 $6,300.00 

2” 8.00 $10,080.00 

3” 16.00 $18,900.00 

4” 25.00 $31,500.00 

6” 50.00 $63,000.00 

8” 80.00 $100,800.00 

• Developments pursuant to SMC 18.02.110 shall be charged twenty-five percent (25%) of 
the equivalent charge above. 

 

Misc. 

Commercial Fire Line No Charge 

Backflow Testing No Charge 

 

 

Private Development ESC & Stormwater: 

ESC & Storm plan review, single family $75.00 

ESC & Storm plan review all other sites $320.00  

Final grading, ESC, & Stormwater inspections $80.00 

 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G5) 

Touch Date:  12/15/2020            
Brief Date:     01/05/2021 
Action Date:   01/19/2021 

Department: Community Development 
   
Presented By: Mark Ziegler, Director 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

  PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
Contracts for Supplemental 
Budget Code Services  

   
ATTACHMENTS:  

  Consultant Contracts 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head  

 
 

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 
 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 
 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 
 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   

The review and permit large commercial projects or significant residential construction activity in a 
timely manner is important to the City’s economic vitality, supplemental building code services are 
needed to augment the lone City staff person in an effort to maintain reasonable review time and 
inspection schedules. The supplemental services may also be utilized if there is a potential for a 
conflict of interest.   
 
On October 16 the Community Development Department requested statements of qualifications 
from consultants to provide supplemental building code services.  Four responsive submittals 
were received by the November 20 deadline.  Staff reviewed the qualifications of the consultants 
and is recommending the top two consultants to proceed with contract execution.   
 
 

ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
This is the most economical way to provide such services.  Adding staff to address an uptick in 
permits is not a long-term solution at this time. 

 
 

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION: 
Services are billed at a percentage of the City’s building and plan review fees based on work orders.  

 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  

None 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  

“I move to approve the supplemental building code services contracts with Clarity Consulting Engineers 
and CodePros, LLC and authorize the Mayor to sign”. 

 



    

Page 1 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

CONTRACT FOR SERVICES 
 

City of Shelton and Clarity Consulting Engineers, LLC 
 
This Agreement is entered into by and between the City of Shelton, Washington, ("the City") and 
Clarity Consulting Engineers, LLC, ("the Consultant"), whose principal office is located at 13031 
Lala Cove Lane, Olalla, WA 98359.  
 
 
WHEREAS, the City has determined the need to have engineering services performed for the 
Supplemental Building Code Services Pool; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City opened proposals submitted in response to the Request for Qualifications 
on November 20, 2020 and selected Clarity Consulting Engineers following review of proposals 
received; and 
 
WHEREAS, the City desires to have the Consultant perform such services pursuant to the 
following terms and conditions;  
 
NOW, THEREFORE, IN CONSIDERATION OF the mutual benefits and conditions set forth 
below, the parties hereto agree as follows: 
 
1. Scope of Services to be Performed by Consultant.  The Consultant shall perform 

services, as described on Exhibit "A" attached hereto and incorporated herein by this 
reference as if fully set forth in this contract.  Any other services must be agreed by the 
City and the Consultant parties if not specified throughout. 
 

 
2. Compliance with Applicable Industry Standards, Laws and Requirements. In 

performing such services, the Consultant shall at all times comply with all federal, state 
and local laws applicable to the performance of such services. It is the Consultant's 
responsibility to identify and comply with such laws, including but not limited to 
Washington's laws against discrimination; Washington's Industrial Safety and Health Act 
and associated regulations; Washington's Unemployment Compensation provisions, and 
any other applicable laws, statutes, regulations or requirements otherwise applicable to 
the services provided under this Agreement. 

 
3. Registration, Licensing and Bonding. Consultant shall at all times maintain appropriate 

registration, licensing and bonding applicable to professional services to be performed 
pursuant to this Agreement, and has provided or will provide written evidence of the 
same to the City upon execution of this Agreement, and shall require and produce the 
same with respect to any subcontractors/assignees (if the same are authorized by the City 
to perform pursuant to the terms of this Agreement). 

 
4. Time Devoted. The Consultant shall devote such time as reasonably necessary for the 

satisfactory performance of the services under this Agreement. Should Client require 
additional services not included under this Agreement, the Consultant shall make 



    

Page 2 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

reasonable effort to provide such additional services within the time schedule without 
decreasing the effectiveness of the performance of services required under this 
Agreement, and shall be compensated for such additional services as agreed between the 
Parties. 

 
5. Provisions of Facilities, Equipment, Personnel. The Consultant shall furnish the 

facilities, equipment and personnel necessary to perform the services required under this 
Agreement unless otherwise provided herein. 

 
6.  Compensation and Method of Payment. No minimum level of compensation is 

guaranteed under this Agreement. Compensation will be based on services actually 
requested by the City and performed by the Consultant. In consideration of the Consultant 
providing services, the City shall pay the Consultant for the services performed on each 
Work Order in accordance with the fee schedule included herein as "Exhibit B."  

The Consultant shall complete and return Exhibit "C", Tax Identification Number, to the 
City prior to or along with the first billing voucher submittal.  The Consultant is required 
to have a City Business license and no payment will be made until one is obtained. 

 
7. Provisions for Changes in Scope of Consultant Services.  The Consultant agrees to 

perform those services which are described in Exhibit "A" attached hereto.  Unless 
modified in writing and agreed to by both parties, the duties of the Consultant shall not be 
construed to exceed those services.  The City and the Consultant agree that if additional 
duties are to be performed by the Consultant in the prosecution of this work, the 
Consultant shall submit an additional or supplemental work program and upon the City's 
approval, shall be compensated on the same terms of this contract as previously stated, or 
in a manner mutually agreed upon by both parties. 

 
8. Duration of Agreement.  This Agreement shall be in full force and effect for a period 

commencing on the date of execution and ending December 31, 2022, unless sooner 
terminated under the provisions hereinafter specified.  To meet the needs of the City's on-
going projects and by Agreement of both parties this contract may be amended to extend 
the expiration date until December 31, 2023, or completion of work authorized under this 
Agreement whichever is later. 

 
9. Ownership and Use of Documents.  All documents, drawings, specifications, and other 

materials produced by the Consultant in connection with the services rendered under this 
Agreement shall be the property of the City whether the project for which they are made 
is executed or not.  The City shall hold the Consultant harmless for the City's use of the 
documents, drawings, specifications, and other materials outside of the project intended. 

 
10. Independent Consultant.  The Consultant and the City agree that the Consultant is an 

Independent Contractor with respect to the services provided pursuant to this Agreement. 
Nothing in this Agreement shall be considered to create the relationship of employer and 
employee between the parties.  Neither the Consultant nor any employee of the 
Consultant shall be entitled to any benefits accorded City employees by virtue of the 
services provided under this Agreement.  The City shall not be responsible for paying, 
withholding, or otherwise deducting any customary state or federal payroll deductions, 



    

Page 3 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

including but not limited to FICA, FUTA, state industrial insurance, state workers 
compensation, or otherwise assuming the duties of an employer with respect to the 
Consultant or any employee of the Consultant. 

 
In accordance with Shelton Municipal Code, for the privilege of accepting or executing a 
contract with the City of Shelton, irrespective of whether goods or services are delivered 
within or outside the city, or whether the person's office is within or outside the city, the 
Consultant is subject to the licensing requirements and business and occupation tax levied 
in SMC Chapters 5.04.030 and 3.52.060. 

 
11. Indemnification / Hold Harmless 

Consultant shall defend, indemnify and hold the Public Entity, its officers, officials, 
employees and volunteers harmless from any and all claims, injuries, damages, losses or 
suits including attorney fees, arising out of or resulting from the acts, errors or omissions 
of the Consultant in performance of this Agreement, except for injuries and damages 
caused by the sole negligence of the Public Entity. 

 
Should a court of competent jurisdiction determine that this Agreement is subject to 
RCW 4.24.115, then, in the event of liability for damages arising out of bodily injury to 
persons or damages to property caused by or resulting from the concurrent negligence of 
the Consultant and the Public Entity, its officers, officials, employees, and volunteers, the 
Consultant's liability, including the duty and cost to defend, hereunder shall be only to the 
extent of the Consultant's negligence.  It is further specifically and expressly understood 
that the indemnification provided herein constitutes the Consultant's waiver of immunity 
under Industrial Insurance, Title 51 RCW, solely for the purposes of this indemnification. 
 This waiver has been mutually negotiated by the parties.  The provisions of this section 
shall survive the expiration or termination of this Agreement. 

 
A. Insurance Term 

 
The Consultant shall procure and maintain for the duration of the Agreement, insurance 
against claims for injuries to persons or damage to property which may arise from or in 
connection with the performance of the work hereunder by the Consultant, its agents, 
representatives, or employees. 

 
B. No Limitation 

 
The Consultant's maintenance of insurance as required by the Agreement shall not be 
construed to limit the liability of the Consultant to the coverage provided by such 
insurance, or otherwise limit the Public Entity's recourse to any remedy available at law 
or in equity. 

 
C. Minimum Scope of Insurance 

 
The Consultant shall obtain insurance of the types and coverage described below: 

 



    

Page 4 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

1. Automobile Liability insurance covering all owned, non-owned, hired and leased 
vehicles.  Coverage shall be as least as broad as Insurance Services Office (ISO) form CA 
00 01. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be at least as broad as ISO 
occurrence form CG 00 01 and shall cover liability arising from premises, operations, 
stop-gap independent contractors and personal injury and advertising injury.  The Public 
Entity shall be named as an additional insured under the Consultant's Commercial 
General Liability insurance policy with respect to the work performed for the Public 
Entity using an additional insured endorsement at least as broad as ISO CG 20 26. 

 
3. Workers' Compensation coverage as required by the Industrial Insurance laws of 
the State of Washington. 

 
4. Professional Liability insurance appropriate to the Consultant's profession. 
 
D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance 

 
The Consultant shall maintain the following insurance limits: 

 
1. Automobile Liability insurance with a minimum combined single limit for bodily 
injury and property damage of $1,000,000 per accident. 

 
2. Commercial General Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 each occurrence, $2,000,000 general aggregate. 

 
3. Professional Liability insurance shall be written with limits no less than 
$1,000,000 per claim and $1,000,000 policy aggregate limit. 

 
E. Other Insurance Provision 

 
The Consultant's Automobile Liability and Commercial General Liability insurance 
policies are to contain, or be endorsed to contain that they shall be primary insurance as 
respect the Public Entity.  Any insurance, self-insurance, or self-insured pool coverage 
maintained by the Public Entity shall be excess of the Consultant's insurance and shall not 
contribute with it. 

 
F. Acceptability of Insurers 

 
Insurance is to be placed with insurers with a current A.M. Best rating of not less than 
A:VII. 

 
G. Verification of Coverage 

 
The Consultant shall furnish the Public Entity with original certificates and a copy of the 
amendatory endorsements, including but not necessarily limited to the additional insured 



    

Page 5 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

endorsement, evidencing the insurance requirements of the Consultant before 
commencement of the work. 

 
H. Notice of Cancellation 

 
The Consultant shall provide the Public Entity with written notice of any policy 
cancellation within two business days of their receipt of such notice. 

 
I. Failure to Maintain Insurance 

 
Failure on the part of the Consultant to maintain the insurance as required shall constitute 
a material breach of contract, upon which the Public Entity may, after giving five 
business days notice to the Consultant to correct the breach, immediately terminate the 
contract or, at its discretion, procure or renew such insurance and pay any and all 
premiums in connection therewith, with any sums so expended to be repaid to the Public 
Entity on demand, or at the sole discretion of the Public Entity, offset against funds due 
the Consultant from the Public Entity. 

 
J. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits 

 
If the Consultant maintains higher insurance limits than the minimums shown above, the 
Public Entity shall be insured for the full available limits of Commercial General and 
Excess or Umbrella liability maintained by the Consultant, irrespective of whether such 
limits maintained by the Consultant are greater than those required by this contract or 
whether any certificate of insurance furnished to the Public Entity evidences limits of 
liability lower than those maintained by the Consultant. 

 
12. Record Keeping and Reporting. 
 

A. The Consultant shall maintain accounts and records, including personnel, 
property, financial, and programmatic records, which sufficiently and properly 
reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended and services performed 
pursuant to this Agreement.  The Consultant shall also maintain such other 
records as may be deemed necessary by the City to ensure proper accounting of all 
funds contributed by the City to the performance of this Agreement. 

 
B. These records shall be maintained for a period of seven (7) years after termination 

hereof unless permission to destroy them is granted by the Office of the Archivist 
in accordance with RCW Chapter 40.14 and by the City. 

 
13. Audits and Inspections.  The records and documents with respect to all matters covered 

by this Agreement shall be subject at all times to inspection, review, or audit as allowed 
by law during the performance of this Agreement.  The City shall have the right to 
conduct an audit of the Consultant's financial statement and condition and to a copy of the 
results of any such audit or other examination performed by or on behalf of the 
Consultant. 

 



    

Page 6 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

14. Termination.  This Agreement may at any time be terminated for any reason by the City 
upon giving to the Consultant thirty (30) days written notice of the City's intention to 
terminate the same. If the Consultant's insurance coverage is canceled for any reason, the 
City shall have the right to terminate this Agreement immediately.  Consultant will be 
paid for satisfactory work performed through the date of termination. 

 
15. Discrimination Prohibited.  The Consultant shall not discriminate against any 

employee, applicant for employment, or any person seeking the services of the Consultant 
under this Agreement on the basis of race, color, religion, creed, sex, age, national origin, 
marital status, or presence of any sensory, mental, or physical handicap, or any other 
protected class. 

 
16. Assignment and Subcontract.  The Consultant shall not assign or subcontract any 

portion of the services contemplated by this Agreement without the prior written consent 
of the City. 

 
17. Entire Agreement.  This Agreement and Exhibits A, B, & C contain the entire 

Agreement between the parties hereto, and no other agreements, oral or otherwise, 
regarding the subject matter of this Agreement shall be deemed to exist or bind either 
party.  Either party may request changes to the Agreement.  Proposed changes, which are 
mutually agreed upon and signed by each parties authorized signatory, shall be 
incorporated by written amendments to this Agreement. 

 
18. Notices. The designated project representative for the City of Shelton is:  
 
   Sean Carlstrom 
   Building Official 
   City of Shelton  
   525 West Cota Street 
   Shelton, Washington 98584 
   Phone number: (360) 432-5175 

Email:  sean.carlstrom@sheltonwa.gov 
 

Notices to the City shall be sent to the address noted above.  
 

The designated project representative for the Consultant is Hoyt Jeter. Notices to the 
Consultant shall be sent to the following address: 

 
Hoyt D. Jeter, President 

   Clarity Consulting Engineers 
PO Box 523 
13013 Lala Cove Lane 
Olalla, WA  98539 

   Phone number: (206) 356-7790 
   Email: hoyt@clarityconsultingengineers.com 
    
    



    

Page 7 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

19. Applicable Law; Venue; Attorneys' Fees.  This Agreement shall be governed by and 
construed in accordance with the laws of the State of Washington.  In the event any suit, 
arbitration, or other proceeding is instituted to enforce any term of this Agreement, the 
parties specifically understand and agree that venue shall be exclusively in Mason 
County, Washington.   

 
20. Representation of Consultant.  The Consultant represents to the City that it has no 

conflict of interest in performing any of the services set forth in Exhibit "A."  In the 
event that the Consultant is asked to perform services for a project with which it may 
have a conflict, it will disclose such conflict to the City.  At the discretion of the City, the 
City may direct the Consultant to refrain from entering into a contract with 
representatives of the conflicting project. 

 

21. Invoice and Activity Report.  The Consultant shall provide an activity report with each 
invoice highlighting services provided during the billing period, upcoming activities, and 
emerging management issues. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



    

Page 8 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

CONTRACT SIGNATURES 
 
DATED this   15   day of   December  , 2021 
 
 
CITY OF SHELTON          Clarity Consulting Engineers 
 
 

By: _________________________________  By:  
 Kevin Dorcy, Mayor     Signature 
 
       Printed Name and Title: 
 
       __Hoyt D Jeter., President________  
    
 
 
Attest/Authenticated:     
       
____________________________________   
City Clerk (or witness to signature) 
 
 



    

Page 9 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

EXHIBIT A 
 

Clarity Consulting Engineers 
 

When requested by The City, Consultant shall perform services in accordance with the terms and 
conditions of this Agreement. 

Full Plan Review:  Upon request by the City, the Consultant shall review all contract 
documents which consist of plans, specifications and engineering data to determine whether 
the items comply with all applicable ordinances and state building code; in addition, all local 
codes and regulation required by the city. The Consultant shall issue a formal written 
document for each set of plans reviewed.  

Partial Plan review: Upon request by the City, the Consultant shall review partial 
elements of contract documents which consist of plans, specifications and engineering data to 
determine whether the items comply with all applicable ordinances and state building codes; 
in addition to, all local codes and regulation required by the city. Contract documents may 
consist of the items listed below. The definitions of a partial plan review is the review of any 
one of these items or selected multiple items. 

I. Structural Review  
II. Architectural Review (Ordinance and Barrier Free) 

III. Energy Review 
IV. Barrier Free Accessibility Review  
V. Fire Suppression Review 

VI. LEEDS Review  
VII. Mechanical Review  

VIII. Plumbing Review  
IX. Fire Alarm Review 

 

The Consultant shall provide maximum of two rechecks without additional fees. 

Additional Reviews: The Consultant shall perform additional reviews beyond (2) 
rechecks when authorized by the City, at an hourly rate as described in Compensation. 

Miscellaneous Engineering: Upon request of the city the Consultant shall provide 
miscellaneous engineering services, at an hourly rate as described in Compensation, but 
shall not exceed an agreed amount.  

Inspection:  Upon request by the City, the Consultant shall inspect all structures as 
defined by the permitted documents on an hourly basis as described in Compensation. 

 
Number of working days for plan check: First review Second review 
Single Family residence/duplex 10 5 

Commercial/Multi-Family  
under $5M in valuation 
 

15 10 

Commercial/Multi-Family  
over $5M in valuation 
 

30 15 



    

Page 10 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

COMPENSATION  
 

BUILDING CODE REVIEW FEE STRUCTURE 

Commercial/Multi-Family Non-Structural Fire/Life Safety and Structural review only: 

City Valuation of 
Construction 

Clarity Consulting Plan 
Review Fee (% of Building 
Department Plan review 

fee) 

Hourly rate  
(Reviews in excess of 2) 

$1 to $500,000 80% $110 
$500,001 to $2,500,000 75% $110 
$2,500,001 and above 65% $110 

 

Commercial/Multi-Family Non-Structural, Fire/Life Safety, Mechanical, LEED, Plumbing 
or Structural review only 

Valuation of Construction Clarity Consulting Plan 
Review Fee  (% of 

Building Department Plan 
review fee) 

Hourly rate  
(Reviews in excess of 2) 

$1 to $500,000 75% $110 
$500,001 to $2,500,000 65% $110 
$2,500,001 and above 55% $110 

 

Single Family Residence Full Review 

Clarity Consulting Plan Review Fee  
(% of Building Department Permit 

Fee) 

Hourly rate (Reviews in Excess of 2) 

50% $110 

Fire Suppression and/or fire alarm review is based on hourly fees at a rate of $110 per hour. 

The Consultant shall provide maximum of two rechecks without any additional fees. 

The above fees include all labor, material and expenses required for completion of these 
service 



    

Page 11 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

Hourly Rate Schedule 
 

 

Personnel Description Hourly Billing Rates 

Professional Engineer $110  
Architect $110  

Certified Code Review Personnel $100 
Fire Protection Engineer $110 

Certified Inspector $85 
Electrical Specialty $95 
Permit Technician $60 

Administration Support $45 
 
If prevailing wages are required on a project, then CCE's rates will be adjusted to accommodate 
prevailing rate payroll rules. 
 
In addition, CCE's rates will be adjusted to accommodate for overtime, evening and night shift 
premiums with authorization by the City 
 
Personal vehicles for inspections, shall be billed the mileage at the standard federal rate. The 
mileage shall only be from the city hall to the site for inspections. 



    

Page 12 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

EXHIBIT B 
 

City of Shelton 
Billing Voucher 

 
To: City of Shelton     Submittal No.:__________ 
 525 West Cota 
 Shelton, Washington 98584 
 Phone: (360) 426-9731 
 FAX: (360) 426-7746 
 
Consultant: _______________________________________ Telephone: (     ) ______________ 
Mailing Address: _______________________________________________________________ 
Project Title: __________________________________________________________________ 
Contract Period: ______________________ Reporting Period: __________________________ 
Amount requested this invoice: $________________ 
 
Invoice Number: ________________ Date of Invoice: ______________ (Attach Invoice) 
 
________________________________ 
Authorized Signature 
 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 
 
BUDGET SUMMARY 
 
Total contract amount  $____________________ 
Previous payments  $____________________ 
Current request  $____________________ 
Total requested this 
   contract to date  $____________________ 
Balance remaining  $____________________ 
 
Note:  If applicable, submit a separate voucher for each project, which is funded by your City of 
Shelton contract. 
-------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- 

 
For Department Use Only 

 
____________________________   Date:        
Community Development Director 
 



    

Page 13 of 13 
__2021-2022 Supplemental Building Code Services Pool, Clarity Consulting Engineers                                                                                                                                       
 

 
 

EXHIBIT C 
 

CITY OF SHELTON 
525 West Cota Street 
Shelton, WA  98584 

Phone: (360) 426-9731 
FAX: (360) 426-7746 

 
TAX IDENTIFICATION NUMBER 

 
In order for you to receive reimbursement from the City of Shelton, we must have either a Tax Identification Number 
or a Social Security Number.  The Internal Revenue Code requires a Form 1099 for payments to every person or 
organization other than a corporation for services performed in the course of trade or business.   
 
Please complete the following information request form and return it to the City of Shelton before or along the 
submittal of the first billing voucher. 
 

 
Please check the appropriate category: 
 
 _X__ Corporation ___Partnership  ___Government Agency 
 ___Individual/Proprietor ___Other (please explain) 
 
Tax Identification #: ___   81-0874766    ___________________ 
 
UBI #: _       603-561-411             _____________________ 
 
Print Name:_____Hoyt D Jeter_______________________________________ 
 
Print Title:______President__________________________________________ 
 
Business Name:__Clarity Consulting Engineer, PLLC___________________________ 
 
Business Address: _13013 Lala Cove Lane, Olalla WA 98359      ____________ 
 
Mailing Address: PO BOX 523, Olalla WA 98359________________________ 
 
Business Phone:_206-356-7790_______________________ 
 
Business e-mail: 
___hoyt@clarityconsultingengineers.com________________________________ 
 

  12/15/2020 

_______________________________  ______________________ 
Authorized Signature (required)   Date 
 



Council Briefing Form  Revised 05/23/18 

 

CITY OF SHELTON  
COUNCIL BRIEFING REQUEST 

(Agenda Item G6) 

Touch Date:   11/23/2020 
Brief Date:      11/23/2020 
Action Date:    01/19/2020 

Department:  Executive 
 
Presented By:  Jeff Niten 

 
  
APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET: 

   
 
 
    PROGRAM/PROJECT TITLE: 
    Policy Updates 
 
 
    ATTACHMENTS:  
    - City Policies 
 

 
Action Requested: 
 

 Ordinance 

 Resolution 

 Motion 

 Other 
 

ROUTE TO: REVIEWED: 
 

 
 
Dept. Head   

 
 

 
Finance Director  

 

 
 

 
Attorney 

 

 
 

 
City Clerk 

 

 
 

 
City Manager 

 
JN      

 
DESCRIPTION OF THE PROGRAM/PROJECT AND BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
City leadership has reviewed the policy manual and has suggested changes to existing policy, as well as 
included new policy for City Council consideration.  New policies proposed include, but are not limited to, a 
Core Ethics policy, a Team Philosophy policy.   
   
ANALYSIS/OPTIONS/ALTERNATIVES:  
City staff propose the following as alternatives:  

-Direct staff to change any attached policy document to reflect desired Council positions. 
   

BUDGET/FISCAL INFORMATION:  
N/A 
 
PUBLIC INFORMATION REQUIREMENTS:  
Information can be obtained through the City Clerk.   
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION/MOTION:  
A recommended motion is:  “I move to adopt the proposed City policies as presented”. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Policy and Procedure 
Documents 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-01 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
Policy 100-01 dated May 1, 1991 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To establish the policy and procedure for the development, coordination and issuance of the City of 
Shelton Policy and Procedure Manual. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

City of Shelton Ordinance 1230, adopted March 7, 1988. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton to maintain and administrative policy and procedures manual which 
outlines matters of overall administrative policy, rules of procedure and methods of operation.  These 
administrative policies and procedures are intended to guide city staff in implementing Ordinances, 
Resolutions, and other official policies adopted by the City Council. 

4.1 Responsibility   

4.1.1 The City Manager and all department heads are responsible for preparing city 
policy and procedure documents for the City of Shelton. 

4.1.2 All employees of the City of Shelton are responsible for maintaining a constant 
awareness of policy and procedure documents and are responsible for 
complying with approved policy and procedure documents. 

4.1.3 The City Council is responsible for approving all policies which affect all city 
departments (City Policy). 



4.1.4 The City Manager is responsible for approving all administrative policy and 
procedure documents which affect one or more departments, but not all 
departments (Administrative Policy). 

 4.2 Origination: 

4.2.1 The City Manager, or designee, is responsible for originating and drafting 
policies and procedures which affect all city departments. 

4.2.2 Department heads are responsible for originating and drafting policies and 
procedures which affect their department. 

4.2.3 Formats for all policy and procedure documents shall be in the form specified by 
the City Manager. 

 4.3 Coordination and Approval:  

4.3.1 New or revised administrative policies and procedures shall be submitted to the 
City Manager for review. 

4.3.2 The draft policy or procedure shall be circulated among the Leadership Team for 
review and comment. 

4.3.3 Following review of the proposed policy by the Leadership Team the City 
Manager shall, in conjunction with the affected department head(s), finalize the 
policy and/or procedure and distribute copies to the affected department(s). 

 4.4 Distribution:  

4.4.1 The City Clerk is responsible for maintaining the Master Policy and Procedure 
Manual and for distribution of new or revised policies to all departments as 
appropriate. 

4.4.2 Department heads are responsible for informing their employees about new or 
revised policies as appropriate. 

 4.5 Numbering: 

4.5.1 The City Manager, or designee, will assign numbers to policies and procedures, 
organized by subject group and numbers, as follows: 

 

 SUBJECT GROUP    POLICY NUMBER 

 General Administration    100 

 Personnel     200 

 Finance      300 

 RESERVED     400 



RESERVED     500 

RESERVED      600 

RESERVED      700 

Community Development   800 

RESERVED     900 

Public Works     1000 

Parks and Recreation    1100 

RESERVED     1200 

RESERVED     1300 

Water Utility     1400 

Sanitary Sewer Utility    1500 

Miscellaneous     1600 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Social Media Use Policy – 
Moderated, Limited Discussion 
Outlets 

GROUP: 
Administration 
 

NUMBER: 
100-06 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Andy Arnes 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE:   
 

Using various social media platforms, the City of Shelton will increase the visibility and transparency of local 
government, encourage citizen involvement in governmental processes and conversations, share pertinent news, 
including time-sensitive emergency updates, and promote and protect its image and reputation online.  

This policy will govern the City of Shelton’s use of social media. This policy is subject to change without notice. It is a 
living document and shall be updated as necessary.  

 

2.0 PROCEDURES: 
 

2.1 The City of Shelton shall consider the social media accounts that it creates and maintains, whether  
 developed solely by the City or using a third-party social media resource (e.g., Facebook, Twitter,  
 YouTube), to be moderated, limited discussion outlets and not general public forums. 

 
2.2 The City Manager and/or his/her designee shall ultimately be responsible for reviewing and approving all  
 social media content before it is posted. 

 
2.3 The City Manager and/or his/her designee will administer social media accounts. Responsibilities include: 

• Managing and maintaining lists of usernames and passwords 
• Editing and removing content from sites 
• General upkeep of various social media platforms 

 
 



2.4 The City Manager is responsible for approval of new social media tools. The City Manager is also  
 responsible for approval of discontinuing use of social media tools.  

 
2.5 The City of Shelton’s website shall remain the City’s primary internet domain. The social media accounts of  
 the City will be secondary and supplementary to the official City website. 
 
2.6 The administrators of the social media platforms will use uniform images, language, and tone in order to  
 maintain a consistent and professional outward appearance. 
 
2.7 City Employees, City Volunteers, and members of an Appointed Committee are prohibited from creating a 

social media account that is directly or indirectly affiliated with the City of Shelton without the express written 
consent of the City Manager. 
 

2.8 Wherever possible, City of Shelton social media accounts shall comply with all appropriate City of Shelton  
 policies and standards, including but not limited to: 

• Anti-Harassment Policy 200-1002 
• Standards of Conduct Policy 200-1601 
• Use of City Office Technologies 

 
2,9 In all possible cases, posts must adhere to the Americans with Disabilities Act, which requires electronic  
 information be reasonably accessible to people with disabilities. 

• When posting photos, add text to explain what is in the picture 
• When posting videos, add text to explain the contents of the video 

 
2.10 City of Shelton social media accounts shall comply with Shelton Ethics and Elections code and  
 administrative rules.  

 
2.11 City of Shelton social media accounts are subject to State of Washington public records laws. Any and all  
 content related to city business posted on or to the City’s various social media platforms is subject to public  
 records laws and shall be retained. 

• Users and viewers shall be notified that any content posted or submitted for posting are subject to 
public disclosure 

• Public Records Request responses must completely and accurately respond to any request for public 
records on social media.  

 
2.12 Washington state law and relevant City of Shelton records retention schedules apply to social media formats  
 and social media content. Pursuant to the Secretary of State’s Local Common Records Retention Schedule 

 (CORE), records shall be easily accessible and preserved for the required retention period on a city server  
 in a format that preserves the integrity of the original record. 

 
2.13 Users and visitors shall be notified that the following is prohibited on City of Shelton social media accounts:   

• Posts and comments that include vulgar, offensive, threatening or harassing language, personal attacks 
or unsupported accusations.  

• Posts and comments not related to the original topic, including random or unintelligible comments.  



• Posts and comments that are not factual or accurate.  
• Posts and comments that promote, foster, or perpetuate discrimination on the basis of creed, color, 

age, religion, gender, marital status, national origin, physical or mental disability, sexual orientation, or 
any other status protected by law.  

• Posts and comments that promote or advertise commercial services, unless the advertising is 
generated by the third-party social media service in such a manner that the City cannot block the 
advertising.  

• Political comments promoting or opposing any person campaigning for election to a political office or 
promoting or opposing ballot propositions.  

• Religious statements, including comments that endorse or oppose any type of religion, religious 
opinions or activities.  

• Obscene or sexual content or links to obscene or sexual content.  
• Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law, or encouragement of illegal activity.  
• Information that could compromise the safety or security of the public or public systems.  
• Content that could violate the legal ownership interest of any other party.  
• Content that could compromise an ongoing investigation.  

Users and visitors shall be notified that the City of Shelton reserves the right to: 

 Immediately remove posted content that violates the prohibited content policy; 
 Remove posted content and/or comments after 30 days; 
 Deny access to City of Shelton social media accounts to any individual who violates the City of 

Shelton’s Social Media Policy at any time, without prior notice; 
 Discontinue or delete a discussion thread at any time, without cause or prior notice.  

 
2.14 All removed content will be documented and retained. Documentation includes the content, date and time of  
 the post, and the username of the user who posted the comment.   

 
2.15 There will be a disclaimer notice on all social media accounts stating that these are not locations where  
 citizen issues (e.g., crime, public records request or road repair) are to be reported. There will be  
 recommendations of where citizens should direct any such issues or concerns (e.g., Shelton PD, City Clerk,  
 Public Works). 

 
2.16 Copyright laws 

• Content that violates a legal ownership interest of any other party is prohibited. 
• All information and materials generated by the City of Shelton and provided by the City of Shelton social 

media accounts are the property of the City of Shelton. 
• Copyright holders can contact the City of Shelton to have information corrected or content removed if 

copyrighted materials are not properly credited.  
 

2.17 There will be an annual review by the City Manager to ensure that social media platforms have been  
 maintained in adherence to the social media use policy.   
 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
General Social Media Disclaimer 
 

GROUP: 
Administration  
 

NUMBER: 
100-07 
 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
 

PREPARED BY: 
Andy Arnes 
 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

1.0  PURPOSE 

The primary purpose of the City’s social media accounts is to communicate news, events and 
information from the City to residents, businesses, visitors and other interested parties.  

The City considers the social media accounts that it creates and maintains, whether developed 
solely by the City or using a third-party social media resource (e.g., Facebook, Twitter), to be 
moderated, limited discussion sites and not general public forums. The sites will be moderated 
by City staff. Discussion topics and information will be initiated by City staff. All posted content 
(e.g., comments, photos, links) must relate to the particular discussion initiated by the City and 
be focused on City programs, services, projects, issues, events, and activities. 

Any comment posted on City of Shelton social media accounts by anyone other than an 
authorized City staff member acting on behalf of the City, is the opinion of the commentator or 
poster only. Publication of a comment or post does not imply endorsement of or agreement by 
the City of Shelton, nor do such comments necessarily reflect the opinions or policies of the 
Shelton City Council.   

2.0  THE FOLLOWING ARE PROHIBITED ON CITY OF SHELTON SOCIAL MEDIA ACCOUNTS: 
 

1. Posts and comments that include vulgar, offensive, threatening or harassing language, 
personal attacks or unsupported accusations.  

2. Posts and comments not related to the original topic, including random or unintelligible 
comments.  

3. Posts and comments that are not factual or accurate.  



4. Posts and comments that promote, foster or perpetuate discrimination on the basis of 
creed, color, age, religion, gender, marital status, national origin, physical or mental 
disability, sexual orientation, or any other status protected by law.  

5. Posts and comments that promote or advertise commercial services, unless the 
advertising is generated by the third-party social media service in such a manner that 
the City cannot block the advertising.  

6. Political comments promoting or opposing any person campaigning for election to a 
political office or promoting or opposing ballot propositions.  

7. Religious statements, including comments that endorse or oppose any type of religion, 
religious opinions, or activities.  

8. Obscene or sexual content or links to obscene or sexual content.  
9. Conduct in violation of any federal, state or local law, or encouragement of illegal 

activity.  
10. Information that could compromise the safety or security of the public or public 

systems.  
11. Content that could violate the legal ownership interest of any other party.  
12. Content that could compromise an ongoing investigation.  

3.0  THE CITY OF SHELTON RESERVES THE RIGHT TO: 
 

1. Immediately remove posted content that does not comply with this policy;  
2. Remove posted content and/or comments after 30 days;  
3. Deny access to City of Shelton social media accounts to any individual who violates the 

City of Shelton’s Social Media Policy at any time, without prior notice;  
4. Discontinue or delete a discussion thread at any time, without cause or prior notice.  

All content added or uploaded to City of Shelton social media accounts will be periodically 
reviewed by City staff. All content on City of Shelton social media is considered a public 
record.  For that reason, users should refrain from including telephone numbers, home 
addresses, email addresses, and any other private information in the body of their comment. 

Communications and/or requests made through City of Shelton social media accounts in no 
way constitutes a legal or official notice of or comment to the City of Shelton. For example, a 
post or comment on a social media site requesting public records will not be considered a 
public records request to the City, and a post or comment on an issue or topic subject to a 
noticed comment period will not be considered part of the official record for that issue or topic. 

All comments and posts on City of Shelton sites offered through third-party services must 
comply with any and all terms or statements of use of the specific service (e.g., Facebook, 
Twitter). The City of Shelton reserves the right to report any violation to the specific service in 
accordance with the policies of the third-party service. 

This policy is subject to change without notice. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Council Deliberation 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-10 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
Policy 100-10 dated November 21, 2007 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To establish a procedure ensuring that the City Council and members of the public are given appropriate 
notice in order to make thoughtful decisions on non-emergency matters. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

City of Shelton Protocol Manual adopted by Council via Ordinance 1936-0119 on January 2, 2019.  
Shelton Municipal Code 2.04.  Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 35.18.170. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton to thoughtfully consider decisions, and to allow for meaningful 
public participation, prior to deciding non-emergency matters.  Additionally, it is the policy of the City of 
Shelton to provide opportunity for public comment prior to deciding non-emergency matters. 

The general policy is hereby established to require that the Shelton City Council be given appropriate 
opportunities to consider an issue prior to being asked to decide a non-emergency matter.  Exceptions 
are permitted for subjects where the strict application of this policy is impractical, or otherwise 
inadvisable. 

It is recognized that unanticipated circumstances may arise wherein observance of this policy is 
impractical.  See Policy 100-90.  Regardless, those involved in the policy process should make every 
effort to adhere to the expectation embodied in this procedure. 

 

 



 4.1 Looking Ahead Agenda: 

4.1.1 The purpose of the Looking Ahead Agenda is to establish a list of issues that are 
anticipated to be under consideration at future City Council meetings. 

4.1.2   The Looking Ahead Agenda shall be maintained by the City Clerk. 

4.1.3 The Looking Ahead Agenda is to be attached to each City Council Regular 
Meeting Agenda, and published as though it was part of the meeting. 

4.1.4 The Looking Ahead Agenda shall include the anticipated date of the future 
action. 

4.1.5 The date the briefing and supporting materials are due for publication to ensure 
accurate information to the City Council and to the public. 

4.1.5 For all matters to be heard by City Council items shall be placed on the look 
ahead agenda for the anticipated date of consideration at the earliest possible 
opportunity.  In no instance shall items be placed on the Look Ahead Agenda 
less than one (1) meeting prior to the expected Action date by City Council 
unless otherwise determined to be impractical. 

 4.2 Other “Touch” Options/Methods 

4.2.1 Although the Council Deliberation method discussed in this policy associated 
with the Looking Ahead Agenda is expected to be the most commonly used 
methodology, other less formal communications are permitted.  Less formal 
communications include Council briefings scheduled regularly with the City 
Manager.  Work sessions on specific topics may be utilized to provide City 
Council with additional in-depth information on complex topics.  Whether 
formal or informal practices are used the crucial point is to give notice to the 
City Council and the public about upcoming matters scheduled for Council 
consideration. 

4.2.2 Ordinances considered by the Shelton City Council shall be considered at two (2) 
public meetings unless the majority of Council desires to waive second reading 
of any Ordinance where permitted by law.  The first public meeting shall be a 
duly noticed public hearing if required. 

4.2.3 Resolutions considered by the Shelton City Council shall be heard at a single 
meeting, unless the majority of City Council desires a second meeting. 

4.2.4 Motions shall be considered by Shelton City Council utilizing the same method 
for Resolutions.  

  

   

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Introduction 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-14 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish the importance of employee knowledge of City objectives and 
expectations.  Therefore, the City has created a Team Philosophy, and this Employment Policy Manual. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton to establish expectations and provide employees with the tools for 
success within the organization. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

The Team Philosophy provides the foundation of what we stand for and what we tolerate.  It includes 
these uncompromising core values:  Stewardship, Integrity, Respect, Accountability and Responsibility, 
Creativity and Initiative, Cooperation and Collaboration, Leadership, and Reputation.  These values are a 
fundamental part of how the City does business.  The Employee Policy Manual is based on, and an 
extension of, the Team Philosophy. 

The policies and guidelines contained in this Manual establish expectations, communicate information, 
create a uniform system for personnel management, and assure that personnel actions and decisions 
are fair, equitable and in compliance with state and federal employment laws as well as the City 
ordinance.  The Team Philosophy and the Employment Policy Manual have the unqualified approval and 
support of management. 



The Team Philosophy and Employee Policy Manual apply to all regular employees and members of 
management at all levels of supervisory responsibility.  Employees will be held accountable for 
compliance with the Team Philosophy as well as the policies and guidelines in this manual.  Violation of 
the Team Philosophy or any policy or guideline may result in corrective or disciplinary action, up to and 
including termination of employment. 

Department Directors, with approval of the City Manager, may create guidelines more specific to their 
respective department operations.  If the provisions of a department policy and this Policy Manual 
differ, the City policy shall prevail. 

Policies in a department manual or in this Policy Manual may also be covered by a collective bargaining 
agreement.  In cases where City policy differs from language in a bargaining agreement, the language in 
the bargaining agreement shall take precedence.  In all other cases including, but not limited to, those 
areas where the agreement is silent, the City or department policy will control. 

The policies in any department policy manual and in this Policy Manual do not create an employment 
contract, a promise of specific treatment in any specific situation, or a guarantee of employment for any 
specific duration between the City of Shelton and its employees.  No employee of the City has the 
authority to grant or offer to any employee any job security or protection which is not provided for 
under a City policy, collective bargaining agreement or written employment agreement. 

As the City grows and transforms, the expectations of each department any employee may also change.  
Similarly, the laws which govern the working relationship between the City and its employees are 
constantly changing.  It is not possible for any manual or handbook to cover all events and 
circumstances that could arise.  Therefore, the City may modify, or eliminate or add to any policies to 
achieve the mission and goals of the City or to adhere to any changes in state or federal law.  The City 
will comply with all state and federal collective bargaining requirements prior to implementing changes.  
In addition, employees will be notified of modifications and, as changes occur, the Policy Manual will be 
updated.  Employees will be responsible for complying with new and updated policies. 

The employment policies contain information that is important to each employee’s job and to successful 
employment with the City of Shelton.  Therefore, each employee is expected to become familiar with 
the contents of this Employment Policy Manual.  Any questions about the polices and guidelines may be 
directed to an immediate supervisor, Department Director, or the City’s Administrative Services 
Director. 

   

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Team Philosophy 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-15 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a City of Shelton Team Philosophy. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

We are in the business of developing and protecting our community.  Our work involves the roads 
people drive on, the buildings they live and work in, the parks they play in, and the water they drink.  
We are proud of what we do and we take our work seriously. 

This document represents our team philosophy.  It describes core values:  The traits and qualities that 
represent our highest priorities and deeply held beliefs.  The values form a foundation for everything 
that happens in the work place and are the core, fundamental forces that define our behavior.  No 
doubt some of what is important is not mentioned here.  We can add to this philosophy, but will not 
subtract from it. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

As employees and representatives of the City of Shelton, we are committed to these core values: 

5.1 Stewardship.  We are public servants.  The community of Shelton entrusts us to care for 
its assets, its reputation and its future including:  the citizens, the funds, the history, the 
roads and buildings, the parks, the land, the water and the natural resources.  We will 
ensure that the public interest comes first, and that we do not advance our personal 



interests at the expense of the public.  We will plan imaginatively and pursue 
opportunities for tomorrow’s citizens and their needs. 

5.2 Integrity.  Integrity, in the broadest sense, must lead our actions in all decisions and 
relationships, including those with citizens and each other.  We will demonstrate sound 
moral and ethical principles on a daily basis.  We will tell the truth, keep promises, 
respect the person and property of others, and abide by the requirements of the law. 

 We are a government.  We cannot simply be right in our decisions, we have to look right 
too.  We must be open in our communication and operate in such a way that it is easy 
for others to see actions that are performed.  Taking advantage of loopholes, quick fixes, 
and basing our decisions on what we think we can get away with will compromise public 
trust in us.  We won’t allow it.  We must do the right thing, even when it is painful or 
difficult. 

5.3 Respect.  We will treat every person with respect and dignity.  Always. 

 We celebrate and embrace diversity and respect each person’s individuality, opinions, 
feelings and unique talents.  Our work place is shelter from violence, harassment of any 
kind, discrimination, retribution, bullying and abuse.  Every person who comes in 
contact with a City of Shelton employee, including other employees, can expect 
honesty, fair dealing and courtesy.  No amount of authority, status or power can excuse 
anyone in our organization from treating another with rudeness, humiliation or 
disrespect.  Ever. 

5.4 Accountability and Responsibility.  Personal accountability is the basis of our 
commitment to each other and to the community.  We strive to meet or exceed 
expectations, we account for our activities, accept responsibility for our behavior, and 
disclose the results in a transparent manner.  We have the courage to admit mistakes 
and the limitations of our knowledge.  We use feedback to improve performance, and 
we accept our contributions to problems and take responsibility to find solutions. 

 We honor our commitments and obligations to each other and to the community.  We 
keep our word, and if circumstances prevent us from doing so, we don’t pass the buck 
or make excuses.  We are honest with each other.  We commit to helping those around 
us succeed. 

5.5 Creativity and Initiative.  There is always room for improvement.  We strive to be more 
efficient and are continuously looking for more innovative ways to do business.  We are 
not afraid to take informed, responsible risk, to make mistakes, and to learn from them.  
We plan for and strive to be prepared for change.  We will never become complacent 
and accept the status quo just because that’s the way things have always been done.  
We will learn, adapt and figure things out.  We approach situations and challenges with 
an open mind and strive to be creative in solutions. 

5.6 Cooperation and Collaboration.  We are one City.  We freely join with colleagues to 
advance the interests of the community.  Though we may work in different departments 
and different buildings, we must cooperate as if we have no separations or barriers.  We 



build strong, positive relationships that are open and honest, we listen actively, and we 
communicate frequently and in a way that enables and empowers others to make 
informed decisions. 

 We foster collaboration while maintaining individuality.  We appreciate the value of 
multiple perspectives and diverse expertise.  In almost all situations, collaboration is far 
more productive that competition.  Together we can create solutions and outcomes that 
are far more creative, more workable, more rewarding than any solution or outcome we 
could come up with individually. 

5.7 Leadership.  We require leadership marked by the ability to see the big picture and a can 
do, get it done attitude.  Leaders must be willing to take responsibility, solve problems, 
keep learning, growing and improving, inspire and motivate others, have the courage to 
make tough decisions as well as be open to new ideas, be committed to the success of 
others, and to building and maintaining trust.  Leaders must model these behaviors and 
coach others to adopt them.  We believe that everyone in this organization is a Leader.  
We expect managers to increase the authority and responsibility of those closest to the 
task and encourage employees to stretch their abilities to solve problems at their level. 

5.8 Reputation.  We will act consistent with our City Philosophy.  We will strive to become 
known for our successful commitments to a safe, friendly, challenging, inspiring, 
productive, rewarding and value driven work place.  And, we will strive to be known as 
the best municipal government in our region, one others look to for best practices and 
efficient service delivery. 

 Our success will be measured by our reputation both for what we do and how we do it.  
Our reputation is built by the daily acts of each employee in how we treat citizens and 
how we treat each other.  We are out reputation.    

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
City Organization and Structure 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-16 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a City Organization and Structure. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

The City of Shelton operates under a council-manager form of government.  The elected officials are the 
community leaders and policy makers who establish a vision for the city, and then appoint a City 
Manager to carry out public policy and ensure that all residents are being well-served.  The City 
Manager coordinates the work of department heads and other employees, who help ensure the smooth 
and efficient delivery of services. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

City Manager’s Office 

The City Manager serves as the Chief Executive Officer of the City, is the City Council’s chief policy 
advisor and is responsible for the proper administration of all City business.  By building public/private 
partnerships, the City Manager targets all of the community’s resources to solve current issues. 

Key objectives of the City Manager’s Office include, but are not limited to, establishing policies, 
procedures and guidelines as necessary for the control and supervision of the City, administering and 
enforcing all City ordinances, resolutions, and other City decisions, organizing City departments and the 
administrative structure, encouraging and supporting regional and intergovernmental cooperation, 



promoting cooperation among the Council, staff and citizens in developing City policies and building a 
sense of community.  Providing Council and staff with leadership and advice while implementing best 
practices to achieve adopted goals and delivering quality services to the community. 

The City Clerk is part of the City Manager’s Office and is responsible for staffing for the City Council and 
other Boards and Commissions.  The City Clerk manages public record retention and requests. 

Administrative Services 

The Administrative Services Department is responsible for providing administrative and informational 
services to the City Council, City Manager and other City Departments and to the public.  The 
department manages all human resources functions, employee relations, collective bargaining and labor 
relations.  The department acts as the City’s Claim Agent and is responsible for payroll, Information 
Technology, community events and outreach, risk management, and Title VI Civil Rights compliance. 

Community Development 

The Community Development Department is responsible for current and long range planning, building 
permitting and inspections, and code enforcement to support the Police Department and the 
coordinated growth and development of the community.  The Department coordinates and provides 
services to reflect the community’s vision for the future, the City’s Comprehensive Plan, Capital Facilities 
Plan, and development regulations to ensure compliance with the Growth Management Act (GMA).  The 
Department is responsible for enforcing the life and safety issues in the State Building Code and 
associated City amendments.  The Department accepts and reviews building permit applications, issues 
permits, arranges inspections, and approves construction by issuing Certificate of Occupancy.  The 
Department is also responsible for parks and trails, historic preservation, the Arts Commission and 
building facilities. 

Financial Services 

The Financial Services Department directs and manages all finance functions for the City by ensuring 
that the annual budget is developed and implemented as planned, conducts financial reporting, as well 
as overseeing investment activities, debt management, and general accounting activities.  The 
department also provides purchasing services, ensures public small works projects meet City and State 
legal requirements, processes accounts payable and accounts receivable including utility billing 
payments, and oversees grant and contract tracking and management. 

Police 

The Police Department provides professional, quality law enforcement services to the Shelton 
community through education, enforcement, and community partnerships.  Law enforcement officers 
perform essential law enforcement services for the citizens of Shelton, the local business community 
and their patrons, and to others visiting or traveling through the City.  The Department also creates 
partnerships that enhance public safety education to the community, oversees the emergency 
management function for the City, maintains and updates the emergency response procedures and 
provides ongoing training to staff and other involved stakeholders. 

 



 

Public Works 

The Public Works Department manages the design, construction, operation and maintenance of the 
community infrastructure of the City.  This includes transportation, drinking water, wastewater, and 
surface water.  The Department provides technical support to all City departments, is responsible for 
design of all capital and development project associated with new and existing infrastructure as well as 
for inspection of all construction activities associated with new and existing infrastructure. 

Municipal Court 

The Shelton Municipal Court is responsible for the administration of justice in the City of Shelton, 
Washington, hearing and determining infraction cases and criminal offenses (misdemeanor and gross 
misdemeanor offenses) occurring within the city limits of Shelton. The court provides all traditional 
courtroom services such as Arraignment Hearings, Pre-trial Hearings, Trials (Bench and Jury) and Post 
Trial Hearings. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Core Ethics Policy 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-17 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a Core Ethics Policy for the City of Shelton. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

The City of Shelton upholds, promotes and demands the highest standards of ethics from its employees 
in carrying out their public duties.  Employees must build and maintain a relationship of trust and 
confidence with the community they serve, avoid any improprieties in their roles as public servants and 
must never use their City position or powers for personal gain or in breach of the public trust. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Standards of Ethics Defined 

The Team Philosophy provides City specific definitions of what is expected and required of City 
employees.  City policies also outline important ethical standards relating to topics such as avoiding 
conflicts of interest, receiving gifts or favors, accepting outside employment, prohibiting discrimination 
and engaging in political activity. 

In general, basic ethical conduct includes, but is not limited to: 

5.1 Stewardship:  Acting at all times in the best interests of the community we serve. 



5.2 Integrity:  Demonstrating excellence and honesty in our actions, decisions and relationships.  
Being dedicated to the highest ideals of honor and integrity in all public relationships.   

5.3 Respect:  Treating every person with respect and dignity, always. 

5.4 Accountability and Responsibility:  Striving to meet or exceed expectations and accepting 
responsibility for our actions.  Conducting business of the City in a manner which is not only fair 
in fact, but also in appearance. 

5.5 Creativity and Initiative:  Striving to be more efficient and looking for innovative ways to do 
business, seeking to improve the quality and image of public service. 

5.6 Cooperation and Collaboration:  Building strong relationships, appreciating multiple 
perspectives, listening actively, and communicating frequently.  Keeping the community 
informed about municipal affairs, encouraging communication between the citizens and 
municipal officers, and emphasizing friendly and courteous service to the public. 

5.7 Leadership:  Having a can do attitude, solving problems, inspiring and motivating others, having 
the courage to make tough decisions, and building trust.  Being dedicated to the concepts of 
effective and democratic local government. 

5.8 Reputation:  Striving to become known for our successful commitments to a safe, friendly, 
challenging, inspiring, productive, rewarding and value driven work place.  Affirming the dignity 
and worth of the services rendered by government and maintaining a deep sense of social 
responsibility as a trusted public servant. 

5.9 Not knowingly violating any federal or state law, City ordinance or policy. 

Employee Responsibilities 

To comply with the ethical standards outlined in this policy, employees are expected to: 

5.10 Read and understand the Employment Policy Manual. 

5.11 Follow appropriate ethical behaviors as specifically set forth in the Employment Policy Manual, 
the Core Ethics Policy, the City’s Team Philosophy and any other employment policy or City 
ordinance. 

5.12 Seek guidance in resolving ethical issues or concerns from a supervisor, Department Director, or 
Administrative Services (Human Resources). 

5.13 Report unethical conduct to their supervisor, Department Director or Administrative Services 
(Human Resources). 

Supervisor Responsibilities  

A supervisor’s additional responsibilities for compliance with this policy include: 

5.14 Monitoring and ensuring compliance with the Employment Policy Manual, this Core Ethics Policy 
or other employment policies, the City’s Team Philosophy and City ordinances. 

5.15 Setting an example of exemplary ethical conduct. 



5.16 Dealing effectively with ethics concerns that arise in their area. 

5.17 Prohibiting retribution or retaliation against any employee who reports or supplies information 
about, or assists in an investigation into, an ethics concern. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Conflicts of Interest 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-18 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to define conflicts of interest, to the extent possible, and establish a policy 
to avoid conflicts of interest. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

City of Shelton employees are expected to represent the organization in a positive and ethical manner.  
Employees have an obligation to avoid conflicts of interest or any activity which would give the 
appearance of a conflict of interest. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Definition of Conflict of Interest 

It is impossible to describe all of the situations that may cause or give the appearance of a conflict of 
interest.  The following list is not intended to be exhaustive, but includes some clear examples. 

5.1 Entering an employment relationship which competes with or creates a conflict of interest with 
a duty to the City. 

5.2 Accepting gifts, gratuities, loans, entertainment or other items of value from anyone with whom 
an employee regularly transacts City business, who has or seeks a contract with the City, or who 
desires other official action from the City. 



5.3 Giving, offering or promising anything of value to a customer, a potential customer, or a 
financial institution in connection with any transaction or business that the City may have with 
that customer, potential customer, or financial institution. 

5.4 Misusing confidential City information or disclosing such information to any individual who does 
not have a need to know the information. 

5.5 Using the City’s name, account, or credit to purchase merchandise for personal use without 
prior approval from the City Manager or Department Director. 

5.6 Using City assets or labor for personal use. 

Receipt of Gifts 

Generally, gifts received by a City employee at any time should be given to the employee’s Department 
Director, with an explanation of the circumstances surrounding receipt of the gift.  The Department 
Director will elect one of the following actions: 

1. Return the gift to the sender with a written expression of thanks and an explanation of 
the City policy concerning gifts; or 

2. Use the item within the framework of the City’s operations; or 

3. Take the item to a recognized charitable organization; or  

4. Make the item available for the enjoyment of all employees in the work area. 

Under limited circumstances the gift may be accepted as follows: 

 1. The item is of nominal value such as a pen or calendar. 

2. The item, activity or meal is available to all participants as part of a conference or 
training. 

3. The item is received as part of a contest or raffle open to all participants at a conference 
or training. 

4. The item is modest, non-cash, gift from a citizen in appreciation for excellent service. 

5. Meals may be purchased or provided for City employees at business meetings as long as 
there is a justifiable work-related purpose for the meeting. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Outside Employment 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-19 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a frame work for outside employment by City employees. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Employee may engage in paid outside employment, consulting work or other self-employment only if 
the work does not compete with or create a conflict of interest with an employees’ duty to the City.  

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

When outside work “competes with” City employment 

Outside employment competes with an employee’s duty to the City when the work requires an 
employee’s conduct to be disruptive or damaging to the City, and/or the City working environment.  
Examples of work that may be viewed as competing with City employment include those that: 

5.1 May adversely affect job performance at the City, or an employee’s ability to fulfill all job 
responsibilities at the City.  Adverse effects may include but are not limited to poor job 
performance, fatigue or excessive absenteeism or tardiness. 

5.2 Interfere with an employee’s ability to work his/her normal schedule at the City, or prevents the 
employee from being available for work beyond normal working hours, such as emergencies or 



peak work periods, when such availability is a regular part of the employee’s job.  Employees 
may not perform outside employment during hours they are on duty working for the City. 

5.3 Interfere with responsibilities to the City as the primary employer. 

5.4 Involve performing services for customers that are normally performed by City employees. 

5.5 Require working for any organization that does business with the City. 

5.6 May require the use of City information, property, facilities, equipment and/or systems. 

5.7 Involve assisting others in transactions with the City in which the employee has participated, or 
which has been under their official responsibility. 

When outside employment is a “conflict of interest” 

Outside employment creates a conflict of interest with an employee’s duty to the City when an 
employee engages in activities for personal gain that compromises the employee’s ability to represent 
the City’s best interests.  Examples of activities that may create a conflict of interest include those that: 

5.8 Require the use or disclosure of confidential City information. 

5.9 Impair the objectivity or independent judgment, or create an impression of conduct that 
violates the public trust. 

5.10 Involve activities which may appear to conflict with the City’s Core Ethics policy and/or other 
employment related policies. 

5.11 Negatively impact the normal course of the employee’s official duties. 

Approval to engage in outside employment 

Employees must obtain approval to engage in outside employment prior to accepting the employment.  
To obtain authorization, employees must provide a written request to his/her supervisor.  The request 
should include the dates of employment, the potential employer or, if self-employment, the name of the 
business, the type of work to be performed, any potential problems the outside employment may cause 
with City employment, and any actual or perceived competition or conflicts of interest with City 
employment.  The City shall have sole discretion to determine whether the request should be approved. 

If outside employment is approved, the City may require a written agreement which outlines the type of 
work that has been approved, discusses any perceived conflict of interest as well as how it may be 
eliminated, and addresses any other conditions of approval the City may require. 

If any employee accepts outside employment, the employee may be required to provide information 
about the employment at any time. 

Leave benefits and outside employment 

Use of accrued sick leave hours or FMLA leave concurrent with outside employment must be approved 
by the City. 



The City Manager may require individuals to cease outside employment if the work begins to compete 
with or a conflict of interest arises during the course of the employment. 

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Nepotism 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-20 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a nepotism policy. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Employees who are dating or are in the same family or other covered relationship may be employed by 
the City unless such employment would create a real or potential conflict of interest.  This policy is 
necessary to avoid the reality or appearance of improper influence or favoritism. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Covered Relationships 

For the purposes of this policy, relationships include employees dating each other, the employee’s 
spouse, domestic partner, child, domestic partner’s children, mother, father, brother, sister, step family, 
mother-in-law, father-in-law, daughter-in-law, son-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, grandparents 
and grandchildren, and grandparents and grandchildren of the spouse or member of the employee’s 
household, other than roommates. 

Notification 

Employees must inform his/her supervisor or Administrative Services Director immediately if they enter 
into a relationship which may create a conflict of interest under this policy. 



Conflict of Interest 

A conflict of interest exists where the City has a compelling and essential need to avoid a business-
related conflict or the reality or appearance of improper influence or favor.  A conflict of interest always 
exists under the following circumstances: 

1. Where one of the individuals would have the authority or practical power to supervise, 
appoint, remove, or discipline the other. 

2. Where one of the individuals would be responsible for leading, auditing, overseeing, or 
guiding the work of the other. 

Resolving conflicts of interest 

If City employees establish a relationship as defined in this policy and a conflict or potential conflict 
exists due to the new relationship, the City will attempt to find a suitable accommodation to eliminate 
the conflict.  If accommodations are not feasible, the employees will be given thirty (30) calendar days 
to determine which of them will resign.  If no decision is made at the end of the thirty (30) calendar day 
period, the City shall make the decision. 

If a nepotism situation should occur with an employee and a policy level official, and circumstances exist 
that might lead to perceived or potential conflict among the parties, departments or the best interest of 
the City and its citizens, the policy level official shall exclude themselves from discussing, becoming 
involved in, or voting on issues surrounding the department in which the employee is classified, 
including the budget.  

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Political Activities 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-21 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a policy regulating employee political activity during work 
hours. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Employees shall not use or authorize the use of City facilities, property or assets for working on 
campaigns for the election of any person to any office or for the promotion of, or opposition to, any 
ballot proposition, except as authorized by state law.  Similarly, employees shall not use their official 
position to unlawfully influence, interfere with or affect the results of an election. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Types of activities prohibited 

City employees are prohibited from using their official position to unlawfully influence, interfere with, or 
affect the results of any election.  Therefore: 

1. No employee, or group of employees, representing themselves as City employees, shall 
campaign for or against any political candidate or ballot measure, or endorse or oppose 
a political advertisement, broadcast, statement or campaign literature except as 
allowed by state labor law. 



2. Employees shall not display or distribute partisan literature, political buttons, stickers, 
banners, etc., during work hours or at a City facility or in City vehicles. 

3. No employee may solicit contributions for partisan political purposes on City property. 

Nothing in this policy prohibits a City employee from personally supporting or opposing any candidate 
for public office, ballot measure or other political campaign during off-duty hours. 

Holding public office 

No employee of the City may hold a part time public office of any political subdivision of the state when 
holding such office is incompatible with, or substantially interferes with the discharge of official duties of 
his/her job. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Solicitation for Charities and 
Fundraisers 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-22 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1,2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish a policy regulating solicitation for Charities and Fundraisers. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Most forms of solicitation on City property or during work time are prohibited.  The City may, in its sole 
discretion, make exceptions to this policy when it is determined to be in the best interest of the City. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Solicitation defined 

“Solicitation” is the requesting of an employee’s time or resources for any cause, whether by an 
individual or group, and regardless of whether for financial or non-financial reasons.  Solicitation may 
involve individuals or groups engaging in direct sales, recruitment, placing of signs and posters, and 
other activities resulting in the anticipated benefit of the individual or group. 

Solicitation permitted 

Employees may solicit contributions to charitable or non-profit community, youth or educational 
fundraisers so long as it does not cause undue distractions or disruptions of the work environment. 



The use of City facilities or equipment to solicit contributions (e.g. electronic mail, bulletin board 
postings) requires the prior authorization from the Administrative Services Director. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Whistleblower Program 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-23 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to define whistleblower and to establish a policy and program regarding 
whistleblower actions. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Public employees have an obligation to assure that government in general, and their departments in 
particular, perform ethically as well as efficiently and effectively.  City employees are prohibited from 
engaging in improper governmental action and are encouraged to report suspicious, unethical or illegal 
conduct or any other suspected improper governmental action taken by other employees, supervisors, 
or officers.  Employees who make good faith reports of improper governmental action will be protected 
from intimidation or retaliation for making a report. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Whistleblower: 

A “whistleblower” is an employee who reports improper governmental action in good faith as outlined 
in this policy, OR an employee who is perceived as making such a report whether they did or not.  A 
report is not made in good faith if the employee knowingly provides false, malicious or frivolous 
information, recklessly disregards the truth or omits relevant information. 

 



Improper governmental action 

Any action by a City officer or employee in the performance of their official duties, whether or not the 
action is within the scope of job duties, and that is in violation of any federal, state or local law or rule, is 
an abuse of authority, is of substantial and specific danger to the public health or safety, or is a gross 
waste of public funds.  Improper governmental action does not include personnel action such as 
employee grievances, complaints, appointments, promotions, performance evaluations, reductions in 
pay, corrective or disciplinary action, violations of collective bargaining and civil service laws, or alleged 
labor agreement violations. 

Whistleblower Program defined 

The Whistleblower Act was enacted by the Washington State Legislature to protect local government 
employees who make good faith reports of improper government action and to provide remedies for 
such employees who are subjected to retaliation for having made such a report.  The purpose of the 
City’s Whistleblower Program is to: 

1. Hold City employees responsible for their actions; and 

2. Provide a process for reporting improper governmental actions; and 

3. Protect employees who make good faith reports of improper governmental action; and 

4. Stop inappropriate and illegal government actions. 

Reporting Improper Governmental Actions 

Any City employee may report suspected improper governmental actions through the Whistleblower 
Program.  This includes regular and temporary employees as well as elected officials. 

City employees who become aware of improper governmental actions should take the following steps: 

1. Raise the issue with their Department Director, the Administrative Services Director or the City 
Manager as soon as the employee becomes aware of the improper action(s). 

2. If requested, the employee shall submit a written report describing the suspected improper 
governmental action, the name of the employee(s) involved, and when the action occurred. 

An employee may report the suspected improper governmental action directly to the County 
Prosecuting Attorney in the following situations: 

1. Where there is an immediate risk of serious injury or damage to property. 

2. When an employee reports a suspected governmental action to the appropriate person in the 
City and no action is taken. 

3. When the employee reports a suspected governmental action to the appropriate person in the 
City and is not satisfied with the action taken. 

 

 



Confidentiality 

The identity of a reporting employee and witnesses in any resulting investigation of the report shall be 
kept confidential to the extent possible under law, unless the employee authorizes disclosure of his/her 
identity in writing. 

City Response to Report of Improper Governmental Action 

Upon receipt of a report of improper governmental action, the City will conduct an investigation 
according to the City’s Investigation Policy.  If it is determined that improper governmental action did 
occur the City will take necessary action to resolve the matter and prevent it from recurring. 

Intimidation and Retaliation are Prohibited 

City officials and employees are prohibited from intimidating or taking retaliatory action against a City 
employee because he or she has in good faith reported an improper governmental action. 

Intimidation occurs when a City employee, Department Director, supervisor or officer uses his/her 
official authority or influence to threaten or to coerce an employee for the purpose of interfering with 
the employee’s right to report improper governmental action(s). 

Retaliation is inflicting injury on an employee by making adverse changes to employment status or to 
the terms and conditions of employment because the employee made a report of improper government 
action or was believed to have made a report of improper governmental action.  Examples of retaliatory 
action include, but are not limited to, unwarranted disciplinary action, unsubstantiated poor 
performance evaluations, reduction in pay, denial of promotion, unwarranted termination of 
employment, or harassment. 

Reporting Intimidation or Retaliation 

Employees who believe that they have been intimidated or retaliated against for reporting an improper 
governmental action should provide a written report to the Department Director, the Administrative 
Services Director, or the City Manager.  The notification should specify the alleged retaliatory action and 
the relief requested. 

If an employee complains about intimidation or retaliation and is not satisfied with the City response, 
he/she may request a hearing before a state administrative law judge.  To be eligible for a hearing the 
following conditions must be met: 

1. The complaint of intimidation or retaliation was made within 30 days of the alleged action; and 

2. The City did not respond within 30 days of the complaint or the employee received a response 
within 30 days but was not satisfied with the response. 

The request for hearing must be delivered to the Administrative Services Director or the City Manager’s 
Office within 15 days of receiving the response from the City or within 15 days of the last day on which 
the City could respond to the complaint (30 days). 

Management Responsibilities 



As with any policy, supervisors and Department Directors are responsible for enforcement.  Under this 
particular policy, supervisors and Department Directors are required to report any knowledge of 
improper governmental action to the Administrative Services Director or City Manager including, but not 
limited to, a complaint received from an employee. 

This policy and procedure was created and adopted pursuant to the provisions of the Revised Code of 
Washington, Chapter 42.41, et. Seq. 

 

Municipal, County and State Enforcement Agencies 

Current as of September 2019 – please refer to individual listing for updates 

 

City of Shelton 

Kathleen Haggard – City Attorney:  206.622.0203 

Shelton Police Department 

For Emergencies:  911 

For non-emergencies:  360.426.4441 

 

Mason County 

AGENCY ISSUES 
Mason County Public Health and Human Services 
415 N. 6th Street, Shelton, WA 98584   
360-427-9670 ext. 400 

To report a public health concern relating to:  
septic system failure and surfacing sewage, 
hazardous waste, water wells, mold, mosquitos 
or other environmental health. 

Olympic Region Clean Air Agency 
2940-B Limited Lane NW 
Olympia, WA 98502  
(360) 539-7610 
 

To report complaints relating to air quality such 
as outdoor burning, asbestos or lead. 

Mason County Prosecuting Attorney 
411 N 5th St 
Shelton WA 98584 
(360) 427-9670 
 

To report criminal activity. 

 

 

 

 

 



Washington State  

AGENCY ISSUES 
Washington State Auditor’s Office 
360.902.3900 
www.sao.wa.gov 

To report improper governmental actions (within 
policy restrictions). 

Washington Department of Ecology 
360.407.6300 
www.ecy.wa.gov 

To report spills and other environmental 
problems involving water, air, waste, cleanup or 
toxic hazards. 

Department of Labor and Industries 
360.896.2300 or 800.423.7233 
www.lni.wa.gov 

To report workplace safety concerns. 

Washington Human Rights Commission 
800.233.3247 
www.hum.wa.gov 

To report discrimination because of race, creed, 
color, national origin, sex, marital status, age or 
disability, sexual harassment or whistleblower 
workplace retaliation.  

Public Employee Relations Commission 
360.570.7300 
www.perc.wa.gov 

To report unfair labor practices, interference with 
rights to form or join an employee labor 
organization and rights to bargain collectively. 

 

 

http://www.sao.wa.gov/
http://www.ecy.wa.gov/
http://www.lni.wa.gov/
http://www.hum.wa.gov/
http://www.perc.wa.gov/


 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Social Media 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-24 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish appropriate social media use by City employees. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

Social media is changing the way we work and communicate with friends, citizens, co-workers and the 
world at-large.  The City encourages an open and expressive environment, but at the same time is 
responsible for protecting the privacy of our employees, the security of City information and the public 
trust.  This policy provides guidelines for employees in the use of personal social media sites. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Social Media: 

Social Media is on-line communications that allow for communication in the open.  Examples include, 
but are not limited to, electronic mail, blogs, and social networking sites like Facebook, Twitter and 
LinkedIn, media sharing sites like YouTube and Flickr, and information authoring sites (wikis) like 
Wikipedia. 

These general guidelines will be followed when using personal social media: 



Use common sense.  Perception is reality and in on-line social networks, the lines between public and 
private, personal and professional are blurred.  Just by identifying yourself as a City employee you are 
creating perceptions about your expertise and about Shelton. 

Be responsible.  Make sure that what you’re saying is factually correct, and that it doesn’t violate any 
policy guidelines that prohibit revealing confidential information.  Don’t use pictures or videos of official 
City training, activities or work-related assignments without prior authorization. 

Use Respect.  What you say on-line is a permanent record, so don’t post and/or disseminate information 
that would tend to discredit or reflect unfavorably on the City or any of its employees. 

Use restraint.  Only comment on issues of general or public concern if the comments will not disrupt the 
workplace, interfere with important working relations or efficient work flow, or undermine public 
confidence.  Issues of public concern are those matters of interest to the community as a whole, 
whether for social, political or other reasons.  Employees may express opinion on issues of public 
concern to state or local officials regardless of the impact on the workplace. 

Represent yourself, not the City.  Don’t attribute personal statements, opinions or beliefs to the City and 
do not give the impression that they are speaking or acting on the City’s behalf.  The City’s logo, 
letterhead or other material, including a photograph of the employee wearing or displaying the City’s 
logo are not to be communicated via social media. 

Follow City policies.  The City’s policies regarding harassment prevention and violence fully apply to the 
use of the internet, including social media and blogging.  



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Media 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-25 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to establish appropriate contact with the media. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is in the City’s best interest to maintain a cooperative relationship with the news media.  Positive news 
coverage assists in the City’s development, community relations, special event publicity, mission and 
recruitment. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

City Spokesperson: 

 The City Manager, or designee, shall be responsible for all comments and information within all 
channels or official contacts with the news media, including answering of questions from the media.  
The City Manager may authorize specific employees to give out procedural, factual, or historical 
information on an ongoing basis, on particular subjects or on specific incidents.  In all other situations 
media inquiries should be referred to the City Manager’s office. 

 

 

 



Off the Record: 

Despite any media assurances to the contrary, nothing is “off the record”.  Any statement that a City 
employee makes to the media is subject to broadcast and/or publication.  Similarly, any statement made 
to the media during working hours or as a representative of the City is made on behalf of the City. 

Employees who wish to make a personal statement or express a personal opinion to the media must do 
so outside of working hours. 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Legal Review 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-50 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
Policy 100-50 dated June 9, 2008 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

The purpose of this policy is to provide for effective legal review of City Policy documents, including 
Ordinances and Resolutions, that are intended for presentation to the City Council. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Shelton Municipal Code 2.20. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton to secure professional review of certain policy documents prior to 
consideration by the Shelton City Council for formal action. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

5.1 Responsibility   

5.1.1 The City Attorney shall provide legal review on matters being presented to the 
City Council in accordance with this policy. 

5.1.2 The City Attorney is expected to provide competent review on matters of law 
when such matters are beyond the professional capacity of administrative staff 
as detailed in Sections 5.2 and 5.3. 

5.2 Review Required:  The City Attorney shall provide legal review on all documents being 
presented to the City Council for a decision except as detailed in Section 5.3. 



5.3 Review Exceptions:  Administrative staff shall decide whether the following are to be 
referred to the City Attorney for review prior to presentation to the City Council at a regular 
business meeting.  Nothing herein shall preclude the City Council from ordering legal review 
regardless of any contrary recommendation. 

5.3.1 Template Contracts.  Administrative staff may fill in blank spaces (e.g. dates, 
organization names, or similar) on template contracts that have been previously 
approved by the City Attorney.  Any changes other than those described above 
shall require legal review by the City Attorney. 

5.3.2 Grant applications and grant commitments. 

5.3.3 Loan applications. 

5.3.4 Bid awards. 

5.3.5 Standardized contracts used by other governmental organizations.    

 

   

 



 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
 
Exceptions 

GROUP: 
 
Administration 

NUMBER: 
 
100-90 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES: 
Policy 100-90 dated July 8, 2010 

PREPARED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To provide for exceptions to City of Shelton policies and Procedures, and to provide for amendments to 
City Council adopted City policies. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

City of Shelton Protocol Manual adopted by Council via Ordinance 1936-0119 on January 2, 2019.  City 
policy 100-10. 

4.0 POLICY AND PROCEDURE: 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton for its employees to work as efficiently and effectively as possible.  It 
is also the City policy to follow directives adopted by the City Council including the City’s Policies and 
Procedures, which implement Council policies, and those Policies of Senior Branches of Government 
(State of Washington and the United States). 

Situations may arise that were not contemplated when City Council Policies or Administrative Policies 
were first approved and implemented.  Occasionally, these decisions result in unnecessary inefficiencies 
or contradictions to other adopted policies.  This Exceptions policy is intended to account for this 
infrequent situations and to allow for amendment or repeal of a particular policy. 

5.0 PROCEDURE: 

5.1 Responsibility  The City Manager and Department Directors are responsible for the 
administration of this policy. 

 



5.2 Definitions: 

5.2.1 “Administrative Policy” – A Policy and Procedure approved by the Shelton City 
Manager for the City of Shelton. 

5.2.2 “City Policy” – A policy adopted and/or approved by the Shelton City Council. 

5.2.3 “Policy Opportunity” – This includes an Administrative Policy that is judged to be 
unnecessarily inefficient, inconsistent with other Administrative Policies, or 
contrary to City Policies or the policies of a senior branch of government.  A 
Policy Opportunity also includes City Policies that are determined to be 
unnecessarily inefficient or inconsistent with other City Policies. 

5.2.4 “Policies of a Senior Branch of Government” – They include, but are not limited 
to, legislative, regulatory, or judicial mandates from senior branches of 
government.  For example, Federal or State policies. 

5.2.5 “Senior Branch of Government” – This includes the State and Federal 
government including their agencies and departments. 

5.2.6 “Stakeholders” – Stakeholders are Department Heads whose responsibilities 
would or might be affected by a change to a City Policy or Administrative Policy. 

 5.3 Intent 

5.3.1 It is the intent of this policy to facilitate a review and possible change to City 
Policies and/or Administrative Policy when the City Council or City Manager 
determines a Policy Opportunity exists. 

 5.4 Reporting 

5.4.1 Whenever a Shelton City Employee becomes aware of a Policy Opportunity, the 
employee is encouraged to report the Policy Opportunity to his or her 
Department Head through their supervisor. 

5.4.2 If, following review of the Policy Opportunity, the Department Head determines 
that a change in policy would produce an outcome beneficial to organizational 
operations the Department Head shall advise the City Manager.  The 
Department Head may use their discretion to recommend a new policy or 
propose an amendment to existing policy. 

5.4.3 The Department Head shall consult with all Stakeholders prior to advising or 
recommending a course of action to the City Manager. 

 5.5 Action 

5.5.1 Upon notice that a Policy Opportunity exists, the City Manager shall undertake a 
review of the affected policy including recommendations from Stakeholders. 



5.5.2 The City Manager will consult with Stakeholders and conduct research from 
other sources to determine if a change to approved and/or adopted policy 
would result in a beneficial outcome for the organization. 

5.5.3 Following the review described immediately above, the City Manager shall 
reject the change in policy, or facilitate the change to Administrative Policy or, if 
applicable, recommend a change in City Policy to the City Council. 

5.5.4 In an emergency situation, the City Manager may, in his or her discretion, 
authorize an immediate exception to Administrative Policy, so long as the 
benefit is clear and documented, and the decision immediately follows the 
process of an amendment to Administrative Policy reflecting the decision. 

 

   

 



FUND BALANCE 
POLICY 300-18 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Fund Balance 

GROUP: 
Finance 

POLICY NO: 
300-18 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERCEDES:  
300-18, Dated August 13, 2015 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

This policy establishes the amounts the City will strive to maintain in fund 
reserves, how the reserves will be funded, and the conditions under which 
reserves may be used. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Government Finance Officers Association Best Practice 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

The City classifies available fund balances for specific purposes in accordance 
with the Government Accounting Standards Board (GASB) Statement #54.  

Non-Spendable – Resources that cannot be spent because of form (e.g. 
inventory, prepaid amounts) or because they must be maintained intact. 

Restricted – Resources with limitations imposed by creditors, grantors, laws, 
regulations, or enabling legislation. 

Committed – Resources that can only be used for specific purposes pursuant to 
constraints imposed by formal action of the highest level of decision-making 
authority, e.g., the City Council.  These amounts can not be used for any other 
purpose unless the City Council removes or changes the specified use by taking 
the same action it employed to previously commit the amounts. 

Assigned – Resources that are intended to be used for specific purposes, but is 
neither restricted nor committed. 



FUND BALANCE 
POLICY 300-18 
 

Unassigned – Resources that are not non-spendable, restricted, committed or 
assigned to specific purposes. 

5.0 POLICY  

Fund balance is an important indicator of a city’s financial position and 
maintaining reserves is a prudent management practice.  Adequate fund 
balances are maintained to allow the city to continue providing services to the 
community in case of unexpected emergencies, unfunded mandates, and/or 
economic downturns.  They may also be used to meet seasonal cash flow 
shortfalls as needed.  The City’s Finance Department is charged with ensuring 
compliance with all fund balance policy requirements.  The City has determined 
targeted fund balances for specific funds as outlined below:  

Fund Fund Balance Policy   

General Fund Sixteen Percent (16%) of Current-Year 
Budgeted Expenses    

Street Fund - Unrestricted Sixteen Percent (16%) of Current-Year 
Budgeted Expenses    

Water Operating Fund Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year 
Budgeted Operating Expenses    

Sewer Operating Fund Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year 
Budgeted Operating Expenses    

Storm Drainage Operating 
Fund 

Twenty Percent (20%) of Current-Year 
Budgeted Operating Expenses    

 

5.1 General Fund – In an effort to ensure the continuance of sound financial 
management of public resources, the City of Shelton’s Unassigned General Fund 
balance will be maintained to provide the city with sufficient working capital and a 
comfortable margin of safety to address emergent needs, sudden loss of 
revenue, and unexpected downturns without borrowing.  This policy establishes 
the amounts the city will strive to maintain in its General Fund balance, the 
conditions under which fund balance may be spent, and the method by which 
fund balances will be restored.  These amounts are expressed as goals, 
recognizing that fund balance levels can fluctuate from year to year in the normal 
course of operations for any local government.  The city will strive to maintain a 
General Fund “operating reserve” with an upper goal of 16% of the adopted 
current-year budgeted General Fund expenditures, less any one-time items.  It is 



FUND BALANCE 
POLICY 300-18 
 

the intent of the City to limit the use of Unassigned General Fund balances to 
addressing unanticipated, non-recurring needs or known and planned future 
obligations.   

The Operating Reserve is intended to be a reserve for unexpected events such 
as unfunded mandates, the failure to receive expected revenues, the 
continuance of critical City services due to unanticipated events, or to offset the 
unexpected loss of a significant funding source for the remainder of the fiscal 
year.  Any use of Operating Reserve funds that reduce the fund balance below 
the minimum desired level must include a repayment plan to restore the 
Operating Reserve to the minimum desired level. 

Fund balances shall not normally be applied to recurring annual operating 
expenditures.  Unassigned balances may, however, be used to allow time for the 
city to restructure its operations in a deliberate manner, but such use will only 
take place in the context of long-term financial planning. 

Funds in excess of the reserves described above will be Unassigned General 
Fund Balance, unless otherwise assigned in accordance with GASB Statement 
#54, and may be considered to supplement “pay as you go” capital outlay and 
other one-time expenditures.  These funds may not be used to establish or 
support costs that are recurring in nature.  

The Finance Director is authorized to classify available fund balance for specific 
purposes in accordance with GASB #54.  It is the policy of the city that 
expenditures for which more than one category of fund balance may be used, the 
order of use will be: 

 Restricted Fund Balance. 
 Committed Fund Balance. 
 Assigned Fund Balance. 
 Unassigned Fund Balance. 

5.2 Other Funds – In a manner similar to the General Fund, the City desires to 
maintain a prudent level of financial resources in its other funds including; 
Enterprise Funds, Special Revenue Funds, and Self-Insurance Funds, to guard 
its stakeholders against service disruptions in the event of unexpected temporary 
revenue shortfalls or unpredicted one-time expenses.   Fund reserves are 
accumulated and maintained to provide stability and flexibility to respond to 
unexpected adversity and/or opportunities.  It is the intent of the City to limit use 
of these fund reserves to address unanticipated, non-recurring needs.  Reserves 
shall not normally be applied to recurring annual operating expenses.  However, 
Reserves may be used to allow time for the City to restructure its operations in a 
deliberate manner (as might be required in an economic downturn), but such use 
will only take place in the context of long-term financial planning.  Unless 



FUND BALANCE 
POLICY 300-18 
 

otherwise noted, all parameters of the General Fund Balance are also applicable 
to all other fund balances. 

5.3 Pooled Cash Method – In order to provide liquidity adequate to meet the needs 
and demands of providing government services, including unanticipated 
reductions in revenues or unplanned increases in expenses, reserve levels will 
be maintained and managed through the “Pooled Cash Method” in such a way as 
to minimize short-term borrowing.  This reduces overall cost to taxpayers by 
minimizing interest expense.  The reserves are intended to support this effort and 
counterbalance cycles that are experienced in fee and other revenue collections. 

5.4 Funding the Reserves – Funding of reserve targets will generally come from 
excess revenues over expenses or one-time revenues. 

5.5 Excess of Reserves – Reserves for specific funds are restricted for the activities 
of that fund under GASB principles with the exception of the General Fund, which 
can be used for any good government purpose.  In the event fund reserves 
exceed the minimum balance requirements at the end of each fiscal year, any 
excess reserves may be used in the following ways: 

 Fund Accrued Liabilities – Priority will be given to those items that relieve 
budget or financial operating pressure in future periods. 

 Appropriated to lower the amount of bonds or contributions needed to fund 
capital projects in the City’s Capital Improvement Program. 

 One-time expenses that do not increase recurring operating costs that 
cannot be funded through current revenues.  Emphasis will be placed on 
one-time uses that reduce future operating costs. 

 Start-up expenses for new programs, if such action is approved by the 
City Council and is considered in the context of multi-year projections of 
revenue and expenses as prepared by the City’s Finance Department. 

5.6 Periodic Review – The Finance Department will periodically review this policy.  



ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
POLICY 300-27 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Access to Confidential Information 

GROUP: 
Finance 

POLICY NO: 
300-27 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To provide a framework through policy for access to confidential tax information. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Public Records Act – RCW 42.56 

Confidential Excise Tax - RCW 82.32.330 – Defines covered confidential excise 
tax information and the circumstances under which such information can be 
provided by the Department of Revenue to, and used by, authorized state 
agency and local government elected officials and employees. 

4.0     DEFINITIONS: 

Authorized Employee – A City employee who has been authorized to receive tax-
related information by the Finance Director or their designee, and through the 
execution of a Tax and License Confidentiality Affidavit if required by the 
Department of Revenue.   

Tax-related Information – The taxpayer’s identity, the nature, source, or amount 
of the taxpayer’s income, payments, receipts, deductions, exemptions, credits, 
assets, liability, net worth, tax liability deficiencies, over-assessments, or tax 
payments, whether taken from the taxpayer’s books and records or any other 
source, which information is obtained by the Department of Revenue or the City 
for an identifiable taxpayer, and relates to the following excise or other taxes 
imposed, and collected by either the Department of Revenue or the City:  
 



ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
POLICY 300-27 

 Sales and Use tax 
 Brokered Natural Gas Use tax. 
 Lodging Tax. 
 State and City Business & Occupation tax. 
 State Public Utilities Tax and City Utility taxes. 
 Leasehold Excise tax. 
 City Gambling tax. 
 Tax-related information also means and includes tax returns and their 

referenced schedules or attachments. 
 

Department of Revenue – The Washington State Department of Revenue. 
 

Information Sharing Agreement – The City of Shelton Data Sharing Agreement 
for Tax/Licensing Information between the Department of Revenue and the City. 

 
Tax and License Confidentiality Affidavit – The Department of Revenue 
agreement executed by the City employee to receive confidential excise tax 
information, and provided to the Department of Revenue enabling the employee 
to have access to confidential information.  The Affidavit also includes a section 
for business license information, which is not applicable because the City is not a 
member of the Department of Revenue Business License System. 

 
Tax-Related Information-Confidential – Tax-related information is confidential 
and privileged, and except as authorized by this policy, applicable law, or by the 
Finance Director or their designee, no employee may disclose tax-related 
information to any person who is not the applicable taxpayer or its designee, an 
authorized representative of the Department of Revenue, or an authorized 
employee.  It is not a violation of this policy to provide tax-related information to 
any person if that disclosure is not related to a specific or identifiable taxpayer, or 
if all identifying information of the taxpayer can first be redacted and protected. 

 
5.0 POLICY: 

This policy addresses City staff access and use of tax-related information, but 
shall in no way inform any disclosure decisions made to requests submitted 
under the Public Records Act, which decisions are controlled entirely by the 
Public Records Act, Chapter 42.56 RCW.  Records and information that are 
internally confidential under this policy may be subject to disclosure, in whole or 
in part, under the Public Records Act.  This policy addresses the following: 

 
5.1 Collected by the Department of Revenue 

 Sales and Use Tax 
 Brokered Natural Gas Use Tax 
 Lodging Tax 
 State Business & Occupation Tax 
 State Public Utilities Tax 
 Leasehold Excise Tax 



ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
POLICY 300-27 

5.2 Collected by the City of Shelton 
 City Business & Occupation Tax 
 Gambling Tax 
 Utility Taxes (telephone, natural gas, electric, cable television, water, sewer 

and drainage) 
5.3 City Business Licensing Information 

 Overarching Disclosure Considerations – Unless otherwise authorized by 
RCW 82.32.330, Confidential Excise Tax Information may only be shared with 
City employees that have a duly authorized and executed Tax and License 
Confidentiality Affidavit on file with the Department of Revenue.   

 Confidential City Business & Occupation Tax Information – may only be 
shared with City employees that have been authorized by the Finance 
Director or their designee to receive this information.  Such information may 
be provided to the Mayor and members of the Shelton City Council or their 
authorized designees dealing with matters of taxation, revenue, trade, 
commerce, the control of industry or the professions.  

 
6.0  ACCESS TO TAX-RELATED INFORMATION: 
 
6.1 State Excise Tax Information – RCW 82.32.330 defines under what 

circumstances City employees and representatives may obtain tax-related 
information from the Department of Revenues concerning certain excise taxes. 

 
6.2 Information Sharing Agreement – This process requires the execution, and filing, 

with the Department of Revenue of a Tax and License Confidentiality Affidavit, 
which in part acknowledges the confidential nature of the information being 
shared or provided.  If an employee requires access to excise tax information 
from the Department of Revenue, the Finance Director or their designee will: 
 Coordinate the execution and maintenance of the Information Sharing 

Agreement and the Tax and License Confidentiality Affidavit, including any 
subsequent amendments to those agreements. 

 Educate the authorized employee regarding the confidential nature of the tax-
related information and the requirements of RCW 82.32.330. 

 Arrange for the authorized employee to obtain access to the tax-related 
information received from the Department of Revenue. 

 
6.3 City B&O Tax Information – The Finance Director or their designee is authorized 

to grant employee access to City B&O tax-related information.  These authorized 
employees are not required to execute an agreement, affidavit, or other 
document prior to being provided access.  However, they are expected to 
understand and adhere to the confidentiality requirements of RCW 82.32.330, 
and this policy. 

 
6.4 Explicit Authorization – It is not required for employees to access information that 

is readily available to them by nature of their positions with the Finance 
Department or the City.  Examples include: 



ACCESS TO CONFIDENTIAL INFORMATION 
POLICY 300-27 

 An employee with access to the City’s accounting system because 
taxpayer information is recorded through separate address numbers in the 
system. 

 Customer Services employees receipting City B&O tax payments. 
 Appropriate staff associated with evaluating City economic development 

activities. 
 
6.5 Other City Tax and Business License Information – Generally, only tax-related 

information concerning federal income tax, state excise tax, and City B&O tax is 
confidential and privileged.  However, City staff should exercise due care in the 
handling of tax-related information to prevent any unnecessary disclosure.  



FEE WAIVERS 
POLICY 300-31 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Fee Waivers 

GROUP: 
Finance Department 

POLICY NO: 
300-31 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

This policy establishes the guidelines, requirements and procedures regarding 
granting waiver of fees or other moneys due to the City for goods and/or services 
related to the following areas: 

 Dollar limits based on the types of fees and/or maximum dollar amounts of 
waiver. 

 Authority for waiver of fees. 
 Documentation of waiver of fees. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

 All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

This policy is supplemental to selected municipal revenue requirements as 
outlined by the following: 

 Washington State Constitution – Article XIII Section 5, Credit Not to be 
loaned. 

 Washington State Constitution – Article XIII Section 7, Credit No to be loaned. 
 RCW 82.32.050 Deficient Tax or Penalty Payments. 
 RCW 35.21.300 Utility Services – Enforcement of Lien (Water Utility) 
 RCW 35.67 Sewerage Systems – Refuge Collection and Disposal 
 RCW 35.49 Local Improvement Districts – Collection of Assessments 
 RCW 35.50 Local Improvement Districts – Foreclosure of Assessments 
 Shelton Municipal Code – Titles 1 through 21 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

Fee Waiver – The City voluntarily giving up its right to collect Eligible Fees for 
goods or services provided by the City to a person, firm or corporation. 



FEE WAIVERS 
POLICY 300-31 
 

Originating Department – The department that provides the goods or services 
subject to fee waiver or account write-off.  

Account – The responsible person, firm, or corporation responsible for payment 
for City goods or services provided. 

Eligible Fees – Fees and other charges for services established by the Shelton 
Municipal Code or related duly authorized fee schedules that are not otherwise 
already exempt from collection pursuant to state statute, the City Code, or related 
duly authorized fee schedules. 

Principle – The amount owed to the City prior to addition of penalties, finance 
charges, interest or other delinquency fees. 

Penalties – A stated dollar amount or stated percent of amount owed due of 
principle amount due not paid by the due date. 

Interest/Finance Charges – A stated percentage of principle, interest and 
accumulated other delinquency fees not paid by the due date.  

Other Delinquency Charges – A stated dollar amount or percentage of amount 
owed.  Examples include; water turn-on fees, collection agency fees and lien 
filing fees. 

5.0 POLICY: 

Fee waivers are not the same as account write-offs, and the expectation is that 
fee waivers will be extremely limited.  It shall be the responsibility of each 
department to ensure: 

 If not already established through the Shelton Municipal Code or through City 
policies and procedures, proper departmental standard operating procedures 
(SOPs) governing fee waivers exist.  These policies and procedures should 
include; provisions designed to ensure that fee waivers are properly 
authorized, appropriate, valid and documented. 

 All fee waivers are properly authorized, documented and adhere to the 
requirements established by the Washington State Constitution, state statute, 
Shelton Municipal Code and departmental SOPs. 

5.1 Specific Considerations: 

Waiver of Fees – examples include, but are not limited to, the following: 

 Reductions of amounts owed attributed to negotiated settlements, e.g. 
damage to City infrastructure or equipment. 

 City water, sewer and storm drainage utility account delinquency fees. 
 Certain parks and recreation fees, e.g. reciprocal use agreements. 
 Certain land use, building permit or similar fees, e.g. temporary use and street 

use permit fees. 
 These fee waivers are typically based on an individual customer basis or on a 

type of customer basis (e.g., not-for-profit organization).   



FEE WAIVERS 
POLICY 300-31 
 

5.2 The State Constitution prohibits the gifting of public funds except for the 
necessary support of the poor and infirm unless the state agency or local 
government can demonstrate: 

 That it acted without a donative intent. 
 That the action will result in a significant benefit to the public. 

5.3 Pursuant to state statute, there are certain types of fees imposed by the City that 
cannot be waived including, but not limited to, the following: 

 Interest due for delinquent City Business & Occupation Tax remittances 
(RCW 82.32.052). 

 Local Improvement District assessments (Chapter 35.49 and 35.50 establish 
lien against benefitted real property). 

 Sewerage utility charges for service (Chapter 35.67 establishes lien against 
real property receiving this service) 

 Water utility charges for service (RC.W 35.21.300 authorizes disconnection of 
service). 

 Employees with related cash handling responsibilities should not have the 
authority to grant fee waivers.  In circumstances in which it is not feasible to 
provide a proper segregation of duties, sufficient compensating policies and 
procedures must be developed designed to properly ensure City funds are 
safeguarded from loss.   

 Exception to the rules may be made only for unusual or extenuating 
circumstances upon written directive of the City Manager, or their designee, 
and only if such expenses relate to a benefit or service received by the City 
and compliance with these rules is or was not feasible. 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 Fees Ineligible for Fee Waiver: 

The following types of fees are not eligible for a Fee Waiver: 

 Any waiver presenting representing a gifting of public funds except for the 
necessary support of the poor and infirm unless it can be documented in 
advance that: 

o The originating department acted without a donative intent. 
o The action will result in a significant benefit to the City. 

 Principle amounts owed for the following: 
o City-imposed gambling and utility taxes. 
o City-imposed franchise fees. 
o Local improvement district assessments. 
o City water, sewer, drainage utility charges for services. 

 Interest owed for delinquent City Business and Occupation Taxes. 
 School District and Regional Fire Authority Impact Fees 

 

 



FEE WAIVERS 
POLICY 300-31 
 

6.2 Fees Eligible for Fee Waiver: 

The following types of fees are eligible for Fee Waiver subject to the limitations 
established through this Policy: 

 Account delinquency penalties and, with the exception of City business and 
occupation taxes, late interest.  Examples include, but are not limited to, City 
utilities, general accounts receivable, and code enforcement.  
Recommendations for waiver should be based in part on the following factors: 

o Basis of request, if any, for waiver. 
o Account payment history, i.e., history of delinquencies, if any. 
o Qualifying low income individuals. 
o Waivers which are part of a negotiated settlement for the benefit of 

economic development in the City.  Examples include, but are not 
limited to, waiver of certain land use and/or building permit fees  

o Waivers which promote the City’s mission and values through the 
goods or service provided by the individual or organization receiving 
the waiver.  Examples include, but are not limited to, fees or costs 
incurred by the City in support of special events held to promote 
diversity in the City. 

6.3 Fee Waiver Authorization and Procedure Requirements: 

Fee waivers authorization and procedure requirements must be established 
through departmental standard operating procedures, if not previously 
established through Code or through City policies and procedures.  All fee 
waivers should be approved, in writing, by the originating department director or 
their designee, and all fee waivers representing significant dollar amounts and/or 
are of a sensitive nature, should be routed to the Finance Director and the City 
Manager or their respective designees for review and approval.   

6.4 Collective Bargaining Agreements/Civil Service Rules: 

Employees covered by collective bargaining agreements or Civil Service Rules 
will be subject to the specific terms of those agreements and rules.  In the event 
a collective bargaining agreement or the Civil Service Rules do not contain 
language regarding purchasing cards as specified in this policy, then those 
employees will be governed by this policy. 



FRAUD PREVENTION 
POLICY 300-35 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Fraud Prevention 

GROUP: 
Finance Department 

POLICY NO: 
300-35 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To provide guidance to City employees when misuse or misappropriation of City 
resources is known or suspected. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

 All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

This policy is supplemental to the municipal fraud prevention, detection, 
investigation, and reporting requirements. 

Loss of public funds – Illegal activity – Report to State Auditor’s Office – RCW 
43.09.185 

Local Government Accounting – Examination of Local Governments – Reports – 
Actions by Attorney General – RCW 43.09.260 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

Employee – Any individual in a position of employment by the City as defined by 
the City’s Administrative Services Department as a regular employee, temporary 
employee, or any volunteer. 

Management – Any employee as defined above which also performs supervisory 
responsibilities and includes, but is not limited to, department directors and mid-
level managers. 

City Resources – Any moneys (legal tender or coins, money orders or paper 
checks), equipment or other City assets under an employee’s custody, control or 
direction.  Examples include, but are not limited to: 



FRAUD PREVENTION 
POLICY 300-35 
 

 Payments received from customers for goods or services provided by the City 
(e.g. user fees and charges) 

 Payments received from taxpayers (e.g. business & occupation and gambling 
taxes) 

 Payments made to vendors for goods or services provided to the City; and 
 Usage of City vehicles or equipment 
 City resources also include services provided by City employees as part of 

their duties. 

Fraud – Intentional false representation or concealment of a material fact for the 
purpose of inducing another to act upon it to their injury and/or personal gain.  
Examples include, but are not limited to: 

 Any dishonest or fraudulent act. 
 Misappropriation of City resources. 
 Impropriety in the handling or reporting of moneys or financial transactions.  

Examples include, but are not limited to, written falsification of a public record 
by employee and/or supervisory personnel for the benefit of the employee of: 

o Hours worked by employee resulting in compensation for which 
employee is not entitled, e.g. falsification of a payroll time record. 

o Travel-related expenses claimed for reimbursement by employee not 
actually incurred and/or not representing a valid and appropriate usage 
of City funds, e.g., falsification of a travel reimbursement request. 

o Usage of City funds for the purchase of goods and/or services for the 
employee rather than the City benefit or use, e.g., falsification of a City 
purchase order, vendor invoice, and/or merchandise receiving report. 

o Profiteering as the result of insider knowledge of City activities. 
o Disclosing confidential information to outside parties. 
o Accepting or seeking anything of material value from contractors, 

vendors, or persons providing goods or services to the City.     

5.0 POLICY: 

The City of Shelton is committed to the safeguarding of City resources.  The City 
will not tolerate any misuse or misappropriation of those resources.  Such actions 
may result in the following: 

 Disciplinary action up to and including termination of employment. 
 Payment of restitution, including the cost of investigation. 
 Filing of police report and referral for prosecution. 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 Management – Members of management are responsible for establishing and 
maintaining a system of internal controls to provide reasonable assurance of 
safeguarding of City resources through the prevention and detection of fraud. 
Management should be reasonably familiar with the types of fraud that might 
occur within their area of responsibility, and be alert for any indication of fraud.  
Management should consult with the Finance Department for guidance in this 



FRAUD PREVENTION 
POLICY 300-35 
 

area.  Management has the same responsibility with respect to reporting fraud as 
do all other employees of the City.   Management will support and cooperate in 
the detection, reporting and investigation of fraud, including the prosecution of 
offenders if appropriate. 

6.2 Employees – Any employee who knows or has reason to believe that a fraud has 
occurred shall notify his/her immediate supervisor immediately.  If the employee 
has reason to believe that the employee’s immediate supervisor may be 
involved, the employee shall immediately notify his/her department director, 
Finance Director, City Manager or their respective designees.  The person 
notified shall immediately notify the Finance Director and the Administrative 
Services Director or their respective designees. 

6.3 Finance Director – It is the responsibility of the Finance Director or their designee 
to provide appropriate and timely notification to the Washington State Auditor’s 
Office.  It is expected that employees will fully cooperate with management, the 
State Auditor’s Office, and all other involved departments and law enforcement 
agencies during the course of an investigation, and will make all reasonable 
efforts to be available to assist the above noted persons with the investigation. 

6.4 Collective Bargaining Agreement/Civicl Service Rules - Employees covered by 
collective bargaining agreements and/or Civil Service Rules will be subject to the 
specific terms of those agreements and/or rules with respect to the subject of this 
policy.  In the event the collective bargaining agreement and/or Civil Services 
rules do not address this policy subject, then employees shall be governed by 
this policy.  

 



PER DIEM 
POLICY 300-38 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Per Diem 

GROUP: 
Finance Department 

POLICY NO: 
300-38 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
NEW 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To establish the requirements and procedures regarding the usage of per diem 
rates established by the United States General Services Administration (GSA). 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Advancement for Travel Expenses – Provision to Assure Repayment. RCW 
42.24.140. 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

As used in this document unless the context requires otherwise: 

 Per Diem – A specified daily or per meal allowance established by the United 
States General Services Administration (GSA) for the payment of necessary 
meals and incidental expenses for employee travel involving an overnight 
stay. 

• Necessary Meals – Meals not included in the registration fee for the travel 
event. 

• Incidental Expenses – Fees and tips for porters, baggage carriers, stewards, 
etc., subject to a maximum of $5 per day. 

• Overnight Stay –  Instances in which, due primarily to geographic 
considerations, the employee attending the traveling event must spend the 
night in a hotel or place other than the employee’s personal residence. 

• Local Travel – Travel related cost or meals associated with events that do not 
require an overnight stay.  

 

 



PER DIEM 
POLICY 300-38 
 

5.0 POLICY: 

This policy is to establish the requirements and procedures regarding the usage 
of per diem rates established by the United States General Services 
Administration (GSA). Key considerations:  

 Per Diem would be used for all employee travel involving an overnight stay. 
 The employee is not required to provide to the City vendor receipts or 

equivalent documentation for the cost of meals and incidental expenses. 
 City purchasing cards cannot be used for meals or incidental expenses and 

employees cannot submit a claim for reimbursement for these expenses. 
 Determination of eligible meals for the first and last day of travel would be 

based on the time of day that the employee leaves/returns to their personal 
residence.   

 Payment would be made to the employee prior to the scheduled date of 
travel.   

 Employees would be required to provide a duly completed, supported and 
authorized Travel Request Form.  If per diem is not used, then the cost of 
meals paid by the City would be limited to the per diem rate. 

 It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director, or their designee to 
enforce rules and procedures consistent with this policy, to provide 
application and agreement forms, and to provide training governing the use of 
per diem.  An exception may be made only for unusual or extenuating 
circumstances upon written directive of the City Manager, or their designee, 
and only if such expenses relate to a benefit or service received by the City 
and compliance with these rules is or was not feasible. 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 The employee or other authorized person obtains prior approval in writing as 
outlined above. 

6.2 The employee or other authorized person completes and signs the Travel 
Advance Request form and attaches the following documentation: 

 Travel authorization (email or department form). 
 Conference/Travel Event Agenda with meals circled. 
 GSA per diem rate for travel destination (www.gsa.gov/travel/plan-book/per-

diem-rates). 
 Proof of mileage (if applicable). 

6.3 The Travel Advance Request form and supporting documentation must be 
submitted to the Finance Department for processing at least 10 business days 
prior to travel to ensure that payment can be made prior to leaving. 

6.4 The employee must return any funds due to the City within 15 calendar days 
comprised of meal per diem and/or mileage advanced for travel that did not occur 
on the planned days and times of the Travel Advance Request Form.  Similarly, 
the employee may submit a claim for reimbursement for per diem and/or mileage 
due that was excluded from the Travel Advance Request Form. 



PER DIEM 
POLICY 300-38 
 

6.5 Usage of Per Diem – Usage of per diem for necessary meals and incidental 
expenses is required for all travel while on City business involving an overnight 
stay unless approved in advance by both the department director (or City 
Manager if employee is a department director), and the Finance Director or their 
designees.  Employees not receiving per diem may use their purchasing/credit 
card and submit a claim for reimbursement.  Reimbursement for submitted 
expenses may not exceed the amount the employee would have received under 
per diem. 

6.6 Travel within the Continental United States and Canada – To be eligible for 
payment of travel expenses within the continental United States and Canada, 
written authorization must be received prior to committing City funds (e.g., 
booking airfare) as follows: 

 City Manager – Mayor or their designee. 
 Department Directors – City Manager or their designee. 
 City Clerk and Judge – City Manager or their designee. 
 Municipal Court Administrator – Judge. 
 All other City Employees – The employee’s department director or their 

designee may authorize travel.  

 Written authorization includes, but is not limited to:  

 Memorandum. 
 E-mail. 
 Department/Division Travel Requisition form. 
 When employees are traveling together, written authorization is required for 

each employee regardless of which employee remits payment for travel costs. 
 Each department should select its preferred method of documenting written 

travel authorization.  Such documentation must be maintained in a manner 
providing for timely access for such purposes as public records requests and 
audit. 

6.7 Other Travel – To be eligible for payment of travel expenses outside the 
continental United States and Canada, an employee must receive prior written 
authorization from the City Manager or their designee. 



SMALL AND ATTRACTIVE ASSETS 
POLICY 300-47 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT: 
Small and Attractive Assets 

GROUP: 
Finance Department 

POLICY NO: 
300-47 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

This policy is to establish the guidelines, requirements, and procedures regarding 
the City’s Small and Attractive Capital Assets (SACA) and is designed to provide 
reasonable assurance that SACA are safeguarded from waste, theft and abuse. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

Coordinator – The Finance Director, or their designee, will appoint the 
Coordinator.  The Coordinator is responsible for centralized monitoring of SACA 
operations, primarily comprised of providing an annual reminder notice to 
appropriate departmental personnel, ensuring receipt of written results of the 
annual (or more frequent) physical verifications of SACA by the departments for 
further review and analysis.   

Small and Attractive Capital Asset – An item which is highly susceptible to theft 
that costs more than $500 and less than $5,000, including sales tax and shipping 
costs.  Examples include, but are not limited to, laptop computers, tablets, 
cellular phones, printers, digital cameras, portable radios, hand-held engineering 
calculators, digital or video recorders or projectors, flat screen televisions, 
appliances, weapons, art work, mowers, and certain vehicle repair equipment 
such as flushing equipment.  Departments have the option to account for assets 
below the $500 threshold as SACA.  For example, there may be certain assets 
that are inherently particularly vulnerable to loss that the Department believes 
appropriate to treat as SACA. 



SMALL AND ATTRACTIVE ASSETS 
POLICY 300-47 
 

SACA Tracking System – The system or spreadsheet used to record the 
acquisition, assignment and disposal of the SACA.  SACA purchased by the 
Information Technology Department, on behalf of another the Department, will be 
recorded to the Information Technology Department SACA Tracking System. 

5.0 POLICY: 

It shall be the responsibility of each department to ensure that SACA, within its 
custody and control, are properly accounted for and used for authorized city 
purposes.  It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director, or their designee, 
to enforce this policy and related procedures.  Exceptions to the rules set forth 
may be made for unusual or extenuating circumstances upon written directive of 
the Finance Director or their designee. 

The Information Technology Department is responsible for, at least on an annual 
basis, providing the SACA Tracking System report to appropriate department or 
Division-level staff for SACAs acquired by the Information Technology 
Department on behalf of the Department for technology-based SACA as 
described lower in this policy.   

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 Segregation of Duties – No one employee should have both access to the SACA  
item and control over the related accounting records.  This would include, but is 
not limited to, ensuring: 

 Employees responsible for ordering the SACA should also not have sole 
responsibility for receiving, tagging and recording the item to the SACA 
Tracking System. 

 The annual physical verification of SACA should be performed by an 
employee independent of SACA acquisition, disposal and custody operations. 

 In circumstances where it is not feasible to provide a proper segregation of 
duties, sufficient compensating policies and procedures must be developed 
that are designed to properly ensure City funds are safeguarded from loss.  
For example, a single employee may perform all of the operations described 
in Sections A and B; however, another employee completely independent 
these operations must review and approve the related transmittals, reports or 
equivalent documentation. 

6.2 Financial and Account Requirements – Expenditures for SACA must be recorded 
to the appropriate account within Supplies Expense (Object Code 35XX). 

6.3 Custodial Control Requirements – It is the responsibility of each department to 
ensure that SACA, within its custody and control, are properly accounted for and 
used for authorized purposes.  Specific requirements include: 

 At a minimum, the description, serial number (or other identifying reference, 
acquisition date, cost, and purchase order number (or last four digits of city 
purchasing card if used) must be properly and timely recorded to the SACA 



SMALL AND ATTRACTIVE ASSETS 
POLICY 300-47 
 

Tracking System.  If the asset is tagged or engraved with an identifier 
number, then the asset tag number or identifier number should be recorded. 

 Access to SACA is reasonably controlled. 
 Usage of SACA is limited to authorized and valid city purposes. 
 Disposal or transfer of SACA is properly authorized and recorded.  Disposal 

or transfer of computer equipment must be coordinated with the 
Administrative Services Director or their designee. 

 Physical verification and inspection requirements as outlined above in this 
policy. 

 Departments should exercise appropriate custodial control over assets valued 
at less than $500 that inherently are particularly vulnerable to loss. 

6.4 Physical Verification Requirements – Physical verification and inspection of 
SACA must be performed at least on an annual basis.  Further, the results must 
be communicated in writing to the Coordinator by the last business day of 
January of the subsequent year.  Specific considerations: 

 The report to the Coordinator must reflect the results of comparison of SACA 
as listed on the SACA Tracking System report to the results of the physical 
verification, including additions and removals for the current calendar year. 

 Known or suspected loss or misuse of SACA must be reported immediately to 
the Finance Director, or their designee, the Coordinator, and appropriate 
departmental personnel.  When appropriate, the Shelton Police Department 
should be notified (e.g., theft, vandalism, breaking and entering, etc.). 

 The Information Technology (IT) Department will provide the portion of its 
SACA Tracking System report, or equivalent information, to the appropriate 
department or division-level employee responsible for conducting annual 
verifications.  This employee will be responsible for providing the results of 
the verification to the IT Department.  The IT Department will provide the 
results of annual verifications to the Coordinator under the same timeline as 
conveyed above in this section. 

6.5 Collective Bargaining Agreements/Civil Services Rules – Employees covered by 
collective bargaining agreements and/or Civil Service rules, will be subject to the 
specific terms of those agreements and/or rules with respect to the subject of this 
policy. In the event the collective bargaining agreement and/or Civil Services 
rules do not address this policy subject, then employees shall be governed by 
this policy. 

 



STATE AUDIT PROTOCOL 
POLICY 300-53 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
State Audit Protocol 

GROUP: 
Finance 

POLICY NO: 
300-53 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
New 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

Establish expectations designed to ensure audits performed by the State 
Auditor’s Office (SAO) are: 

 Performed in an effective and efficient manner. 
 

 The City has an opportunity to effectively review preliminary audit results, 
assess validity of the results, and implement corrective policies and 
procedures. 

 
 SAO has the opportunity to review the City’s analysis of preliminary audit 

results, including recommended corrective policies and procedures. 
 

 Both the City and SAO have the opportunity to review the level of reporting 
considerations with respect to adverse audit conditions, i.e. audit findings, a 
management letter or exit conference item. 

 
2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 
 

All Departments. 
 
3.0 REFERENCES: 

State Auditor – RCW 43.09 (This policy is supplemental to the state audit 
requirements) 

4.0 POLICY: 

Audits typically involve examination of central processes as well as departmental 
or division-level audits.  Subject to reasonable considerations, the City is 



STATE AUDIT PROTOCOL 
POLICY 300-53 
 

committed to ensuring that requested documentation, information, and access to 
personnel, are provided to SAO in a timely manner.  These considerations 
include the timing of critical operations, but not limited to, processing payroll and 
utility billings. It shall be the responsibility of the Finance Director, or their 
designee, to enforce rules and procedures consistent with this standard 
operating procedures (SOP).  Exceptions to the rules set forth may be made for 
unusual or extenuating circumstances upon written directive of the Finance 
Director or their designee. 

 
5.0 PROCEDURE: 

Pursuant to RCW 43.09, the State Auditor’s Office (SAO) conducts audits of all 
state agencies, cities, counties, and other political subdivisions, municipal 
corporations, and quasi-municipal corporations.  These audits revolve around 
financial reporting and matters of financial legal compliance. The SAO has the 
authority to conduct performance audits.  The SAO performs an annual audit of 
the city on a calendar year basis and issues the following reports: 

 
5.1 Financial Statements and Federal Single Audit:   

 Internal control over financial reporting and compliance, and other matters, 
based on an audit of financial statements performed in accordance with 
governmental auditing standards. 

 Compliance of each major federal program, and report on internal control 
over compliance in accordance with the uniform guidance. 

 Whether the financial statements were prepared in accordance with, cash 
based accounting principles. 

 
5.2 Accountability Audit Report – The city uses public resources, compliance with 

state laws, regulations, and its own policies and procedures, and internal 
controls. 

 
5.3 Audit Concerns – Are communicated on various factors including, but not limited 

to, the impact of the audit concern. 
 

 Audit Finding – The highest level of reporting and comprised of the 
background, description of condition, cause of condition, effect of condition, 
recommendation, entity’s response, auditor’s remarks, and applicable laws 
and regulations.  Auditees are required to develop a formal corrective action 
plan for review by SAO. 

 Management Letter – Audit concerns reported in a formal letter to 
management, but not referenced in the audit report. Management letters 
typically include most of the elements of an audit finding in summary form. 

 Exit Conference Items – Audit concerns reported orally to management at the 
formal entity-wide exit conference. This can represent minor items and in 
most instances, exit conference items are included within the text of the exit 
conference agenda or related attachment. 

 



STATE AUDIT PROTOCOL 
POLICY 300-53 
 

5.4 Finance Department Responsibilities – The Finance Director and/or their 
designee are responsible for overseeing and facilitating the annual audit 
conducted by SAO. The Finance Director will coordinate with SAO regarding the 
audit scope and timing of SAO audit procedures through activities that can 
include:  

 
 Holding a preliminary audit entrance conference. 
 Providing SAO with appropriate departmental liaison and other contact 

information. 
 Providing SAO with documentation or other information easily available to 

appropriate Finance Department personnel.  
 Providing timely written notification to appropriate departmental directors and 

management regarding planned audit work based on information provided by 
SAO. 

 Finance, working in collaboration with the appropriate departments, will 
evaluate the validity of preliminary SAO audit concerns and, as appropriate, 
develop corrective actions. 

 Drafting the city response to Audit Findings, Management Letters and Exit 
Conference items for presentation to SAO. 

 
5.5 Responsibilities of Other Departments – Appropriate departmental management 

staff are responsible for helping the Finance Department facilitate the annual 
audit conducted by SAO subject to the following expectations: 

 
 Appropriate departmental management personnel shall provide timely 

acknowledgement of receipt of notification SAO audit provided to the 
department pursuant to Section D of this SOP. 

 Appropriate departmental management personnel shall immediately notify the 
Finance Director or their designee in writing regarding the following: 

 Commencement of audit by SAO, including requests for documentation or 
information by SAO 

 Known or potential audit concerns identified by SAO and reported to the 
department 

 Any instances in which documentation requested by SAO cannot be located 
 Any difficulties related to the audit process, e.g. expectations regarding timing 

of providing information or documentation 
 Recognition that the department under audit has the right to expect that SAO 

properly schedule meetings and other interactions with departmental staff 
except where not appropriate, e.g. unannounced cash count audits 

 Any other questions or concerns regarding the audit process 
 Pursuant to this SOP, departmental personnel interacting with SAO should 

advise SAO regarding critical operations or other due dates that may 
adversely impact the timing of availability of documentation, information or 
availability of personnel to SAO.   

 Most audits involve SAO documenting policies, procedures and SOPs 
governing financial operations selected for audit, and examination of those 



STATE AUDIT PROTOCOL 
POLICY 300-53 
 

operations.  Only those personnel knowledgeable in those operations provide 
this information to SAO in order to ensure information is accurate and 
complete, and related documentation can be provided in a timely manner. 

 Departmental personnel should not make any comments or provide any 
correspondence responding to audit exceptions or other concerns raised by 
SAO without first consulting with the Finance Director or their designee.  The 
Finance Director or their designee will work with the department in 
collaboration prior to submission of response to SAO. 

  
5.6 Collective Bargaining Agreements/Civil Service Rules – Employees covered 

by collective bargaining agreements or civil service rules will be subject to the 
specific terms of those agreements and rules.  In the event a collective bargaining 
agreement or the civil service rules do not contain language regarding purchasing 
cards as specified in this policy, those employees will be governed by this policy. 

 

 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE POLICY 800-11  

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Community Development Block 
Grant Grievance Procedure 

GROUP: 
Community 
Development 

NUMBER: 
 
800-11 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES: 
 P900-00, Date Unknown 

PREPARED BY: 
Mark Ziegler 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To establish a procedure for processing grievances regarding the City’s 
participation in the Community Development Block Grant (CDBG) Program. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED:  

All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Community Development Block Grant Management Handbook. 

4.0 PROCEDURE: 

4.1 Complaints and grievances regarding the City’s participation in the CDBG 
Program shall be submitted in writing to the City Manager for resolution.  
Complaints must include; the name, address, and phone number(s) of 
complainant. 

Complaints must be submitted in person or by mail to:  City of Shelton, 525 West 
Cota Street, Shelton, WA 98584.  Regular business hours are 8:00 a.m. - 5:00 
p.m.  For additional information contact (360) 426-4491. 

4.2 A decision by the City Manager will be rendered within fifteen (15) working days 
where practicable. 

4.3 If a complaint cannot be resolved to complainant satisfaction by the City 
Manager, the complaint will be forwarded to Shelton City Council for discussion 
at an open, public meeting.  A written decision by the Shelton City Council will be 



COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 
GRIEVANCE PROCEDURE POLICY 800-11  

provided with thirty (30) working days.  The decision of the Shelton City Council 
will be final. 

4.4 A record of action taken, using the Community Development Block Grant 
Complaint Log form, will be maintained as a part of the records or minutes at 
each level of the grievance process. 

 

COMMUNITY DEVELOPMENT BLOCK GRANT 

COMPLAINT LOG 

1.  DATE RECEIVED        _____ 

2.  PERSON RECEIVING COMPLAINT      ______ 

3.  NEW COMPLAINT OR ESTABLISHED CASE    ______ 

4.  LETTER, PHONE OR IN PERSON      ______ 

5.  CDBG CONTRACT NUMBER       ______  

6.  NAME OF COMPLAINANT       ______ 

ADDRESS        ___________ 

PHONE         ______ 

7.  ON BEHALF OF (NAME)       ______ 

ADDRESS        ___________ 

PHONE         ______ 

8.  SUMMARY DESCRIPTION OF COMPLAINT:   ___________ 

_________________________________________________________________ 

9.  DESCRIPTION OF ACTION TAKEN AND DATES (INCLUDING REFERRAL 
INFORMATION, WHEN AND FOR WHAT ACTIONAND DUE DATE FOR NEXT 
ACTION). 

             

             

_____________________________________________________________________ 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Unmanned Aerial Systems (UAS) 
“Drone” Operations and Policy 

GROUP: 
Public Works 

POLICY NO: 
1000-05R 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
1000-05R, July 17, 2018 

PREPARED BY: 
Jay Harris 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To support and augment City of Shelton Public Works’ operations through 
improved efficiency with aerial equipment and create new opportunities to 
provide for the health, safety and welfare of the public and City of Shelton staff. 
This UAS Policy and associated procedures are intended to ensure the safe and 
responsible operation of the City’s unmanned aircraft, regardless of the nature of 
the mission.  Unmanned Aerial Systems provide City of Shelton Public Works 
with the ability to safely and cost-effectively augment government services, 
improve efficiency of various tasks, and improve the safety of the public and city 
staff. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

 All departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 
 RCW 40.14 

RCW 42.56 
Washington State Archives most current Common Records Retention Schedule 
(CORE) 
FAA Regulation 14 CFR Part 107 and Advisory Circular 107-2 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

 AGL – Above Ground Level 

COA – Certificate of Waiver or Authorization issued by the FAA granting 
permission of the requesting agency operating as public aircraft for a specific 
UAS activity. 

FAA – Federal Aviation Administration 

FARs – Federal Aviation Regulations. For the purpose of conducting civil(s) UAS 
operations this is generally 14 CFR Part 107 and Advisory Circular 107-2. 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

GCS – Ground Control System – System of personnel and equipment which 
controls the UAV flight operation, and sends and received data or media during a 
UAS Mission. 

NAS – National Air Space 

Non-Participant – A person not involved in the event or operation, however in the 
area of or directly affected by the UAS flight or operation such as members of the 
media or by-standers. 

(s)UAS – (Small) Unmanned Aircraft System [14 CFR Part 107] – UAV, GCS, 
Flight cameras, data and media collection systems. A (s)UAS is greater than 
0.55 lbs. and less than 55 lbs. in flight. 

UAS Flight Team – The group of individuals responsible for the implementation 
of any UAS Mission authorized by this policy. This includes at minimum one UAV 
PIC and one UAV Observer. This may also include UAV PMC. 

UAS Mission – A flight operation performed by a UAV including planning, pre-
flight operations, deployment, operation of the UAV and post-flight operations. 

UAS Program Manager – Person designated by the City of Shelton Public Works 
Director to manage and implement the UAS Program. 

UAS Participant – A person participating in an event under City operations with 
an ongoing UAS Mission. 

UAV – Unmanned Aerial Vehicle (a.k.a. Drone). 

UAV Observer – Visual Observer – Person acting as safety officer in direct 
contact with UAV PIC and UAV PMC during UAS mission responsible for 
relaying observations and hazards to the UAV PMC and to maintain situational 
awareness of GCS environment and UAB flight environment. 

UAV PIC – Pilot in Command – UAV Pilot remotely in control of a City UAV and 
is the final authority of UAV operations during a UAS Mission; provided, that all 
missions will be conducted in accordance with approved Project guidelines and 
parameters. A UAV PIC must be in control or able to immediately take manual 
control of a UAV in flight at all times and must be certified under City of Shelton 
UAS Program to be a PIC or UAS Missions and hold a valid FAA Remote Pilot 
Certification with a (s)UAS rating. 

UAV PMC – Person Manipulating Controls – Person certified through City of 
Shelton UAS Program to operate a UAV in flight during a UAS Mission. The PMC 
must have a valid FAA Remote Pilot Certification with a (s)UAS rating or be 
under the direct supervision of a PIC who has the ability to immediately take 
manual control of the UAV in flight at all times. 

Unprocessed UAV Data – Digital data collected by a UAV during UAS missions 
that is still in its original and unaltered state. 

5.0 POLICY: 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

It is the policy of the City of Shelton to maintain personnel trained in the use of 
unmanned aircraft systems and to use this resource to protect life and property 
and to support City of Shelton Public Works department in providing 
transportation services to City of Shelton citizens. City of Shelton Public Works 
staff or are authorized to utilize the UAS and associated technologies when it 
provides cost efficiency, improved data quality, or improved personnel safety 
over an existing method or process. Examples of permitted uses include, but are 
not limited to, aerial photography, photogrammetry, bridge inspections, 
geotechnical field investigations, Light Detection and Ranging (LiDAR) 
applications, public outreach, mapping construction sites and conditions, and 
disaster response/training exercises. Nothing in this policy shall be construed as 
to restrict the safe, rapid deployment of a City-owned or contracted UAS in 
response to an emergency or exigent situation to protect life and limb, critical 
transportation and infrastructure. Safety and privacy concerns are priorities in the 
implementation of the program. 

5.1 Responsibility – The City Manager and the Public Works Director are responsible 
for administration of this policy. 

5.2 Protection of Civil Rights and Privacy – UAS Program Manager and all UAS 
Flight Team members will ensure the protection of civil rights and reasonable 
expectations of privacy are key components in any decision to deploy the UAV. 
UAS Program Manager and all UAS Flight Team members will minimize the 
extent that UAV operations intrude on the citizens of Shelton.  

5.3 UAS Program Manager and all UAS Flight Team members will limit operations to 
the specific approved purpose of the project and shall employ reasonable 
precautions to avoid capturing images of the public except those that are 
pertinent to the project. 

5.4 All videos and still images will be maintained in strict compliance with City of 
Shelton policies and procedures. Any videos or images depicting private 
information will be withheld from public disclosure to the extent permitted by the 
Public Records Act, chapter 42.56 RCW. 

5.5 The City of Shelton Public Works UAS program will operate strictly within the 
federal, state and local laws and regulations. 

5.6 City of Shelton Public Works will not share Unprocessed UAV Data with other 
City of Shelton departments, other local governments, State agencies or Federal 
agencies unless such sharing is specified within the original purpose of the UAS 
mission or if such sharing has been directed by the Shelton City Council, or if 
such sharing is required by controlling state or federal law. 

 

5.7 Administration 

 The policies and procedures contained in this document are issued by the 
authority of the Shelton City Council. 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

 This manual is considered a supplement to existing City of Shelton policy, 
FAA regulations and policy, Washington State regulations and UAV aircraft 
manufacturer’s flight operations manual. 

 This manual will be reviewed and updated when other rules, regulations or 
policy require changes or when changes are deemed necessary. 

5.8 Organization 

 UAV operated by the City of Shelton Public Works Department are 
considered “Public Aircraft Operations” by the FAA. FAA Regulation 14 CFR 
Part 107 and Advisory Circular 107-2 and/or the COA issued by the FAA are 
the authority that grants City of Shelton Public Works operating authority in 
the NAS. 

 Supervision and command of the City of Shelton Public Works UAS program 
is conducted by the City of Shelton Public Works UAS Program Manager. All 
UAS Flight Team members will be trained in accordance with City of Shelton 
Training Standards and be issued a copy of this UAS Operations and Policy 
manual. 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 Operations 

 UAS missions will operate within the limitations of the FAA Regulation 14 
CFR Part 107 and Advisory Circular 107-2 and/or the COA issued by the 
FAA. 

 The City of Shelton Public Works UAS program will operate strictly within the 
current laws and regulations. 

 All UAS missions will consist of a UAS Flight Team. Under no circumstances 
will a pilot attempt to complete a deployment alone without an observer. 

 Air Support mission briefings and Risk Assessments will be completed and 
briefed prior to each flight. 

 Pre-Flight and post-flight inspections of the UAV will be completed by the 
UAS Flight Team using the manufacturer’s operator’s manual. Pre-flight 
inspection and any discrepancies will be logged in the UAV logbook. 

 Pre-flight, in-flight and post-flight checklists will be developed and used by the 
UAV PIC. 

6.2 Safety 

 Employees involved in City-owned UAS operations shall comply with 
pertinent City of Shelton Safety/Personnel policies and FAA safety 
regulations. 

 Employees requiring assistance complying with FAA safety regulations shall 
consult with the UAS Program Manager. 

 It is the duty of every member of the UAS Flight Team to contribute to the 
goal of continued safe operations. This contribution may come in many forms 
and includes always operating in the safest manner possible and never taking 
unnecessary risks. 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

6.3 Training 

 All UAS Program Managers will oversee the UAV Training Program. 
 All UAS Flight Team members will have a training folder located at the UAS 

Program Manager’s office that includes certificates of training and training 
documentation. 

 UAV Observers must complete sufficient training to communicate to the pilot 
any instructions required to remain clear of conflicting traffic. This will include 
knowledge of the rules and responsibilities described in 14 CFR 91.111, 
Operating Near Other Aircraft; 14 CFR 91.113, Right-of-Way Rules; Except 
Water Operations; and 14 CFR 91.155, Basic VFR Weather Minimums; 
knowledge of air traffic and radio communications, including the use of 
approved ATC/pilot phraseology; and knowledge of appropriate sections of 
the Aeronautical Information Manual. 

 Recurrent Training. UAV PIC and PMC who do not have documented flight 
time within 180 days will demonstrate proficiency in their duties to the UAS 
Program Manager or a UAV PIC/PMC who is current and proficient. PIC’s 
must demonstrate three takeoffs and three landings of the specific UAV in the 
previous 180 days to remain current. Currency flights may be supervised by 
the UAS Program Manager or another current UAV PIC/PMC. All mission 
deployments, including practice or training flights, will be documented and 
counted towards an operator’s UAV flight experience. An FAA aeronautical 
knowledge test must be passed and documented every 24 months. 

 Crew Resource Management Training (CRM). All UAS Flight Team members 
will complete the City of Shelton Public Works Crew Resource Management 
initial training and annual CRM training. CRM for UAS Flight Team members 
will emphasize situational awareness and effective communication during 
each UAV flight operation. 

6.4 Equipment 

 City of Shelton Public Works UAS equipment will be managed under the 
Engineering Department. 

 The UAS Program Manager will be responsible for ensuring all users of the 
equipment have appropriate levels of training, verifying certifications and 
ensuring the UAS is properly maintained. 

 All supporting software, equipment registrations, radio licensing or other 
federal programs and requirements will be obtained or monitored by the UAS 
Program Manager. 

 UAS Procurements shall be in accordance with the current City of Shelton 
Purchasing and Procurement Policy. 

 

6.5 Maintenance 

 Pre-flight and post-flight inspections of the UAV will be completed by the UAS 
Flight Team using the manufacturer’s operator’s manual. 



UNMANNED AERIAL SYSTEMS 
POLICY 1000-05 
 

 Pre-flight, in-flight, and post-flight checklists will be developed and used by 
the UAV PIC. 

 Discrepancies noted during pre-flight or post-flight inspections will be noted in 
the UAV logbook. 

 Scheduled and unscheduled maintenance on the UAV will be performed in 
accordance with the manufacturer’s guidelines. 

6.6 Retention and Public Disclosure of Aerial Imaging 

 Aerial imaging shall be retained in accordance with the provisions of RCW 
40.14. 

 Public requests for UAS aerial imaging shall be processed in accordance with 
City of Shelton public disclosure policy and the provisions of the Public 
Records act, chapter 42.56 RCW and/or applicable federal law. All retained 
images will be withheld to the extent permitted by the Public Records Act, 
chapter 42.56 RCW, and other controlling law. 

 Aerial imaging retention schedules shall be based upon the Washington 
Secretary of State – Washington State Archives most current Common 
Records Retention Schedule (CORE). 

6.7 Accident Reporting and Review – All UAS related accidents that result in deaths, 
injuries, illnesses; incidents or near misses will be reported as defined in the City 
of Shelton safety Program and Policies.  In addition to the above City of Shelton 
requirements, the FAA requires the following: 

 9 107.9 Accident Reporting. No later than 10 days after an operation that 
meets the criteria of either paragraph (a) or (b) of this section, a remote pilot 
in command must report to the Federal Aviation administration in a manner 
acceptable to the Administrator, any operation of the small unmanned aircraft 
involving at least: 
• Serious injury to any person or any loss of consciousness; or 
• Damage to any property, other than the small unmanned aircraft, unless 

one of the following conditions is satisfied: 
o The cost of repair (including materials and labor) does not exceed 

$500; or 
o The fair market value of the property does not exceed $500 in the 

event of total loss. 
o The FAA has an online reporting tool for this purpose 

https://www/faa/Nov/uas/report accident/  

https://www/faa/Nov/uas/report%20accident/


COMMUNITY ATHLETIC PROGRAMS 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 
POLICY 1200-02 
 

 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Community Athletic Programs 
Non-Discrimination Policy 

GROUP: 
 
Parks and Recreation 

POLICY NO:  
 
1200-02 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
N/A 

PREPARED BY: 
Mark Ziegler 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To establish policy and procedure to provide equal access to public community 
athletic programs and sports facilities by prohibiting discrimination on the basis of 
sex. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

None. 

4.0 POLICY: 

The City of Shelton does not discriminate against any person on the basis of sex 
in the operation, conduct, or administration of community athletic programs or 
sports facilities 

5.0 DEFINITIONS: 

Community Athletic Programs – Any athletic program that is organized for the 
purposes of training for, and engaging in, athletic activity and competition that is 
operated, conducted, administered or supported by the City of Shelton. 

Sports Facilities – Any property owned, operated or administered by the City of 
Shelton for the purposes of training for, and engaging in, athletic activity and 
competition. 

 



COMMUNITY ATHLETIC PROGRAMS 
NON-DISCRIMINATION 
POLICY 1200-02 
 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 Community Athletic Programs administered by the Parks and Recreation 
Department will be operated in a manner that promotes equal opportunities. 

6.2 The Parks and Recreation Department will allocate and schedule sports facilities 
in a manner that provides equal access to all community athletic programs. 

6.3 The City of Shelton will not issue a lease or permit for use of any sports facility to 
a third- party that discriminates against any person outlined in its purpose 
statement above. 

6.4 This policy will be posted on the City of Shelton’s website, along with the name, 
office address, and office telephone number an employee responsible for 
carrying out compliance with this policy. 

6.5 This policy will be referenced and the name, office address, and office telephone 
number of any employee responsible for carrying out compliance with this policy 
will be included in all City of Shelton publications that contain information about 
athletic programs or facilities operated or administered by the City of Shelton. 

7.0 REPORTING: 

7.1 Any citizen who feels he/she has been the victim of discriminatory treatment in 
violation of this policy should report this concern to the Parks and Recreation 
Supervisor for appropriate investigation. 

8.0 REVISIONS: 

8.1 Based upon the City’s annual evaluation, revisions may be recommended to help 
achieve the desire policy outcomes.  Revisions may be approved by the City 
Manager. 

 

 

 

 



DONATIONS OF GIFTS AND ARTWORK 
POLICY 1200-03 
 

 

 
 

 
 
 

POLICY AND PROCEDURE 

SUBJECT:  
Donation of Gifts of Artwork 

GROUP: 
Parks and Recreation 

POLICY NO: 
1200-03 

EFFECTIVE DATE: 
January 1, 2021 

SUPERSEDES:  
P100-03, Dated April 5, 2004 

PREPARED BY: 
Aaron BeMiller 

APPROVED BY: 
Jeff Niten 

 

1.0 PURPOSE: 

To  adopt procedures and criteria for the Shelton Arts Commission in reviewing 
proposed gifts of artwork that is consistent with Ordinance 1512-1298 
(acceptance of donations, devises or bequests to the City), and consistent with 
other applicable legislative and administrative policies and procedures of the 
City. 

2.0 DEPARTMENTS AFFECTED: 

 All Departments. 

3.0 REFERENCES: 

Ordinance 1300 – Shelton Arts Commission 

Ordinance 1512-1298 – Acceptance of Donations, Devises, or Bequests to the 
City. 

4.0 DEFINITIONS: 

Authority – Accepting gifts or donations of money or property is vested by 
Ordinance 1512-1298 in the City Manager.  However all ultimate authority to 
expend city funds comes from the City Council, usually through the budget 
process.  In addition, the City Council has established an advisory arts 
commission to add quality and artistic discernment to decisions regarding 
acquisition, display and maintenance of publicly owned artworks in the city.  
Therefore, this policy contains the integrated arts policies of the City Council, the 
City Manager and the Shelton Arts Commission. 

5.0 POLICY: 

The Shelton Arts Commission shall review all proposed gifts of artwork that are 
donated, devised, or bequeathed, with or without restriction, to the City of 
Shelton including; actual artwork, property for placement of artwork, or funds for 



DONATIONS OF GIFTS AND ARTWORK 
POLICY 1200-03 
 

the acquisition of artwork.  Gifts of artwork to the City may include donations by 
individuals, neighborhoods and/or community groups.  The Shelton Arts 
Commission will evaluate the suitability of proposed gifts and make 
recommendations to the City Manager (Ord 1512-1298). 

6.0 PROCEDURE: 

6.1 The Shelton Arts Commission shall appoint a Gifts Panel to review proposed 
artwork gifts to the City.  Each panel shall consist of five to seven members 
representing the Arts Commission, the community, and/or representatives from 
City Departments.  The City Manager, or designee, shall appoint a staff member 
to serve as facilitator to this panel.  At the discretion of the Arts Commission, 
donated work with a value less than $1,000 may be submitted directly to the City 
Manager rather than a Gifts Panel for review.     

6.2 The Gifts Panel reviews each proposed gift for aesthetic quality, potential sites, 
and restrictions from the donor, and determines the suitability of the gift based on 
the following criteria.  The panel will require evidence that these issues have 
been satisfactorily resolved before making a recommendation regarding a 
proposed gift. 

 Aesthetic Quality – Does the proposed gift have strong aesthetic merit? 
 Proposed Location – Is the artwork adequately scaled for the proposed site?   
 The relationship between the artwork and its proposed site? 
 Why was a particular site requested and does the site present any special 

obstacles?   
 Donor Restrictions/Requests – If restrictions/requests clearly identified.  If 

accepted, can the expectations be met? 
 Technical Feasibility – Can the artwork be built and installed as proposed and 

are adequate professional resources identified to do the work? 
 Technical Specifications – The Gift Panel must review the actual work, if 

available, or scale drawings, and/or model(s) consisting of a site plan and 
elevation describing the following: 

o Surrounding site conditions if applicable. 
o  Dimensions. 
o Materials. 
o Colors. 
o Electrical, plumbing, or other utility requirements. 
o Construction and installation method.  
o The Gift Panel may require additional support material such as text 

verbally describing artwork and specifications, models or presentation 
drawings by a licensed engineer.   

o Budget – What will be the cost to manage this project? What is the 
cost of site preparation? What is the cost of delivery and installation? 
Has the donor provided funds for signage, plaque, or other appropriate 
attributions?  Are all projected costs accurate and realistic?  Has the 
donor clearly defined who is responsible for all costs associated with 



DONATIONS OF GIFTS AND ARTWORK 
POLICY 1200-03 
 

the donation?  Have written estimates been obtained from technical 
support and fabrication/installation contractors? 

o Durability - Will the material last?  How long is the material expected to 
last in a public, non-archival exhibition setting?  What age have other 
works in the same material(s) attained? Is the work suitable for its 
location?  For example, what effect will sunlight, salt water, wind, and 
other elements potentially have on the work?  Are seismic 
considerations relevant? 

o Warranty - Does the donor agree to be responsible for a warranty 
period of one year from the date of final installation of the artwork for 
the integrity of the materials, fabrication, and installation of the 
artwork? 

o Vandalism and Safety - Is the work prone to vandalism or a safety 
hazard at the proposed site?  Will the work have a graffiti-resistant 
coating or can one be easily applied? Will the work present legal 
liability concerns?  Has the work been reviewed by the Administrative 
Services Director, or designee, for liability exposure? 

o Maintenance and Preservation - Are there unusual or on-going costs?  
Should a maintenance endowment be established by the donor?  The 
Gift Panel may recommend that the donor allocate and guarantee 
funds to ensure adequate quality care for the artwork.   

o Donors must provide a technical and maintenance record, including a 
plan for routine care with estimated costs.  

o Is the work removable if necessary? 
o Relationship to the Collection as a Whole. 
o The Arts Commission has a commitment to creating a diverse 

collection of work. How is the proposed gift compatible or incompatible 
with the City of Shelton’s public art collection?  Is this artist’s work 
already well represented in the City’s collection?   

o Community Process – If the artwork proposal has been generated by a 
community group, how has the surrounding community been involved 
and consulted?    

o Time Line - Has a realistic time line been presented indicating a 
completion date?  Is the time line realistic?  

6.3 Community groups or individual donors proposing gifts are informed of the 
importance of the above criteria in the panel’s consideration.  Groups and 
individuals are encouraged to read this policy carefully, and consult the 
Worksheet for Prospective Donors Offering Gifts of Art to the City of Shelton.  

6.4 The panel makes a recommendation to the full Arts Commission on a course of 
action regarding each proposed gift. The Commission’s recommendation will be 
communicated to the Director of Community  Development.  The 
recommendation will then be presented to the City Manager for formal 
acceptance or rejection of the gift.  If the gift will have substantial community 
impact, the City Manager, at his discretion, may forward the proposed gift to the  
City Council for review and approval. 



DONATIONS OF GIFTS AND ARTWORK 
POLICY 1200-03 
 

6.5 For each proposed donation, the City Manager or designee, shall communicate 
an acknowledgment of acceptance or rejection on behalf of the City.  

7.0 GIFT ACCEPTANCE 

7.1 At the time a proposal is made to the City, the donor must present a timeline 
indicating a completion date.  If a proposed gift is not completed within the 
timeline originally established, or if significant changes (both conceptual and/or 
financial) to the proposed work occur, the proposal must be resubmitted for full 
review.  Time lines may be amended only if mutually agreed upon between the 
donor and the City. 

7.2 A gift acceptance form (a legal instrument of conveyance) will be completed for 
each donation.   

 

7.3 Monetary donations shall be deposited in the General Fund and designated for 
public art. The Shelton Arts Commission will recommend expenditures from the 
fund to the City Council. 

7.4 The Arts Commission will plan specific projects and recommend the allocation of 
funds, the procedures, and guidelines for all donated funds.  

7.5 The Community Development Director and the Arts Commission will submit 
individual project recommendations for implementation as a part of the normal 
city budget process.   

7.6 The Community Development Director will maintain acquisition/inventory records 
on all gifts acquired under this policy. 

7.7 The Community Development Director will be responsible for contracting and will 
act as liaison on behalf of the City in the completion of each project. 

7.8 The City Manager shall assign responsibility for the maintenance of gifts to the 
City.  

7.9 The Community Development Director will notify the City in writing what the 
donation is and its value in order to obtain a property identification number and to 
include the artwork on the City property schedule for Insurance.   

8.0 DEACCESSION REVIEW: 

8.1 Gifts of artwork may be deaccessioned if necessary, after review and 
recommendation by the Arts Commission and in accordance with City policies for 
the disposition of property. 

9.0  SEVERABILITY CLAUSE: 

9.1 If any section, subsection, paragraph, sentence, clause or phrase of this policy is 
declared unconstitutional or invalid for any reason, such invalidity shall not affect 
the validity or effectiveness of the remaining portions of the policy. 


	1 Agenda_20210119
	2 2021 Looking Ahead
	3 Vouchers_20210119
	3a Vouchers_20210119
	3b SVV December 2020 report to the city council ST
	4 Chief Carole Beason Swearing In Placeholder
	5 Shoreline Master Program Periodic Update Status Breifing
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	6 Attachment 1 -Shoreline Master Program Update
	7 Attachment 2 - Shoreline Master Program Update
	8 Attachment 3 - Shoreline Master Program Update
	9 Attachment 4 - Shoreline Master Program Update
	10 Attachment 5 - Shoreline Master Program Update
	11 Attachment 6 - Shoreline Master Program Update
	12 2021-1-19 Shelton Street Improvement Standards Presentation
	STREET IMPROVEMENT STANDARDS�POLICY DISCUSSION �
	Slide Number 2
	2017 COMPREHENSIVE PLAN FUNCTIONAL CLASSIFICATION MAP
	Slide Number 4
	Slide Number 5
	Slide Number 6
	Slide Number 7
	Slide Number 8
	Slide Number 9
	Slide Number 10
	Slide Number 11
	Slide Number 12
	Slide Number 13
	Slide Number 14
	Slide Number 15
	Slide Number 16
	Slide Number 17
	Slide Number 18
	Slide Number 19
	Slide Number 20
	Slide Number 21
	Slide Number 22
	Slide Number 23
	Slide Number 24
	Slide Number 25

	13 Revised Street Standard Details T-22 to T-27
	14 Agenda Briefing_Supplemental 2
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	15 Supplemental Ord 2
	16 Briefing_Res 1183-1120 On-Call Qualified Pool Contracts
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	17 Resolution 1183-1120 On Call Qualified Pool
	18 On Call Qualified Pool List RFQ 2021
	The City of Shelton, Washington is accepting Statements of Qualifications (SOQs) from qualified engineering consulting firms to provide a variety of municipal services, via the On-Call Qualified Pool List.  These services are intended to complement an...
	SECTION 1.  GENERAL INFORMATION:
	CONFIRMATION OF BUSINESS ORGANIZATION FORM


	19 Statement of Criteria Applied_On Call Qualified Pool List
	20 List of Firms and Categories
	21 Sample Contract
	A. Insurance Term
	B. No Limitation
	C. Minimum Scope of Insurance
	D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance
	F. Acceptability of Insurers
	G. Verification of Coverage
	H. Notice of Cancellation
	I. Failure to Maintain Insurance
	J. City Full Availability of Consultant Limits
	CONTRACT SIGNATURES
	EXHIBIT B
	EXHIBIT C


	22 Briefing Eagle Point Park Master Plan
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	23 Professional Services Contract - Droll - Eagle Point Master Plan
	24 Briefing_Ord 1959-1120 Mason County Franchise
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	25 Ordinance 1959-1120_Mason County Franchise Agreement
	26 Franchise Agreement_Mason County_City of Shelton
	27 Public Hearing Notice - Ordinance No. 1959-1120
	28 Agenda Briefing_Chap3.52Update
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	29 BO Model Ordinance Update_Non-profitV2
	30 Agenda Briefing_Fee Schedule
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	31 Resolution 1184-1120
	32 Exhibit A 2021 Proposed Fee Schedule Update
	33 Briefing supplemental building code services 2021-2022
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	34 Clarity Consulting Engineers 2021 contract final
	A. Insurance Term
	B. No Limitation
	C. Minimum Scope of Insurance
	D. Minimum Amounts of Insurance
	E. Other Insurance Provision
	F. Acceptability of Insurers
	G. Verification of Coverage
	H. Notice of Cancellation
	I. Failure to Maintain Insurance
	J. Public Entity Full Availability of Consultant Limits
	I. Structural Review
	II. Architectural Review (Ordinance and Barrier Free)
	III. Energy Review
	IV. Barrier Free Accessibility Review
	V. Fire Suppression Review
	VI. LEEDS Review
	VII. Mechanical Review
	VIII. Plumbing Review
	IX. Fire Alarm Review
	BUILDING CODE REVIEW FEE STRUCTURE
	EXHIBIT C


	36 Briefing_Policy
	APPROVED FOR COUNCIL PACKET:

	37 City Policies
	100-01 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Policy and Procedure_100_01_DRAFT
	100-06 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Social Media Use Policy - Moderated Limited Discussion Outlets_100_06_DRAFT v2
	100-07 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_General Social Media Disclaimer_100_07_DRAFT
	100-10 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Council Deliberation_100_10_DRAFT
	100-14 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Introduction_100_14_DRAFT
	100-15 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Team_Philosophy_100_15_DRAFT
	100-16 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Org and Structure_100_16_DRAFT
	100-17 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Core Ethics_100_17_DRAFT
	100-18 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Conflicts of Interest_100_18_DRAFT
	100-19 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Outside Employment_100_19_DRAFT
	100-20 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Nepotism_100_20_DRAFT
	100-21 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Political Activities_100_21_DRAFT
	100-22 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Charities and Fundraisers_100_22_DRAFT
	100-23 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Whistleblower Program_100_23_DRAFT
	100-24 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Social Media_100_24_DRAFT
	100-25 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Media Contacts_100_25_DRAFT
	100-50 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Legal Review_100_50_DRAFT
	100-90 POLICY AND PROCEDURE_Exceptions_100_90_DRAFT
	300-18 Fund Balance
	300-27 Access To Confidentiality Information
	300-31 Fee Waivers
	300-35 Fraud Prevention
	300-38 Per Diem
	300-47 Small and Attractive Assets
	300-53 State Audit Protocol
	800-11 CDBG Grievance
	1000-05R Unmanned Aerial Systems
	1200-02 Community Athletic Non-Discrimination
	1200-03 Donations of Gifts and Artwork


